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"ASSETS 1162 1,162 o B ~ LIABILITIES
Cash and cash equivalents Short-term liabilities
49143 355/464
Inventories, accounts receivable
and other assets
459/483
tong-term liabilities
532/335
Long-term assets
654/251
Shareholders’ equity
355/363
2.29.2004  2.20.2CC% 2.29.2004
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
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HORNBACH stands for DIY megastores with garden centers
- and for a passion for home improvement.

We have provided some impressions in a special enclosure
which you can find hetween pages 36 and 37.
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Key Group, Financial and Operating Information

HGB
|Amounts shown in €m 2203 ZCC/25Cz  2000/2001  1999/2000 1998/1999 1997/1998 1996/1937 1995/1996
‘untess otherwise stated
Sales and earnings figures U
Net sales 8.9% 2,094 1,923 1,628 1,439 1,314 1,190 1,046 961 835 744
of which in other European countries 12.5% 688 611 424 317 266 213 140 33 29 -
Sales increase as % of net sales 8.9 18.2 131 9.5 10.5 13.7 8.9 15.1 121 13.9
Earnings before taxes and extraordinary result 55.3% 58 44 25 46 42 36 33 52 30 44
as % of net sales 3.2 2.3 1.6 32 32 3.0 3.1 5.4 36 59
Net income for the year 54.7% 43 28 14 30 23 15 31 3z 11 20
as % of net sales 2.1 1.5 0.9 21 1.8 13 2.9 3.8 1.3 27
EBIT 2 40.9% 91 65 46 65 64 55 48 68 41 49
as % of net sales 4.3% 3.4% 2.8% 4.5% 4.2% 4.0% 4.0% 6.2% 43% 5.7%
EBITDA 3 s 20.0% 152 127 103 118 114 106 95 1z 90 84
as % of net sales 7.3% 6.6% 6.4% 8.2% 8.7% 8.9% 9.1% 11.7% 10.7% 11.3%
Gross margin as % of net sales 364 357 353 36.4 36.2 36.4 374 38.0 38.0 37.6
Store expenses as % of net sales # 28.8 28.6 28.9 29.1 28.5 28.9 29.3 28.2 301 28.4
Costs of central administration as % of net sales 4 3.9 37 4.0 41 38 3.7 4.2 36 34 3.0
Pre-opening expenses 4 -10.6% 10 1 19 9 9 12 13 11 15 11
as % of net sales 4 0.5% 0.6% 1.1% 0.6% 0.7% 1.0% 1.2% 1.2% 1.8% 1.4%
Cash flow figures ¥
Capital expenditures 29.0% 92 71 140 120 78 115 127 140 124 110
Gross cash flow 3 21.9% 129 106 83 100 93 87 80 97 79 80
as % of net sales 6.2% 5.5% 5.1% 6.9% 11% 7.3% 7.6% 10.0% 9.4% 10.7%
Earnings potential &) 18.9% 139 117 101 109 102 99 93 108 94 ° 90
as % of net sales 6.6% 6.1% 6.2% 7.6% 7.8% 8.3% 8.9% 11.2% 11.2% 12.1%
Net cash flow 7) 15.9% 105 90 72 83 74 66 78 78 60 56
as % of net sales 5.0% 4.7% 4.4% 5.8% 5.6% 5.6% 7.4% 8.1% 1.2% 7.5%
Dividend payments 0.6% 13.1 13.1 131 131 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0
Balance sheet and financial figures
Balance sheet total 9.6% 1,274 1,162 1,093 1,020 840 789 698 671 578 521
Fixed assets -0.3% 635 638 664 589 465 480 420 377 326 256
Inventories 0.3% 426 425 363 323 278 262 208 178 149 123
Cash and cash equivalents 194.9% 143 49 23 50 30 30 49 17 58 132
Shareholders’ equity 9.7% 399 363 350 350 261 250 247 230 209 212
as % of balance sheet total 313 313 320 34.3 31.0 31.7 355 343 36.2 40.7
Inventary turnover frequency per year 31 31 31 3.0 3.2 3.2 34 37 3.9 4.1
Return on shareholders' equity in %
based on net income for year 44.8% 114 7.9 4.1 8.6 8.3 6.9 5.2 105 7.2 10.8
Retail store data
Number of stores 117 110 102 91 82 18 70 65 60 53
of which: in Germany 88 83 78 75 70 67 62 62 58 53
in ather European countries 29 27 24 16 12 11 8 3 2 -
Comparable store sales growth in % 1.5 5.2 1.5 1.4 2.5 32 -3.0 -14 -4.1 -3.0
Sales area in m? (based on BHB) 7.4% 1,198,209 1,115,900 1,014,685 887,427 791,429 733,267 637,231 552,856 487,958 405,547
- Weighted average net sales per m2in € -0.5% 1,796 1,804 1,699 1,705 1,729 1,745 1,746 1,829 1911 1,999
- Average store size in m2 2.0% 10,241 10,145 9,948 9,752 9,652 9,401 9,103 8,505 8,133 7,652
- Weighted average sales per store 18.4 18.3 16.9 166 16.7 16.4 15.9 15.5 15.5 15.3
Other information
Employees — annual average
in full-time equivalents 10.7% 9,407 8,499 7,464 6,733 6,122 5,494 4,926 4523 3,899 3,354
Sales per employee in € 000s -1.6% 223 226 218 213 215 217 212 212 214 222
Number of shares 15,097,830 15,011,500 15,011,500 15,011,500 15,011,500 15,011,500 15,011,500 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
EBITDA per share 19.4 10.09 8.45 6.89 7.88 7.60 7.09 6.35 7.48 598 5.60
Earnings per share in € 8 54.8 2.88 1.86 0.96 1.95 1.42 1.15 0.83 1.54 1.01 1.50
1) Starting in the 2003/2004 financial year: other taxes (e.g. property tax) have been included in operating expenses
2) Earnings before interest and taxes
3 Earnings befare interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
%) Starting in the 2003/2004 financial year: excluding interest
5) Earnings before taxes and extraordinary result. plus depreciation
8) Gross cash flow, plus pre-opening expenses
7) Net income for the year, plus depreciation
8) Prior to the 2001/2002 financial year: DVFA/SC earnings
e T T T
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Gompany Profile

The HORNBACH Group is characterized by its ability to respond to the challenges of trading in DIY, home
improvement and garden products, and to set new standards in the process.

Since 1877, five generations of the Hornbach family have been active in almost all areas of the con-
struction sector — in the building trade, as manufacturers of prefabricated components and since 1900
as builders merchants,

As one of the pioneers in Germany and Europe, HORNBACH opened its first DIY store in 1968 and com-
bined it with a garden center — at its time unique in Europe. This combination has since developed to
become a European standard in the DIY sector today.

-
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in the second half of the 80s, and especially since 1990, HORNBACH has added a new dimensian to the
market with its concept of large DIY and home improvement megastores with garden centers. Today, an
impressively presented range of around 50,000 top quality DIY and gardening articles is available to DIY
customers in spacious stores and at permanently low prices. Well-trained, service-oriented employees
make the customers the focus of their activities. As of February 28, 2005, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
operated 117 DIY megastores with garden centers across Europe.
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The consistent implementation of the company's concept, coupled with the high expectations it places
in the quality of its locations, its stores, its product range and employees, have facilitated the dynamic
growth witnessed by the company in recent years and form the basis for further expansion, With an
average sales area of around 10,250 m? per store, HORNBACH is the market leader among the operators
of DIY megastores with garden centers in Germany. Moreover, the company’s sales area productivity is
higher than that of any of its competitors in Germany. At € 2,094 mitlion, HORNBACH's net sales in the
2004/2005 financial year also clearly place the company among the top players in the market,

Following the company’s successful entry into the Austrian market in August 1996, it has consistently
pressed ahead with its expansion into neighboring European countries. Stores have subsequently

been opened in the Netherlands, Luxembourg and the Czech Republic. The first two HORNBACH DIY
megastores with garden centers in Switzerland were opened during the 2002/2003 financial year.
HORNBACH celebrated its premigre in Sweden in October 2003. In August 2004, the Group celebrated
its market entry in Slovakia. As of February 28, 2005, the company was operating a total of 29 DIY
megastores with garden centers outside Germany. Its international share of sales will continue to grow
in future. However, the Group will also continue to pursue opportunities for growth in Germany.

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG is a publicly listed stock corporation. The ordinary shares in the company (ISIN
DE0006084403) are listed on the German stock exchange and have been admitted to the subsection of
the official market involving additional admissions obligations (the “Prime Standard”). Some 80% of
the approximately 15.1 million ordinary shares in the company are held by HORNBACH HOLDING AG,
while around 15% are owned by independent shareholders. The British retail group Kingfisher plc owned
around 5.5% of the shares at the reporting date.

Development of sales at HORNBACH DiY megastores with garden centers
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Dear Shareholders,

The past year was a record year for our company. Qur achievements included:
- crossing the € 2 billion sales mark

- reporting record operating earnings (EBIT) of € 91 million

- issuing the first corporate bond in the history of HORNBACH.

We can rightly be proud of these achievements, especially since they were accomplished in a
competitive climate which has rarely been more difficult or unpredictable than in the past year. This
was particularly true of the German DIY market.

After all, things had started well in 2004 — after eight years of declining comparable store sales, a
revival in DIY enthusiasm, which even reached German living rooms via TV, once again led to positive
growth figures. And it looked as if the sector would be able to benefit from this tailwind on an ongoing
basis. However, the lull returned in August 2004. Even worse — poor weather conditions and a decline in
consumers’ propensity to spend have confronted the sector with an ominous headwind. Germany is still
waiting for its consumer climate to pick up once again.

The patterns of behavior witnessed in the previous year on the bridges of most DIY store operators did
not take long to return. Their crews fell back on the discount campaign as a tried and tested method
thought to constitute a universal remedy to the strike being exercised by consumers. However, this time
the dose was increased — with no regard for the side-effects on customer behavior.

For good reason, we have avoided taking such shortsighted unilateral actions, and have continued to
polish up our retail format. At its core, this involves the attributes which we believe customers to value
most, namely trust, reliability and predictability. The permanent low price strategy which we introduced
at the end of the nineties has therefore become an uneventful matter of course. It naturally forms one
aspect of the positioning of the HORNBACH brand, but nevertheless represents only one of several
components of our success.

There is nothing really novel in this insight, but it gains in relevance when one examines the impression
made on outsiders by the German DIY sector. The saber rattling in the media intensified in the weeks
surrounding the European DIY industry’s most important congress, which was held in March 2005 and
organized by the Federal Association of German Home Improvement, DIY and Specialist Garden Centers
(BHB). A study published by a renowned consulting company was partly responsible for headlines such
as “Chainsaw Massacre” or “Price War in the DIY Paradise”. The intention, precision and conclusions of
this study are certainly apen to discussian, but one aspect is indisputable — some competitors will be
facing even more difficult times ahead. The pressure to consolidate is intensifying massively on those
DIY store operators who have neglected their strategic and financial homework, or were not in a position
to take such measures. In view of our strengths and our growth strategy, | am convinced that we will
emerge from the process of consolidation as one of the winners. However, it is also clear that we must
work tirelessly on our business, so that we can continue to stoke the enthusiasm for our concept shown
by ardent DIY customers, garden lovers, and construction professionals.

The latest callback actions in the sector, which involved gross safety defects in chainsaws and faulty
smoke alarms, show that we have been right not to cut back on the quality of the products we offer, or of
our services, merely in the interests of offering them at literatly any price. This makes it all the more
important for us to have a broad base of international procurement contacts in order to ensure that we can
tap the optimal procurement source for the quality required. Our strategic alliance with Kingfisher, the
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largest DIY group in Europe, is particularly important in this respect and provides us with merchandising
opportunities which remain denied to our competitors. The positive development of our gross margin — in
spite of a further reduction in retail prices — is largely attributable to this competitive advantage.
Sz are bz LoD eddress for projecis” —

“The goods zre 107 our preduct. Our product s satisfied customers”
These represent two key aspects of HORNBACH's foundations and are not only intended to gain the com-
mitment of our employees to the guiding principles of our company. They briefly and succinctly express
which strategy and which customer groups are at the center of our focus. In order to stimulate passion
for home improvement, our DIY megastores with garden centers, whose average size exceeds 10,000 m?,
provide customers with the necessary attractive infrastructure for purchasing all of the products and
services required for undertaking even larger-scale construction projects and renovations, The drive-in
builders merchant centers, which HORNBAGH is the first operator in Europe to have introduced, repre-
sent just the most recent example of this approach.

We st sze considerzbie polential in the market ‘QHURNMH,S Share of the g
Innovahons such as this differentiate us from our competitors. HORNBACH's unmistakable profile is German DIY Market

based on a multitude of details in terms of the presentation of goods, its stocking and its logistics, but reriet share n %) N

also on its type of advertising and customer proposal. A glance at our monthly advertising brochures . - £
possible to create additional demand. | am convinced that the potential of the supposedly saturated Y.F : : 3
German DIY market is far from having been exhausted. One of the indications for this conviction is the $EE |

massive backlog of renovation work in Germany, which will have to be caught up at some point and will i -
more than compensate for the low level of new construction. It is estimated that around two thirds of £

will show how we provide our customers with the motivation to roll their sleeves up. In this way, it is : o - £ _'; | £
|
i
{

the flats in Germany are more than 25 years old. A further indication is that the DIY store sales format doELE - E ¢
in Germany has nowhere near reached the share of the overall DIY market it enjoys in the UK or in L. j 1 EL L&l vd
France (37%, compared with 50 - 52%). However, the above comments are subject to a major proviso — @ 00.610102 0203 03,04 04 05 @ *
that the company has the right concept and a healthy, profitable store structure.

9,
We believe that our convictions have been endorsed, not only by the success seen in the past year, but also .
by our outperformance of the German market since the end of the nineties. It is therefore only consistent
that we will continue to expand at first-class locations in Germany. There is no shortage of uncharted
territory on the HORNBACH map in this respect. The same applies to our international business, which is
playing an ever more important role within the overall Group in terms of its earnings contributions, and
which has set high standards for the performance of new locations. While 33% of our sales in the past
year were generated outside Germany, the international stores already contributed 38% of our EBITDA.

We have set ourselves ambitious targets for the future, both in Germany and abroad. These can only be
achieved by making considerable investments in our infrastructure. The financing of our future growth
has been secured in part by the successful placement of a corporate bond amounting to € 250 million
in November 2004 {further details in the Management Report on Page 35). Our premiére on the debt
capital markets has enabled us to access a major new source of financing and has resulted in a
permanent improvement in our capital structure.

By contrast, many other German retail companies are obliged to look on with expressions of deep concern
while banks rein in their lending policies ever more tightly. I am very pleased to report that the bond and
the company rating (BB/Ba2) mean that we have already done our homewaork in this respect as well.

Steffen Hornbach
Chairman of the Board of Management

TR T T TS T e e e ——— e
B R R e T A T e e T T T e i e e e et s i ol e

m&mm@m 1 M @mﬁm&zﬁf@@ U&aymﬂ@ﬁﬁujmmmy 50885)EinancialfStatements} 100 1 Fogliter's Cgert







—— - ,,.w.,‘: .

o' FURNBACH=Banmars A Siirs

‘~




- The HORNBAGH-Baumarkt-AG Share

Share price performance: March 1, 2004 to February 28, 2005 (base: March 1, 2004)

180 .
140
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80
March April May ‘ Jupe {uly August  September Octoher November December January ° February
2004 2008

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (Xetra) s~ SDAY  wawem MAX ~ ssmme DAY

Following their impressive recovery in 2003, in 2004 the international stock markets showed very
moderate developments for virtually the whole of the year in spite of the upturn in the global economy.
The significant increase in the oil price, coupled with the appreciation of the Euro against the US dollar,
dampened the earnings expectations of many investors. Thanks to a final spurt starting at the end of
October, the European stock markets were able to escape from their long period of marking time. The
German stock markets were also boosted by positive figures from the USA, hopes of a further revival of
the global economy and a temporary decline in the oil price.

The DAX rose by 7% during the reporting period (March 1, 2004 to February 28, 2005) to reach 4,350
points. Even greater interest was aroused by the value stocks among the second-line shares listed below
the DAX. The MDAX improved by 17% over the same period, and the SDAX even rose by 19%. The superi-
or performance shown by these share indices was attributable in part to the renaissance of the dividend
yield as a criterion for investment. The year-end rally thus enabled more conservative stocks with high
dividend yields in particular to benefit from higher levels of demand on the part of investors.

The HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG share started the 2004/2005 financial year (March 1, 2004} at a price of
€ 26.62. Following an interim high in mid-April, which saw the XETRA price reaching a level of around

€ 28, the share followed the downward trend witnessed by the overall market, reaching its annual low
of € 24.20 on May 31, 2004. The subsequent sideways movement tasted until the announcement of the
company’s pleasing half-year figures at the end of September 2004. The upturn, which generally exceeded
the performance of the SDAX, gained further momentum following the publication of the nine-month
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figures at the end of 2004, pushing the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG share to its annual high of € 38.50 on
February 23, 2005. The share was quoted at € 37.75 on the XETRA trading platform on the reporting
date. The value of the share therefore increased by 42% during the year under report.

The pleasing performance of the share price made it possible for the first time in January 2005 to exer-

L

cise subscription rights relating to the 1999 share option plan of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG. This led to
the creation of a total of 86,330 new shares, as a result of which the number of ordinary shares rose .
from 15,011,500 to 15,097,830. ' .
°
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New Targe? Erocuns for Finencial Communications
As part of our investor relations activities, we provided shareholders, analysts, the financial media and
the general public with prompt information as to business developments at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG.
Furthermore, quarterly reports, annual reports, press releases and additional financial information were
published on the internet in both English and German (www.hornbach.com).
The 2004/2005 financial year involved a special challenge for the company’s investor relations activities. .
Following several months of preparation, on November 12, 2004 HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG celebrated its
premiére on the European capital market for corporate bonds, which was accompanied by the company N
being granted a public rating for the first time (BB/Ba2). This involved a corporate bond with a volume

of € 250 million, a term of ten years and an interest coupon of 6.125%. The issue was a great success. R
HORNBACH has thus accessed a major new source of debt financing (further details have been provided 1
in the Group Management Report). At the same time, the company’s spectrum of communications activi- t
ties relating to its share was extended to include its new target group of bond holders. Since the bond
issue, there has been a marked increase in the interest shown by the capital market in HORNBACH and
its unique trading format. The DIY company thus has the opportunity of making its strengths known to a
wider circle of investors over and above the stock markets.
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The annual general meeting, the financial statements press conference, the DVFA analysts' conference
and discussions with investors in Germany and abroad provided HORNBACH with the opportunity for
intensive dialogue with the capital markets. These discussions focused not only on the current
performance figures, but also on the strategy and market position of HORNBACH and on the Group’s
further growth prospects. With its DIY megastores with garden centers across Europe, HORNBACH has a
clear focus on organic growth and its concept has proven to be successful an an international basis.

The share of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (ISIN DE0006084403) is a solid long-term investment with a high
intrinsic value and a stable dividend. Some 79.5% of the approximately 15.1 million ardinary shares in
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG were held by its parent company HORNBACH HOLDING AG at the reporting date
on February 28, 2005, while around 15.0% were owned by independent shareholders. The British retail
group Kingfisher pic, with which HORNBACH entered a strategic alliance at the end of 2001, holds
around 5.5% of the shares.

[n line with the index system of the German stock exchange, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG is admitted

for trading in the Prime Standard (a subsection of the official market involving additional admissions
requirements). The company’s listing in the Prime Standard obliges it to meet a high level of
transparency standards.

Financial Calendar for 20 ﬂ 5
June 24, 2005 Press Cenference 2004/2005

DVFA Analyst Meeting: HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
Interim Report as of May 31, 2005

o

September 01, 2005 Annual General Meeting of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
September 29, 2005 Interim Repart as of August 31, 2005
December 21, 2005 Interim Repert as of November 30, 2005

HORNBACHA

‘Key Figures for the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Share (IFRS) 2004/2005  2003/2004

Nominal value of share € 3.00 3.00
Dividend £ 0.87 0.87
Undiluted IFRS earnings per share € 2.88 1.86
Total dividend payment €000s 13,135 13,060
Shareholders' equity per share £ 26.40 24.21
Market capitalization* €000s 569,943 414,317
Share price (Xetra)* £ 37.75 21.60
12-month high £ 38.50 28.99
12-month low £ 24.20 16.50
Shares issued Number 15,097,830 15,011,500
Price/earnings ratio* 13.1 14.8

* at the end of the financial year (the last day in February)
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Corporate Governance

Bachground

High-quality and responsible corporate governance are accorded the greatest priority at HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG. The German Corporate Gavernance Codex incorporates the principal legal requirements in
respect of the management and supervision of German publicly listed stock corporations and contains kb
nationally and internationally recognized standards of good and responsible corporate management,
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG is in compliance with the extended version of the Codex published in July 2003
with the following exceptions: the disclosure of the remuneration of the Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board on an individual basis, the setting of an age limit for members of the Supervisory
Board, the recommendation that the Supervisory Board should include no more than two former
members of the Board of Management, the setting of parameters of comparison for the share option
program and the recommendation that the consolidated financial statements be made available to the
general public within 90 days of the end of the financial year.

At their meeting on December 9, 2004, the Board of Management and Supervisory Board of HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG submitted their statement in respect of the recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Codex pursuant to Section 161 of Stock Corporation Law (AktG) and made this statement
available to shareholders on the company’s homepage. The complete statement has been published on
Page 22 of this report.
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The Surervisory Boart

The Supervisory Board of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG consists of 12 members and, in line with the Law on
Codetermination, includes equal numbers of shareholder and employee representatives. In the event of a
parity of votes in the Supervisory Board, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board shall have the decisive
vote in the second round, should such renewed voting also produce a parity. The Supervisory Board
monitors the management of the company and provides ongoing advice to the Board of Management. It
appoints the members of the Board of Management, dismisses them and is responsible for the
conclusion of, amendments to and termination of employment contracts with members of the Board of .
Management. Any measures proposed by the Board of Management which could have a fundamental ' o
impact on the net asset, financial or earnings situation of the company require the prior consent of the
Supervisory Board. The Code of Procedure for the Supervisory Board contains a catalogue of those
transactions and measures requiring such consent. This list of transactions requiring consent may at
any time be extended or reduced by resclution of the Supervisory Board.

)

The members of the Supervisory Board are exclusively obliged to safeguard the interests of the company.

They are not dependent on any assignments or instructions. They may not pursue any personal interests .
when making decisions, neither may they exploit business opportunities available to the company for R
their personal benefit, The members of the Supervisory Board are obliged to disclose any conflicts of lp
interest to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, in particular any such conflicts of interest arising .

due to their fulfilling any advisory, executive or supervisory role at customers, suppliers, lenders or other
business partners of the company. Any conflicts of interest in relation to a member of the Supervisory .
Board which are substantial and not merely temporary shall result in a termination of the relevant

Supervisory Board mandate. Advisory agreements and other service or work contracts to be concluded t
between a member of the Supervisory Board and the company require the prior consent of the
Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board has established the following committees:

- Audit Committee
- Personne! Committee
- Mediation Committee
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The members of the respective committees are listed on Page 46 of this report.

Tz Beerd of Menagement
Since October 1, 2004, the Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has consisted of six
members and has a Chairman. The Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has a
self-imposed Code of Pracedure. Its members are jointly responsible for the management of the
company’s business. The Board of Management provides timely and comprehensive information to the
Supervisory Board on a regular basis. This information includes all questions of relevance to the
company in respect of planning, business development, the risk situation and risk management.
Furthermare, it presents the group investment, financial and earnings budgets both for the forthcoming
financial year and for the medium term (five years) to the Supervisory Board. The Chairman of the Board
of Management provides immediate report to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board of any significant
events which are of material relevance for any assessment of the situation and development of the
company, as well as of its management. Transactions and measures requiring the consent of the
Supervisory Board are presented to the Supervisory Board in good time. Members of the Board of
Management are obliged to disclose any conflicts of interest to the Supervisory Board without delay and
to inform the other members of the Board of Management of such conflicts. Members of the Board of
Management may only pursue secondary occupations, in particular Supervisory Board mandates outside
the group, with the permission of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.

Reruneratise af the Jcare of Jlanagerien: exnd ths Sunsrvisery Joerd

The compensation of the Board of Management cansists of fixed and variable companents. The
remuneration system consists of an agreed fixed annual salary which is paid in equal monthly part-
payments. Furthermore, the members of the Board of Management receive an annual bonus which is
paid upon the consolidated financial statements being approved by the Supervisory Board. The size of
the annual bonus is based on the level of consolidated annual net income. Share options were allocated
in four tranches to the members of the Board of Management within the framework of the 1999 share
option program. Further details concerning the share option program have been provided on Page 91 of
this report. The remuneration of the Board of Management for the 2004/2005 financial year has been
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, broken down into fixed components,
performance-related components and components of a long-term incentive nature. Furthermore, the
notes include further details as to the 1999 share option program at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG. As is
the case at most German publicly listed companies, the remuneration of the members of the Board of
Management has not been disclosed on an individual basis.
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In line with the Articles of Association, the remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board

consists of a fixed component and a variable component based on the dividend. The Chairman and the
Deputy Chairmen, as well as the members and Chairmen of the Supervisory Board committees, receive
additional remuneration. The remuneration of the Supervisory Board has been disclosed in the notes to

L ]
the consolidated financial statements, broken down into its fixed and variable components. The remu- .
neration of individual members of the Supervisory Board may be derived from the Articles of Association ks
and the disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements and has therefore not been .
disclosed separately. .

whe Annval General Meeting

The shareholders of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG exercise their rights, including their voting rights, at the
Annual General Meeting. They are informed at regular intervals of all significant dates by means of the
financial calendar published in the annual report, in the quarterly reports and on the homepage of the
company. The Annual General Meeting is generally chaired by the Supervisory Board Chairman,

Ol g SR

Azcounting and Auditing

The financial statements of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group are compiled in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The individual financial statements of HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG are compiled in accordance with the German Commercial Code (HGB). In line with legal
requirements, the auditor is elected by the Annual General Meeting. The Audit Committee prepares the
Supervisory Board proposal to the Annual General Meeting with regard to the auditor to be elected.
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has a risk management system which is continuously developed and adjusted *

to any changes in underlying conditions. The functionality of the risk management system is reviewed by -]
the auditors. ..

| J
Transparency .

The company’s shareholders, all capital market participants, financial analysts, investors, shareholder
associations and the media are provided with up-to-date information at regular intervals with regard to
the situation of the company and to any material alterations in its business situation. The internet con-
stitutes the principal means of communication for such information.

=TT

The situation and results of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG are reported by means of:

- Quarterly reports

- The annual report

- The annual financial results press conference

- Telephone conferences with international financial analysts and investors
- Events with financial analysts and investors in Germany and abroad.

The dates of relevance to the company's regular financial reporting activities have been summarized in
the financial calendar published on the internet at www.harnbach.com. In addition to these regular
reporting activities, any facts arising at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG which are likely to have a significant .
influence on the price of the company's share are published in the form of ad hoc announcements. In +
accordance with Section 15a of the Securities Trading Law (WpHG) and Point 6.6 of the German A
Corporate Governance Codex, members of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board of
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG are required to disclose any purchase or sale of shares in HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG. The disclosures received by HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG during the 2004/2005 financial
year were published without delay on the company’s homepage.
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T Jtatement on the Lorparate hovernance Lodex
pursuant to Section 161
of the German Stock Corporation Act

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-Aktiengesellschaft hereby
declare in accordance with Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) that the recommen-
dations of the “German Corporate Governance Codex” government commission, as outlined in the version
dated November 7, 2002 and published in the Federal Gazette on November 26, 2002, were in principle
fulfilled since the initial statement of compliance made on November 27, 2002 up to the new version of
the German Corporate Governance Codex dated July 4, 2003. Application was not made of the recommen-
dations included in Points 5.4.1 clause 2, 5.4.2 and 7.1.2 clause 2 of the German Corporate Governance
Codex.

i, o

Since July 4, 2003, the recommendations of the government commission, as outlined in the version
dated May 21, 2003 and published in the Federal Gazette on July 4, 2003, have been and are in principle
fulfilled. Application has not been made and is not made of the recommendations included in Points
4.2.3 clause 5 and clause 7, 4.2.4 clause 2, 5.4.1 clause 2, 5.4.2, 5.4.5 clause 6 and clause 7 and 7.1.2
clause 2. The deviations mentioned have arisen on account of the following considerations:

a) Point 4.2.3:

In Point 4.2.3 clause 5, the Codex recommends that share options and similar arrangements be based
on sophisticated parameters of comparison. The share option plan established in 1999 for HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG does not include any parameters of comparison. It merely lays down a hurdle to exercising
such options. Any future share option plans will take account of appropriate parameters of comparison.
In Point 4.2.3 clause 7, the Codex further recommends that the Supervisory Board should agree a cap for
any extraordinary unforeseen developments. Such a cap is not included in the share option plan dating
fram 1999 at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG, which in any case only provides a relatively small allocation of
options to members of the Board of Management.

[
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b) Point 4.2.4:

Point 4.2.4 clause 1 recommends that the remuneration of the members of the Board of Management be
reported in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, broken down into fixed salary, perform-
ance-related components and components of a long-term incentive nature. Point 4.2.4 clause 2 further
recommends that such disclosures be made on an individual basis. On account of the overall level of
remuneration for the Board of Management, which in our opinion is appropriate, we do not consider the
disclosure of individual remuneration packages to be necessary.

c) Point 5.4.1:

In Point 5.4.1 clause 2, the Codex recommends that an age limit be set for members of the Supervisory
Board. This recommendation has not been and is not followed. With the election of the longstanding for-
mer members of the Board of Management, Albert Wilhelm and Otmar Hornbach, to the Supervisory
Board, we have secured a great pool of experience and competence for the benefit of the company. Their
re-election demonstrates that our shareholders are of the same opinion.

d) Point 5.4.2:

In Point 5.4.2, the Codex recommends that no mare than two former members of the Board of
Management should be members of the Supervisory Board. This recommendation has not been and
is not followed, since the members of the Supervisory Board include Albert Wilhelm, Albrecht and
Otmar Hornbach, three former members of the Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG.
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It should be acknowledged, however, that Albrecht Hornbach is simultaneously Chairman of the Board of
Management of HORNBACH HOLDING Aktiengesellschaft and therefore represents the interests of the
parent company.

e) Point 5.4.5:

In Point 5.4.5 clause 6, the Codex recommends that the remuneration of members of the Supervisory
Board be reported in the notes to the annual financial statements on an individual basis and broken
down into its constituent components. On account of the overall level of remuneration for the
Supervisory Board, which in our opinion is appropriate, we do not consider the disclosure of individual
remuneration packages to be necessary. In Point 5.4.5 clause 7, the Codex further recommends that any
remuneration paid or benefits granted by the company to members of the Supervisory Board for any
services rendered personally, especially advisory and mediation services, are to be reported in the notes
to the annual financial statements on an individual basis. HORNBACH HOLDING AG makes use of the
opportunity of drawing on the expertise of members of the Supervisory Board in specific areas. Such
cooperation is undertaken on the basis of insubstantial (symbolic) remuneration. We see no need to
provide individual disclosures in this respect.

f) Point 7.1.2:

In Point 7.1.2 clause 2, the Codex recommends that the consolidated financial statements be made
available to the general public within 90 days of the end of the financial year. We have deviated and
continue to deviate from this recommendation. Following the successful introduction of SAP and the

implementation of the resultant organizational changes we nevertheless intend to publish our consoli- ¢
dated financial statements within 90 days. This is expected to be possible for the first time for the r
consolidated financial statements for the 2005/2006 financial year. In Paint 7.1.2 clause 2, the Codex .
further recommends that interim reports be made available to the general public within 45 days of the ¢

period under report. We already meet the requirements of this recommendation.

Bornheim, December 9, 2004
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-Aktiengesellschaft

The Supervisory Board The Board of Management
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Group Structure of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG*
Bornheim

88 DIY megastores
with garden centers

"HORNBACH International GmbH
Bornheim: 29 DIY megastores with

in Germany garden centers in other
European countries
HORNBACH HORNBACH HORNBACH HORNBACH HORNBACH HORNBACH HORNBACH
Baumarkt Holding Baumarkt Baumarkt Baumarkt Byggmarknad Baumarkt
GmbH B.V. CS spol s.r.o. Luxemburg (Schweiz) AG AB SK spol s.1.0.
Wiener Neudorf | Amsterdam Prague Sarl Oberkirch Gothenburg Bratislava
Austria Netherlands Czech Republic | Bertrange Switzerland Sweden Stovakia
Luxembourg
11 megastores | 8 megastores 4 megastores 1 megastore 3 megastores 1 megastore 1 megastore

* plus further subsidiaries as depicted in complete overview provided on Page 60

Status: February 28, 2005
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Successiul year for the global economy
2004 was a successful year for the global economy. Production growth was higher than at any time
since the mid-seventies. Particularly in the first half of the year, the global upturn gained in strength in Q T _@~

= { ]

the wake of the US American and Chinese economies. Most other regions also witnessed markedly kb

positive trends. In addition to the sharp rise in exports, this upturn was also supported by more buoyant ; 1o
levels of domestic demand in many European countries. This was especially true of the new EU member Eumpea!‘ economy |

benefits from .

states, which saw considerable growth in investments and private consumer expenditure. The recovery
in the Eurozone also made good progress until the middle of the year, but slackened off perceptibly from globral upturﬂ
the third quarter. This was partly due to the sharp rise in prices on the energy and commodity markets in 2004
and to the significant appreciation in the value of the Euro compared with the US dollar, which led to )
European exports being less competitive in terms of their prices. However, this was offset by the

.
.
improvement in sales opportunities for producers located in areas using the dollar. ] p[
®
(]

According to data refeased by Eurostat, the gross domestic product (GDP) of the Eurozone rose by 2.0%
in real terms in 2004, compared with a mere 0.5% in the previous year. Including the new member
states (EU 25), the growth rate amounted to 2.3%, foliowing 0.9% in 2003. Some of the countries in
which HORNBACH operates DIY megastores with garden centers reported considerable growth. The GDP
of Slovakia and the Czech Republic, for example, rose in real terms by 5.5% and 4.0% respectively. The
economies in Luxembourg (forecast: 4.0%) and Sweden (3.5%) also grew at a rapid pace. At between
1.3% to 2.0% in real terms, the range of economic growth reported for the Netherlands, Austria,

Switzerland and Germany was lower, but nevertheless underlined the clear trend towards recovery in P
2004. One year earlier, Switzerland and the Netherlands had reported negative growth, and the German .
economy had continued to stagnate (2003: -0.1%). .

3righter economic prespests Jer Eermany

Germany witnessed an improvement in its economic framework as a result of the employment market
and tax reforms which took effect in 2004. Those German companies with international activities are .
well-positioned in the global markets and have pressed ahead with sometimes painful consolidation .
measures in order to adapt themselves to global competition.

K sax 20K

According to calculations made by the Federal Statistics Office, the GDP in Germany, which remains the
core European market of HORNBACH, rose by 1.6% in real terms in 2004. Following the weak economic
developments seen in the previous three years, this represents the strongest growth since 2000 (plus
2.9%). This growth is partly attributable to the fact that there were 4.7 more working days in the past

year than in 2003. Following adjustment to account for this calendar effect, GDP grew by 1.0%. The o
revival of the economy in 2004 was notably attributable to the buoyant level of international demand. -
Net exports, i.e. the balance of exports and imports, contributed 1.1 percentage points to GDP growth in ﬁ

real terms. However, the export motor lost its initial impetus in the second half of the year, not least on
account of the appreciation of the Euro. The overall picture therefore continued to be characterized hy the

[ ]
ongoing weakness of the domestic economy, which has not yet succeeded in reaching any breakthrough. .
Private consumer expenditure showed an overall decline of 0.4% in real terms in 2004. Nonetheless, the t
negative trend seen in the first nine months showed a slight turnaround into positive territory in the .
final quarter. Even if this does not necessarily reflect any permanent increase in consumers’ propensity .

to spend, there are nevertheless signs of a possible improvement in the situation for the retail sector in
Germany. The mood among private households has brightened up. According to the findings of the
monthly surveys undertaken by the Company for Consumer Research (GfK), a significant increase was
seen at the beginning of 2005 in the propensity of private households to make acquisitions. The
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Private

consumption
still waiting

to pick up.

=

consumer climate has shown positive developments. This is all the more surprising in view of the fact
that this subdued level of optimism has been able to put out shoots in spite of unemployment remaining
high in Germany.

The rise in unemployment was offset by an increase in the number of people in paid employment.
However, the latter increase mainly involved low-paid jobs (mini-jobs, so-called “one Eurc jobs”). The
number of employees contributing to the social security system continued to decline, The sharp rise in
the number of people registered unemployed to more than 5 million at the beginning of 2005 triggered a
discussion as to the real extent of underemployment in Germany. It should be noted in this respect,
however, that the rise in unemployment at the beginning of the year was in part a statistical effect
resulting from the merging of unemployment benefit and income support (Hartz IV). The unemployment
rate in Germany had risen to 12.6% by the end of February 2005 (previous year: 11.1%). It amounted to
10.4% in West Germany and to 20.7% in East Germany.

There was a slight increase (plus 0.4%) in public sector consumption expenditure. The decline in gross
fixed capital formation in 2004 (-0.9%) was lower than in the previous year (-2.2%). While more
investments were made in plant (plus 1.2%) and other equipment (plus 1.4%), building investments
continued to decline (-2.6%). However, this decline was not as severe as in the previous three years.
Investments in residential buildings showed a comparatively slight decline of 1.6%. The construction
industry was nevertheless faced with a considerable decline in the volume of public sector and
commercial construction orders (-8.7% and -4.5% respectively).

The increase in living costs remained moderate in spite of the rise in energy prices and of additional
health costs. This supported the purchasing power of private households. Inflation amounted to 1.6% in
2004, At 1.3%, the rise in disposable income in private households in 2004 was at around the same
level as the growth in private consumer expenditure (plus 1.2% in nominal terms). Between 1992 and
2000, the consumer expenditure of private households had risen more sharply than their disposable
income. The reverse was the case between 2001 and 2003. Consumers’ reluctance to make purchases
played a significant role in Germany’s poor economic perfarmance during this period. This trend
continued in 2004, Although the income tax reform meant that German citizens had a net average of
1.6% more in their wallets, the savings rate rose from 10.7% in the previous year to 10.9% in 2004,
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Further decling in retall sales

The insecurity on the part of consumers once again left a noticeable mark on the German retail sector.
Following disappointing Christmas sales, the sector concluded 2004 with a negative performance.
According to the Federal Statistics Office, retail sales (excluding automobile retail and gas stations) fell
by 1.6% in nominal terms (2003: -0.7%) and by 1.7% in real terms (2003: -0.8%). Hardly any areas of
the retail sector managed to report sales growth. The very small number of exceptions included furniture
and furnishings retailers and the DIY and home improvement sector, which is an indication of the
considerable backiog of consumer expenditure. Increasing numbers of German consumers are clearly no
longer willing to postpone large-scale acquisitions aimed at improving the quality of their personal
living space.

wixed develcpments in the UIY seclor

The German do-it-yourself and garden store (DIY) sector once again performed better than the overall
retail sector in 2004. {n the subdued consumer climate, however, the DIY segment only succeeded in
maintaining the sales growth witnessed in the previous year for the first six months of the year. Sales in
the segment showed disappointing developments in the second half of the year.

Based on figures released by the Federal Association of German Home Improvement, DIY and Specialist
Garden Stores (BHB), there were 4,332 DIY stores in Germany in 2004. Sales at the 3,211 DIY stores with
a sales area in excess of 1,000 m? (previous year: 3,150) rose by 1.0% to € 17.44 billion (previous year:
€ 17.27 billion). This sales growth came at the expense of small-scale DIY stores and standalone garden
centers. Sales at DIY stores with sales areas of less than 1,000 m? declined by 1.4% to € 4.21 billion
(previous year: £ 4.27 billion).The market volume of all DIY and garden stores in Germany relevant for
the measurement of market share therefore showed only a slight increase from € 21.54 billion in the
previous year to € 21.65 billion in 2004 (plus 0.5%).

According to calculations made by the BHB, like-for-like sales, i.e. not accounting for sales at newly
opened stores, showed a slight decline of 0.5% (previous year: plus 2.1%), even though this figure had
amounted to plus 0.6% in the middle of the year. One of the main reasons for this development was the
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fact that changeable weather conditions and high volumes of precipitation in the summer and autumn
months marred the results of gardening divisions, which on average contribute more than one fifth to
the overall sales of German DIY and home improvement stores. Overall, there was a decline in the
volume of plants, soil, fertilizer, garden wood, decorative articles and garden furniture sold compared
with the previous year. In contrast to the developments witnessed in previous years, in 2004 the BHB
also observed a shift on the part of home improvement customers away from decorative product ranges
towards construction-related hard DIY product ranges.

In the past financial year (March 1, 2004 to February 28, 2005), HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG once again
showed stronger growth than its competitors in the German DIY segment. Consolidated sales (excluding

7 ,:‘9 ® sales tax) rose by 8.9% during the year under report from € 1.923bn in the previous year to € 2.094bn.
- Sales in . ,
Around 67% of sales were generated by the DIY megastores with garden centers operated by
) Germa"y ‘ HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG in Germany (previous year: 68%). The net sales of these stores rose by 7.3%
7 up hy 7_3% to € 1.406bn (previous year: € 1.310bn). The growth rate therefore remains considerably higher than the

German sector average (0.5%). On February 28, 2005, the sales areas of all 88 outlets in Germany
amounted to around 857,000 m?, with an average German store size of 9,738 m.

- well ahove
sector average.

The 29 HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers in operation outside Germany at the reporting
ne . date - in Austria (11), the Netherlands (8), Luxembourg (1), the Czech Republic (4), Switzerland (3},
- Sweden (1) and Slovakia (1) — increased their net sales by 12.5% from € 611m to € 688m. The share
of consolidated sales generated by the international stores showed a slight increase to around 33%
{previous year: 32%). The average sales area of the international HORNBACH stores amounted to
11,705 m? as of the reporting date.

HORNBACH opened a total of five DIY megastores with garden centers during the year under report. In

Germany, these included on the one hand the opening of a new store in Osnabriick, and on the other
B hand the opening of new megastores in Firth and Braunschweig, both of which replaced the outdated
: existing locations in their respective catchment areas. In other European countries, stores opened their
= doors in Bratislava (Slovakia) and in Villeneuve on Lake Geneva (Switzerland).

At the end of the 2004/2005 financial year, a total of 113 DIY megastores with garden centers were in
operation across the Group (previous year: 110), as well as four standalone Lafiora garden centers,
which have been managed under the auspices of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG since March 1, 2004, With
total sales areas of 1,198,209 m? the average sales area per store amounted to 10,241 m? {previous
- year: 10,145 m?). This puts HORNBACH in a unique position among the larger-scale DIY store operators
- in Europe and makes it the market leader in the megastore segment, i.e. for stores with sales areas in
= excess of 10,000 m?,

JJxz-lor-1ias sales growth

Following the sharp growth in like-for-like sales reported for the 2003/2004 financial year (plus 5.2%
across the Group), HORNBACH succeeded in building on this already high leve! during the period under
report. Like-for-like sales rose by 1.5% across the Group. However, the company’s performance can be
divided into two periods in this respect. While the first and second quarters (March to August 2004)
once again saw highly dynamic growth, with like-for-like sales increasing by 2.3% and 6.2%
respectively, like-for-like sales in the third (-0.9%) and fourth (-2.2%) quarters turned negative and
thus followed the trend witnessed by the weakened overall DIY market in Germany during the past
autumn and winter.
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spite of the extremely aggressive pricing palicies on the part of competitors. This was partly attributable
to the clear and unmistakable positioning of the HORNBACH brand among enthusiastic home
improvement customers, as well as to the enhancements made to the large-scale sales format. However,
it was also due to the introduction of a new drive-in concept, which is currently being tested in several
HORNBACH DIY stores across the Group. This concept aims to provide customers with comfortable
access to the merchandise when buying cumbersome or heavy items, such as those in the construction
materials department. HORNBACH has thus underlined its traditional expertise in the segment of
construction-related products. The company has also adhered consistently to its permanent low price .
strategy, coupled with a price guarantee, in spite of the innumerable discount campaigns on the part of ‘
HE

N4
QOverall, like-for-like sales at the HORNBACH stores in Germany showed a slight improvement of 0.2% in E
[ ]
P
[ J

its competitors. Rising customer and sales figures demonstrate that consumers who have been rendered
insecure by the price wars in the German retail sector have confidence in the reliable pricing strategy,
product competence and quality of service offered by HORNBACH. According to independent marketing

surveys, HORNBACH has established itself among consumers as a leading brand in the DIY sector.

S e KR

year. In terms of the 2004 calendar year, like-for-like sales in the overall sector declined by 0.5%. Like-
for-like sales at HORNBACH, by contrast, rose by 1.9% over the same period. Between 1999 and 2004,
HORNBACH succeeded in improving the sales of its existing markets by 9% points, while the overall
market lost ground to the same extent. HORNBACH's lead over its competitors is even more apparent ot T s e
when its newly opened stores are accounted for. Since 1999, HORNBACH has grown by just under 56% in
the German market, which has only grown by a mere 2.6% in the past six calendar years. This is clearly 4 40/
reflected in the development of the market share of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG in Germany, which T/
improved from 4.9% in 1998 to 7.6% in 2004 (2003: 7.0%). like~far-like
sales grawth at
The company's sales performance outside Germany once again showed a pleasing growth trend. Thanks i"ternaﬁg“al
to its unmistakabie megastore format, HORNBACH is now very successfully established and has stores.
managed to acquire market share in seven other European countries. Like-for-like sales rose by 4.4% at
the international HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers over the four quarters. These stores -

L]
~urther rise in market share
In its core German market, HORNBACH has outperformed the overall sector for the sixth consecutive F
L]
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therefore made a major contribution to the successful performance of the Group once again in the
2004/2005 financial year.

Signifizant carnings growlh

1® e Earnings showed even stronger growth than sales during the 2004/2005 financial year. Operating
- EB"- fises earnings (EBIT) calculated in accordance with {FRS internation.al accounting standards increased by
. , 40.9% to € 91.0m (previous year: € 64.6m). Consolidated earnings before taxes and extraordinary items
hy 4‘% rose from € 43.8m in the previous year to € 68.0m (plus 55.3%), thus reaching a record high.
and reaches
record IGVEI. The very p!egsing develgpment of egmings iln the reporting period from March 1', 2094 to February 28,
2005 was primarily attributable to like-for-like sales growth, the earnings contributions of newly opened
stores, a lower level of pre-opening expenses, improved procurement conditions in spite of a slight

) ﬂ_c @ reduction in retail prices, and more efficient merchandise management. Moreover, the profits on
disposals made within the framework of sale and rent back transactions also contributed to the
pleasing results.

The gross profit of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group rose as a percentage of sales from 35.7% to
36.4% in spite of the further reduction in retail prices. This is principally due to the improved conditions
and additional purchasing sources in the company’s international procurement activities, which
' benefited from the cooperation with Kingfisher, as well as to the improved control and management of
- store inventories.

Compared with the previous year, the company's rate of expansion was curbed slightly in the 2004/2005
financial year, which had a positive impact on its earnings perfarmance. Following five new store
openings (previous year: eight), pre-opening expenses fell from € 10.8m in the previous year to € 9.7m
(minus 10.6%). They therefore declined as a percentage of net sales from 0.6% to 0.5%. This cost
category includes those expenses incurred prior to the opening of a new HORNBACH DIY megastore with
a garden center. These mainly involve personnel expenses.
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The Group's selling and store operating expenses rose as a proportion of sales in the 2004/2005
financial year. They amounted to € 603.9m (previous year: € 549.2m). As a percentage of net sales,
selling and store operating expenses amounted to 28.8% at the reporting date (previous year: 28.6%).
This increase is primarily attributable to a higher fevel of personnel and operating expenses.

The Group’s general and administration expenses also rose as a percentage of sales in the 2004/2005
financial year to reach € 81.6m (previous year: € 71.2m). This is principally due to the preparations for
the conversion of the existing merchandising system to SAP. Moreover, this item also includes the start-
up costs relating to the development of administrative structures in Sweden and Slovakia. The
administration expenses ratio (as a percentage of net sales) rose from 3.7% t0 3.9%.

The personnel expenses included in the selling, store, general and administration expenses increased by
10.6% from € 307.7m to € 340.4m. This is mainly due to the introduction of SAP and to regionally
promoted measures to enhance customer advisory services.

At € 61.3m, the depreciation of fixed assets was 1.6% lower than in the previous year (€ 62.3m). This
figure includes extraordinary depreciation amounting to € 4.3m (previous year: € 3.9m) resulting from a
decline in the current value of land not used for operating purposes. The company aircraft was also
subject to extraordinary depreciation in the previous year.

The extraordinary result reported in the income statement, which mainly consists of income from
advertising expense grants, income from the disposal of assets, income from exchange rate differences
and other income, as well as expenses relating to the taking of provisions for loss-making rental
agreements, extraordinary depreciation and expenses relating to exchange rate differences, increased by
£€13.2mto € 23.2m, mainly as a result of the sale of three retail properties. In the course of the
financial year, the HORNBACH DIY megastore with a garden center and the builders merchants
warehouse in Binzen, as well as the properties in Sindelfingen and Villeneuve, were sold to real estate
companies and rented back on a long-term basis. The sale and rent back transactions generated profits
on disposal amounting to € 10.2m.

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) rose by 20.0% to € 152.3m
(previous year: € 126.9m). The EBITDA margin thus improved from 6.6% in the previous year to 7.3%.
Operating earnings (EBIT) recorded an increase of 40.9% to € 91.0m (previous year: € 64.6m). The EBIT
margin rose from 3.4% to 4.3%.

The consolidated earnings before taxes and the extraordinary result of € 68.0m include accounting
profits amounting to around € 10.2m from sale and rent back transactions (previous year: € 0.8m). The
return on sales before taxes and the extraordinary result improved from 2.3% to 3.2%.

The consolidated net income of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group rose by 54.7% from € 28.0m to
€43.3m. The return on sales after taxes increased from 1.5% to 2.1%. The Group's undiluted earnings
per share calculated in accordance with IFRS taking account of the 86,330 new shares arising in the
2004/2005 financial year in connection with the company’s 1999 share option plan also showed a
significant improvement from € 1.86 to € 2.88.

erowih at home and a2road

The international HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers made a particularly significant
contribution to the considerable improvement in the earnings performance in the 2004/2005 financial
year. According to the company's segment reporting, the EBITDA for Germany amounted to € 95.3m
{previous year: € 87.0m). This is equivalent to a 62% share of the EBITDA of the overall HORNBACH-
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Baumarkt-AG Group (previous year: 68%). The earnings contribution (EBITDA) of the HORNBACH
International subgroup, at which all of the activities outside Germany are pooled, showed a significant
increase during the reporting period, rising from € 40.3m to € 57.2m. The international share of the
overall EBITDA figure therefore increased from 32% to 38%. If this figure is compared with the
respective share of sales, the significance of the HORNBACH stores in other European countries for the
Group’s earnings performance becomes apparent. At the same time, this also reflects the success of the
Group’s international expansion strategy. HORNBACH has succeeded in rolling out its large-scale retail
format, which moulds the competition, as an “export hit” in a wide variety of country markets and has
gradually acquired market share. With the exception of the countries most recently accessed by
HORNBACH (Sweden and Slovakia, each with only one store as yet), the operations in all countries
outside Germany made a clear profit following the deduction of general and administration expenses.

The HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers in Austria contributed a higher level of earnings to
the consolidated earnings for the 2004/2005 financial year than in the previous year. Although the
competitive climate was similarly difficult to that in Germany, earnings rose as a proportion of sales.
Following the rapid pace of expansion in the three previous years, no new stores were opened during the
2004/2005 financial year. The improvement in earnings was principally due to a year-on-year
improvement in the gross margin and to cost savings in store operations and administration. At the
reporting date, the network of locations in Austria comprised 11 stores with sales areas totaling
131,000 m2,

The HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers in the Netherlands once again reported a highly
dynamic earnings performance. This development was mainly attributable to like-for-like sales growth,
to improvements in the gross margin and to a reduction in the selling, store, general and administration
expenses ratio. As in the previous year, the network of HORNBACH locations in the Netherlands consisted
of eight megastores with sales areas totaling around 82,400 m? at the reporting date.

During the year under report, the HORNBACH DIY megastore with a garden center in Luxembourg
maintained the successful business performance witnessed in previous years. In view of the duchy’s
continuing economic buoyancy, the store’s operating earnings contributions showed a significant
increase as a proportion of sales.
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The HORNBACH stores in the Czech Republic also showed a pleasing growth trend. A year-on-year
increase in the gross margin and declining selling, store, general and operating expense ratios enabled
earnings to rise as a proportion of sales. The HORNBACH megastore format is a fixed reference point in
the Czech DIY market. With four locations (unchanged on the previous year) and sales areas totaling
48,600 m?, HORNBACH was able to increase its market share during the 2004/2005 financial year.

With the opening of a new store in Villeneuve on Lake Geneva in November 2004, the store network in
Switzerland was extended to its current total of three locations with sales areas of 35,100 m®. The high
level of acceptance shown by Swiss consumers for the HORNBACH megastore format is reflected in
pleasing sales increases and strong earnings growth,

e & &

The Gothenburg location in Sweden has one of the strongest sales performances of all HORNBACH DIY
megastores with garden centers. Additional focations will be opened in Sweden in future in order to
amortize the high level of start-up expenses relating to the development of the country organization and
pre-opening expenses as rapidly as possible.

The market entry into Slovakia in August 2004 represented a further milestone in the history of the
Group. The DIY megastore with a garden center in Bratislava, which has sales areas of around 16,000 m?
and a drive-in construction materials facility, reported a pleasing sales performance in its first six
months. Earnings were negatively affected by start-up expenses, but were nevertheless above
expectations.

Sigaificant new soyrcs of fineneing accessed -
The 2004/2005 financial year was a noteworthy year for HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG from the perspective Successful
of the capital market. For the first time in its history, the company issued a bond and thus accessed a %
significant new source of debt financing. The corporate bond, which has a term of ten years and an premlere on
interest coupon of 6.125%, was successfully placed with institutional investors in Europe on November hﬂnd maﬂ(Et.
12, 2004. As a result of the high level of demand on the part of investors, the volume of the bond, which [}gmpany ;ating;
had originally been set at € 200 million, was stocked up by € 50 million. B8/Bal.

Within the framework of the bond issue, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG was granted a public rating for the
first time by the rating agencies Standard & Poor’s and Moody's. The company rating was recorded with
an initial grade of BB/BaZ with a stable outlook. Apart from the Metra Group, HORNBACH is the only
German retail company to have a public company rating. The rating of the corporate bond was set at
BB-/Ba3. It is HORNBACH's medium-term goal to further improve the credit rating provided by the rating
agencies and thus to improve its future refinancing possibilities. The BB/Ba2 rating places HORNBACH
just below an investment grade in the so-called cross-over area of the high yield market.

d

Greater security and fexibility

The corporate bond represents an important step towards achieving a permanent improvement in the
capital structure of the Group. The inflow of funds received from the bond was used on the one hand to
pay back the short-term debt of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group in full by the end of the 2004/2005
financial year. Short-term debt had been built up in the past in order to provide interim financing for
reserve real estate in connection with the Group’s international expansion and for the advance financing
of construction measures. On the cther hand, the inflow of funds has provided liquidity for the future
growth of the company.

for group financing. These changes involved agreeing committed credit lines with terms of several years
with various banks. The committed credit lines have replaced credit lines which had been terminable

T B e et b

The structural changes made to credit lines had a further positive impact on the underlying conditions E
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without notice. At the reporting date on February 28, 2005, only 2% of the credit lines of € 222m
available to the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group (previous year: € 182m) had been utilized (previous
year: 58%). The company therefore has a high degree of security and flexibility for financing its further
growth,

zquity retio al 31.3% - improvement 0 sapitel structure

The consolidated balance sheet total rose by € 111.5m, or 9.6%, on the previous year to reach

€ 1,273.8m. The extension of the balance sheet is primarily attributable to the issuing of the corporate
bond.

Following the exercising of subscription rights relating to the 1999 share option plan for the first time, a
total of 86,330 new non-par ordinary shares in the company were issued during the 2004/2005 financial
year by means of a conditional capital increase. The issuing of these new shares resulted in the
company’s share capital increasing by € 258,990 to its current total of € 45,293,490.00 divided into
15,097,830 ordinary shares (previous year: 15,011,500).

The sharehalders’ equity of the Group amounted to € 398.6m at the end of the financial year (previous
year: € 363.4m). At 31.3%, the equity ratio was at the same level as in the previous year.

Long-term assets amounted to € 650.9m at the reporting date (previous year: € 654.2m) and thus made
up around 51% of the balance sheet total (previous year: 56%). As a result of the prepayments made in
connection with the SAP Retail project, intangible assets rose by € 10.3m to € 25.5m, Property, plant
and equipment reduced from € 621.6m to € 609.8m. Short-term assets rose by around 23% from
€508.1m to € 622.9m, or to around 49% of the balance sheet total (previous year: 44%). This increase
is primarily attributable to the increase in cash and cash equivalents {plus € 94.7m) resulting from

the bond issue. Moregver, accounts receivable and other assets rose from € 34.6m in the previous year
to € 53.3m, primarily as a result of the purchasing price receivable relating to the Binzen property

(€ 18.5m) reported as of February 28, 2005.

Liabilities, including provisions, amounted to € 875.2m on the reporting date on February 28, 2003,
compared with € 799.0m in the previous year. Long-term liabilities increased from € 335.4m to

€ 560.6m. This increase is principally due to the rise in long-term financial debt, which rose by 75% to
€ 501.6m following the bond issue. Long-term liabilities include deferred tax liabilities amounting to

€ 46.8m (previous year: € 42.0m). The reorganization of the capital structure resuiting from the inflow of
funds is apparent from the reduction in short-term liabilities from € 463.6m to € 314.6m. On account of
the repayment of bank loans, short-term financial debt fell by 69% from € 129.0m in the previous year
to € 40.1m as of February 28, 2005. Moreover, the liabilities to affiliated companies were reduced from
€72.6mto €2.8m.

Accounts payable and other liabilities showed an overall reduction of € 57.3m to € 214.2m.

The net debt of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group, i.e. the financial debt less cash and cash
squivalents, amounted to € 398.4m at the reporting date {previous year € 366.9m).

The cash flow statement provides a more detailed account of the company's financing activities.
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Investments in stores and intrastruciure

During the 2004/2005 financial year, a total of € 87.9m was invested in the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
Group {previous year: € 72.5m), primarily in land and buildings, as well as in plant and office
equipment. The funds for the investments with cash effect (€ 92.2m) were provided by the free cash

i

flow. R
) , , , -]

Around 40% of the investment total involved new real estate, including advance payments and assets o
under construction. Around 60% of the investment total related to the replacement and extension of .

plant and office equipment, as well as to intangible assets (predominantly IT software).

One principal aspect in this respect was the investment made in harmonizing the company’s main IT
systems using SAP. Considerable funds (€ 13.6m vs. € 4.9m in the previous year) flowed into hardware
equipment, software licenses and the implementation of SAP. The SAP FI/CO module commenced real-

L 2 M

time operations at the beginning of the 2004/2005 financial year. At the same time, the main focus of °

the project activities during the year under report was on the replacement of the existing merchandise @ T e G—

system with SAP Retail. Following the conversion of the central merchandising activities in the head ) e ene

office functions, the 2005/2006 financial year wil! see the gradual conversion of all stores and logistics Slgmfma‘ﬂt

centers to SAP. sSums

R o _ invested in

The most significant investment projects involved the DIY megastores with garden centers opened conversion of

during the 2004/2005 financial year in Osnabriick, Fiirth and Braunschweig, and at the Bratislava merchandising v

(Slovakia) and Villeneuve (Switzerland) locations, as well as the acquisition of land for the further ¢

expansion of the company. The stores in Binzen (including builders merchants warehouse), Sindelfingen to SAP-

and Villeneuve were sold to real estate companies during the period under report and rented back on a @ @.ﬁ

long-term basis (sale and rent back). As in the past, the sale and rent back transactions served to .

release funds to finance further growth. The respective rights of utilization were agreed on a long-term .

basis. Moreover, rental prolongation and purchase options were also agreed in most cases. +
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The Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has always been committed to risk-conscious
corporate management which accords top priority to securing the ongoing existence of the overall
company. To provide clarity in this respect, binding risk policy principles have been set out for all group
employees.

The generation of economic profit necessarily involves the taking of risks. Nonetheless, no action or
decision may entail any threat to the company’s continued existence. Entrepreneurial risks have to be
rewarded with an appropriate return on the capital committed. The performance of all stores is assessed
on the basis of their CFROA figures, i.e. the cash flow return on assets. Efforts are made to achieve
ongoing improvements in these figures. Risks which cannot be avoided have to be insured against, to
the extent that this is possible and economically expedient. Residual risks have to be controlled by
means of a range of risk management instruments. These include the use of a continually updated risk
matrix depicting all significant economic risks, their probabilities of occurrence and their potential
financial impact.

The financing of the company is subject to general risks in terms of interest rate changes, liquidity risks
and risks resulting from fluctuations in the flow of payments. The long-term financial debt within the
company's financing structure is generally agreed with a fixed interest rate. Where this is not the case,
interest rate swaps are agreed for those secured financing instruments in order to exclude any risks
relating to possible interest rate changes. Only short-term financing is subject to the risk of interest
rate changes. This financing has been paid back in full, however, within the framework of the issuing of
the bond at the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group.

Thanks to the inflow of funds from the corporate bond, the complete repayment of short-term financial
debt in the 2004/2005 financial year and the structural changes made to its credit lines, the liquidity
risk faced by the company has been minimized. Liquidity requirements are manitored with the
assistance of rolling twelve-month financial planning tools.

HORNBACH makes use of derivative financial instruments in order to reduce the impact of any changes
in interest rates or exchange rates on the company's flow of payments. The effectiveness of such
derivatives is monitored on an ongoing basis. HORNBACH uses derivative financial instruments
exclusively for covering its business risks and not for speculative purposes.

Furthermore, a wide variety of early warning risk identification and risk monitoring instruments is
employed within HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG and its subsidiaries. The group accounting function is highly
sophisticated and facilitates in-depth, up-to-date reporting. Consolidated balance sheets and income
statements are promptly compiled an a8 monthly basis and presented to the decision makers. The
reporting activities are supplemented by relevant key figures, variance analyses and commentaries from
the controlling department.

The medivm-term (five-year) corporate and financial planning is undertaken on an annual basis and
facilitates the identification of risks to the company’s earnings and liquidity at an early étage. It forms
the basis for the annual operating budget. This is compiled with great care and in detail down to the
level of the individual store and serves as a measure of performance in all areas of the company.

Detailed variance analyses based on comparisons with the annual budget and the previous year's
figures are compiled on a monthly basis. Major investment decisions are made on the basis of dynamic
investment calculations and sensitivity analyses. Investments relating to new locations are prepared on
the basis of detailed market research studies. The Board of Management has set minimum targets for
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the expected return on projects based on the internal rate of return. The detailed financial pfanning A
relating to the forthcoming twelve months is updated on a monthly basis. The Board of Management
generally meets once a week. Major investment decisions are prepared by the Expansion Committee. The

Board of Management is provided with regular progress reports for the most important projects in the IT .
division. ;
The auditing duties across the Group have been performed by the HORNBACH HOLDING AG group internal .
audit department since the 2003/2004 financial year. This department undertakes regular store .
inspections both in Germany and abroad, and also began auditing administrative processes and the risk .
management system in the 2004/2005 financial year. .:
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7,000 new jobs crealed at HORNBACK

The growth of the Group is also reflected in the number of its employees. At the reporting date on o
February 28, 2005, there were 10,960 individuals in active fixed employment at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG R
or at one of its subsidiaries (previous year: 9,852). This marks an increase of 1,108, or 11.2%, on the 3
end of the previous financial year in February 2004. Taking account of the employees of Lafiora o
HORNBACH Florapark GmbH, which was merged with HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG as of March 1, 2004, a .
total of 1,000 new jobs have been created across the Group. The number of employees in Germany rose .
from 6,638 to 7,229. According to the magazine “Wirtschaftswoche”, HORNBACH is therefore among the

largest creators of jobs in the country. Of all German companies, the HORNBACH Group occupied 14th A
position in this respect in 2004, compared with 21st position in 2002 and 12th position in 2003. The .
company's traditional commitment to Germany is also reflected in the fact that HORNBACH is one of only N
eleven companies in the country to have created new jobs every year over the past five years.
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The number of employees abroad rose from 3,214 to 3,731. As an annual average and converted into
full-time equivalents, the overall HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group had 9,407 employees (previous year:
8,499).

The employees are the representatives of the company's culture and the key to its success. A great deal
of energy is therefore channeled into their training and development. During the year under report, an
average of 596 young people were provided with a training position (previous year: 535). The largest
share of these were the 339 trainees aiming to qualify as retail sales personnel (previous year: 328).
Moreover, the store and administration employees also took part in numerous training measures,
programs to promote the upcoming generation, and management seminars. These focused on topics
such as the provision of high-quality advice to customers, product expertise and efficient processes in
the organization of operations,

Tiuidend remairs tnehangad

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG is maintaining the longstanding continuity of its dividend policy. The dividend
has remained stable since the 1994/1995 financial year. As in the previous year, the Eoard of
Management and the Supervisory Board will therefore propose the payment of a dividend of € 0.87 per
erdinary share for approval by the Annual General Meeting on September 1, 2005.

Jersrdant comiany rapoert
Pursuant to Section 312 of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG), a report on the relationships to affiliated
companies was compiled for the 2004/2005 financial year. In respect of those transactions requiring
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report, the report states: “Our company has received an adequate counterperformance for all legal A
transactions executed with affiliated companies in accordance with the circumstances known to us at
the time at which the legal transactions were executed, and has not been disadvantaged by such
transactions.”

{ ]
.
Tiher zvents during the year under report k
The Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has been expanded. The former Marketing R
Director, Jiirgen Schricker, was appointed as a new member of the Board of Management with effect .

from October 1, 2004. He has taken over the newly created board division “Marketing and Market
Research”. Jiirgen Schrocker has made a key contribution to the redesigning of the marketing and
advertising strategy of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG since 2000. The advertising campaigns in the print
media and on TV, which have received several awards, have made a major contribution to the successful
creation of the HORNBACH brand.

3 AR

A basic agreement (pre-contract) with a renowned real estate company was notarized on February 12,
2005. The agreement provides for the sale and long-term renting back of HORNBACH DIY megastores
with garden centers in the 2005/2006 financial year (Berlin, Remseck and Kiel). The property in Binzen
was already sold to the same company during the 2004/2005 financial year.

Zvzents of signi®sance suksequent te the reporting date
The new SAP Retail merchandise system commenced operations on March 1, 2005, initially for the °
central applications at the head office. The faunch was an overall success. The first HORNBACH DIY
megastore with a garden center was converted to SAP-supported store
merchandise software at the end of March 2005. The rollout to all stores
S T t across the Group and the conversion of group logistics to SAP is expected
to be completed by the end of the 2005/2006 financial year. The
conversion of HORNBACH's IT system landscape to SAP is one of the
largest projects of its kind in Europe.
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There have been no further events of significance for the assessment of the net asset, financial or
earnings position of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG or of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group subsequent to
the conclusion of the fast financial year.

Jproriunilizs ang risis of future cevelenment
The company's rapid expansion into one of the leading European DIY companies entails both
opportunities and risks.

On the one hand, a high level of investment is required and start-up losses have to be temporarily
absorbed. In the past, investment funds have principally been obtained from the disposable cash flow,
from long-term mortgage loans for land and buildings, and from the sale and rent back of real estate.
The inflow of funds from sale and rent back transactions in particular could be affected by market
fluctuations in the real estate sector. {n view of the more restrictive lending policies on the part of
banks (Basle 11), neither a restriction of the available financing possibilities nor an increase in interest
rates as a result of rating changes can be excluded.

On the other hand, the company’s financing base could be expanded by making use of new instruments
on the debt capital market. The successful issuing of the corporate bond with a volume of € 250m in
November 2004 and the structural changes to the credit lines during the year under report have made a
key contribution in this respect.

Furthermore, the company's new locations reinforce the market position of HORNBACH and promise to
generate high sales growth and earnings contributions. The business mode! of HORNBACH is well-known
and accredited. The company is able to rely on a broad foundation of mature business relationships with
the capital markets, its financing banks, real estate companies, and with the autharities on local,
regional and state levels. HORNBACH has established itself with consumers as a synonym for attractive
DIY stores and garden centers offering the best products, services and prices.

Overall, there were no risks to the ongoing existence of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group or to the
continuation of its development at the reporting date.
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According to the assessment provided by the German Bundesbank at the beginning of the year, the
prospects for the global economy achieving ahove-average growth in 2005 remain favorable. However,
there is considerable potential for setbacks in this respect. The main risk factors include the R
development of the oil price, which reached all-time highs in March and April 2005, as well as the high R
US current account deficit, which could trigger significant fluctuations in exchange rates. According to s
Eurostat, the economic recovery will alse be maintained in the Eurozone in the current year. ol
L ]

A question mark remains as to the upturn forecast for Germany. The German economy still lacks the
momentum required to move on from the initial stage of economic recovery. Germany will continue to
benefit from its exports, but the domestic economy is only making very tentative progress. Following the
brightening up of the husiness climate in Germany in February, the assessments as to the current
situation and the course of business in the remainder of 2005 have clouded over once again,
particularly in the manufacturing and retail sectors. A number of economic research institutes and bank
economists have downgraded their forecasts for 2005. Overall, Germany is expected to generate an 'Q
unsatisfactory level of economic growth in 2005 (plus 0.7%). According to the German Bundesbank,
“there is no cause for pessimism with regard to the current year.” At the same time, in view of the high

O SRR

i

level of unemployment and the slow pace of reform in the country, German consumers still find it 2005 -
difficult to be optimistic. The consumer climate finds itself in a precarious balance. The retail sector is another dlffmult
the first to feel the effects. year fur the Germa“

retail sector.
Sector experts do not expect the DIY retail sector to witness any significant like-for-like sales growth in

2005. Competition will remain intense and will increase the pressure on prices and costs at DIY store
operators. Against this background, the consolidation of the sector is the subject of ongoing discussion, 4
with a wide variety of different scenarios being conceivable. The speed at which a significant reduction

in the number of players in the market will be achieved, and the question as to whether or when larger-

scale surface capacities will disappear from the market continues to be surrounded by uncertainty.

From HORNBACH’s perspective, it is unlikely that there will be any rapid market adjustment resulting
from the pulling out of entire DIY chains. In contrast to the concentrated DIY markets in the UK and in
France, the highly fragmented structure of the German DIY store sector would not permit such a
development at present. The consolidation will rather take place at “the back end”, i.e. unprofitable
surfaces will be taken out of circulation. The economic pressure on DIY operators with unprofitable
operations and disadvantageous store portfolios will appreciate considerably, not least because of the
restriction of financing opportunities resulting from the more critical lending policies of the banks
(Basle II).

Thanks to its unique, large-scale retail format and to its structural advantages, which are reflected in
particular in the highest surface productivity of the German top 10 and in its profitability, the
HORNBACH Group sees the German market as harboring further growth potential. Moreover, the company
will also focus on the goal of achigving an even more closely-knit network of stores in other European

o
countries, which are considered to harbor even greater growth opportunities. A significant contribution .
to the company’s economic success is provided by its close operating cooperation with Kingfisher, the "
largest DIY group in Europe, which has considerably raised HORNBACH's market power, particularly in R
the field of procurement, :
: ]

The company’s medium-term corporate planning (five years) provides for a guideline average of seven
new store openings per vear. Depending on the progress made in the building permit and construction
planning stages, some slight discrepancies between the individual years can be expected in this _
respect. It can be expected that on average mare than half of the new store openings will take place
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outside Germany in the next five financial years. This planning is based on the assumption that
Germany will generate a lower level of like-for-like sales growth than other European countries. The
company's sales growth is expected to exceed the sector performance by a significant margin and to
contributed to a further rise in its market share. The turnover of goods and DIY services is to be
supported by the enhancement of the HORNBACH concept on its sales areas, as well as by new
marketing and advertising concepts. The company’s expansion planning attaches particular importance
to achieving a balanced relationship between earnings power (cash flow) and investment volumes.

de @
) HORNBACH plans to open a total of nine new stores during the 2005/2006 financial year. Five locations
Nmﬂ are on the agenda in Germany: Berlin, Frankfurt am Main, Wiirzburg, Kiel and Munich. The HORNBACH
store upenings ‘ DIY megastore with a garden center opened in Mannheim-Neckarau in 1982, which is no longer up-to-
and investments date, will be closed in the current financial year. A total of up to four new stores have been planned at
of more than € 170m HORNBACH International GmbH. These involve new stores in Sweden, Slovakia, the Czech Republic and
_ pla“ned the Netherlands. Upon this report going to print, new stores had been opened in Malmé (Sweden) and in
) Kosice (Slovakia). The opening of a HORNBACH DIY megastore with a garden center in Alblasserdam
) near Rotterdam (Netherlands), which had already been scheduled for the 2003/2004 financial year, is

qQ @ planned to take place in the 2005/2006 financial year following several delays attributable to planning
requirements.

Overall, the number of HORNBACH DIY megastores and garden centers, taking account of the closure of
one location, will rise by up to eight to a total of 125 by the end of the current financial year. In
addition, a third logistics center will have commenced operations by the end of the current financial
year. The central shipment location in Vilshofen is intended to supply the HORNBACH locations in
Bavaria, Saxony, Baden-Wiirttemberg, as well as those in Austria, the Czech Republic and Slovakia.

As a result of the higher number of new store openings compared with the previous year, and of
increased investments in the modernization of the existing store network, the planned investment
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volume at the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group of around € 173m will be considerably higher than the
equivalent figure for the previous year (€ 88m). The investments are to be mainly financed by drawing
on the disposable operating cash flow, the liquidity from the corporate bond and from the release of
funds from sale and rent back transactions.

In the past, HORNBACH has built up a position of strength in a very difficult competitive environment,
particularly in the German market. In 2004/2005, its earnings reached an absolute record level.
HORNBACH assumes that the pricing competition in the DIY sector will remain tough and has accounted
for this in its sales and earnings forecasts for the current financial year. These assume that the net
sales of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group will grow to around € 2.3 billion. Consolidated earnings
before taxes are expected to fall short of the level achieved in the 2004/2005 financial year. This is due
to two main reasons:

R < BTN 2

-® h—'o .

On the one hand, HORNBACH is prepared to accept a decline in its gross margin in order to secure its
price leadership in the event that individual DIY competitors introduce even more aggressive pricing
policies. The company will thus secure additional room for maneuver, even if this could tempaorarily have
a negative impact on its earnings.

On the other hand, account has been taken of a higher level of pre-opening expenses, and of one-off
project-related expenses in connection with the introduction of SAP, as well as of a lower level of profits
on disposal in connection with sale and rent back transactions.
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This annual report contains statements relating to the future based on assumptions and estimates .
made by the Board of Management of HORNBACH. Although we assume that the expectations reflected

in these forecast statements are realistic, the company can provide no guarantee that these R
expectations will turn out to be accurate. The assumptions may involve risks and uncertainties which

could result in significant variances between actual events and the forecast statements. The factors t
which could produce such variances include changes in the economic and commercial environment,
particularly in respect of consumer behavior and the competitive environment in those retail markets of
relevance for HORNBACH. Furthermore, they include a lack of acceptance of new sales formats or new
product ranges, as well as changes to the corporate strategy. HORNBACH has no plans to update the
forecast statements, neither does it accept any obligation to do so.
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Executive Bodies

Supervisory 3eard

Gerhard Wolf
Chairman

Graduate in Business Administration, Worms

Rudolf Helfer *
Deputy Chairman

Senior Specialist for Occupational Safety,

Bornheim

Dr. Wolfgang Rupf
Deputy Chairman
Managing Director

AKV Altkénig Verwaltungs GmbH, Kdnigstein

Kerstin Heidtke *

Sales Assistant, Saarbricken Store

Albert Wilhelm Hornbach
Director

HORNBACH Familientreuhand GmbH

Annweiler am Trifels

Albrecht Hornbach

Chairman of the Board of Management

HORNBACH HOLDING AG
Neustadt an der Weinstrasse

Otmar Hornbach
Director

HORNBACH Familientreuhand GmbH

Annweiler am Trifels

Christian Lilie *

District Manager, Southern Region

Johannes 0tto *

Assistant Store Manager, Mannheim-Neckarau

Ralf Puley *

Assistant Store Manager, Wuppertal

Dirk Reimers *
Trade Union Secretary
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William John Whiting until June 18, 2005
Company Director

Kingfisher plc, London

* employee representative
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Audit Committee
Gerhard Wolf

Rudolf Helfer

Dr. Wolfgang Rupf
Albrecht Hornbach
William John Whiting until June 18, 2005
Personnel Committee
Gerhard Wolf

Rudolf Helfer

Dr. Wolfgang Rupf
Otmar Hornbach
William John Whiting until June 18, 2005
Mediation Committee

Gerhard Wolf

Rudolf Helfer

Dr. Wolfgang Rupf

Albrecht Hornbach

William John Whiting until June 18, 2005
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Board ¢f Management Roland Pelka
Graduate in Business Administration

The members of the Board of Management Finance, Accounting, Controlling
and their areas of responsibility: Investor Relations, Legal Department A
»
Steffen Hornbach Bernd Rob b
Chairman Graduate in Business Administration .
Graduate in Engineering Stores, Store Organization, Personnel .
Company Development, Store Development, Management .
Communications & Partner Services,
Technical Procurement, Internal Audit, Jiirgen Schracker [
Public Relations Graduate in Business Administration :
Marketing and Market Research ®
Or. Bernd Liibcke ‘ *
Graduate in Mathematics Manfred Valder
IT, Logistics Businessman
Procurement and Sales, Merchandising,
Environmental Issues
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Gerhard Wolf

e

As in previous years, the consolidated financial statements of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG as of February
28, 2005 have been compiled in accordance with international accounting standards (IFRS). On the
basis of their earlier discussion of the subject, the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board
concerned themselves with the individual stipulations of the German Corporate Governance Codex. The

. great majority of the recommendations contained in the Codex continue to be met. The Board of

= Management and the Supervisory Board have submitted their Statement of Compliance pursuant to
Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). The only recommendations not implemented for
reasons provided in the Statement of Compliance are as follows: the disclosure of the remuneration of
the Board of Management and Supervisory Board on an individual basis, the setting of an upper age
limit for members of the Supervisory Board, the recommendation that no more than two former members
of the Board of Management should sit on the Supervisory Board, the setting of parameters of
comparison in the context of the share option plan and the recommendation that the consclidated
financial statements should be made available to the general public within 90 days of the end of the
financial year under report.

The annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG as
of February 28, 2005, as well as the management report and group management report, have been

proposed resolutions were discussed in detail. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board also maintained
regular contact with the Board of Management, and in particular with its Chairman, cutside scheduled
meetings to discuss significant issues and also held a number of consultations. The Audit Committee
met on two occasions and dealt in particular with the audit of the annual financial statements, the
strategic and operating budgets, the risk report and the financial situation of the company. The
Personnel Committee held one meeting. In view of the significance of marketing and market research as
a critical success factor in the development of the company and given the further growth and increasing
internationalization of the company, the Board of Management has been expanded. Jiirgen Schrocker

= was therefore appointed to the Board of Management with effect of Octaber 1, 2004. He is responsible

- for the marketing and market research division. No meeting of the Mediation Committee was held.

Report of the Supervisory Board

™

Dear Lzdies and Gentlemar,

During the past 2004/2005 financial year, the Supervisory Board performed
its duties in accordance with the requirements of the law and of the articles
of association of the company, monitoring the Board of Management's
conduct of business, assisting it in an advisory capacity and ensuring that it
was informed on a regular basis as to the general course of business and
the situation of the company. In doing so, it concerned itself in detail with
the strategic development and business policy of the company and consulted
the Board of Management.

In its four scheduled meetings, the Supervisory Board held extensive
discussions with the Board of Management as to the economic situation of
the company, the course of business, business policy, investment and
financial policy, as well as the risk and opportunity situation and risk
management at the company on the basis of oral and written reports
provided by the Board of Management. In addition, the Board of Management
provided regular written and oral reports on the situation of the company
and the development of its earnings and financial situation. Moreover, all
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audited and provided with an unqualified audit opinion by the auditing company appointed at the
Annual General Meeting, KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Geselischaft AG, Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft,
Frankfurt am Main. Furthermore, the auditors examined the early warning system in place at
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG. This review led to the conclusion that the system was fulfilling its function,
KPMG was appointed to audit the annual financial statements by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
on behalf of the entire Supervisory Board in accordance with the resolution passed at the Annual
General Meeting. The annual financial statements, the management reports and the auditor’s report
were submitted to the Supervisory Board in good time for their inspection. The Audit Committee examined
the annual financial statements in great detail. At its subsequent meeting, the Supervisory Board also
examined the documents and discussed them with the Board of Management. The auditors attended both
meetings, reported on the principal findings of their audit and were available to answer any questions. The
Supervisory Board expressed its agreement with the findings of the audit, which contained no objections.

The Supervisory Board has examined the annual financial statements and consolidated financial
statements of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG compiled by the Board of Management for the 2004/2005
financial year and has approved them. The annual financial statements are therefore adopted.

The Supervisory Board endorses the proposal put forward by the Board of Management with regard to
the appropriation of earnings.

Furthermore, the Supervisory Board also reviewed the report provided by the Board of Management on
relationships with affiliated companies pursuant to Section 312 of the German Stock Corporation Act
{AktG). Neither this review nor the KPMG audit gave rise to any objections. KPMG granted the following
audit opinion:

“On the basis of the audit and assessment undertaken by us in accordance with professional standards,

we confirm that:

1. the facts presented in the report are accurate

2. the performance of the company in respect of the transactions set out in the report was not
incommensurably high

3. in respect of the measures stated in the report, there are no circumstances which would speak for
any assessment significantly different from that made by the Board of Management.”

On the basis of its conclusive review, the Supervisory Board has no objections to the statement provided

by the Board of Management at the end of its report pursuant to Section 312 of the German Stock

Corporation Act.

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has once again successfully maintained its position in a highly competitive
market and has achieved very pleasing sales and earnings growth. This is also a result of the consistent
gnhancement of its inherent strengths. The prospects are good for further growth at HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG.

The Supervisory Board would like to extend its thanks to the Board of Management and to all of the
company's employees, both in Germany and abroad, for their commitment and their successful efforts
over the past financial year.

Bornheim, June 2005

The Supervisory Board
Gerhard Wolf

[ 8"0, i'—m

R M S

R . RO 2N jeee 2N s 2 20 KT

- ey Jar

Chairman
P T T e T e T T A _._____‘7’_—7’1&7&__«::_,;(_:-_..fw. =N AN s T =S P — L - Ll
08 1 Bra Repoilli asenilEEcutivelBodies] 48-43 | Report of Supervisory Board 50RgoliEnancialltatenents| 100 J Ardiars Gaper




Al
WA

Laan

v
N

. .......::::.-:;A—W
B ,.:.1:::::;:4'

,,.),,,,,,,,,,,,,,f,—

VALY

NTITIIIINNRAA

\ _,.,'yf_A,,'rr—;f

TR N
T T VAL

)

i






Income Statement

S 0 Smel Srmen Omemio OO G Tanmeram O GO0
for the pericd from Marci 7, 2064 to Fauroary 25, 2008

2003/2004

I Note  &C04/200% Change
| 3170 £ 000s %
S |
Sales (L 2,094,394 1,923,042 8.9
Cost of goods sold (2) 1,331,364 1,237,219 7.6
Gross profit 763,030 685,823 11.3
Selling and store expenses (3) 603,871 549,234 9.9
Pre-opening expenses 4) 9,678 10,821 -10.6
General and administration expenses (5) 81,628 71,222 14.6
Other income and expenses (6) 23,179 10,042 130.8
Earnings hefore interest and taxes (EBIT) 91,032 64,588 40,9
Net financial expenses (7) -23,019 -20,791 10.7
Consolidated earnings

before taxes and

extraordinary result 68,013 43,7197 55.3
Taxes on income (8) 24,706 16,926 46.0
Consolidated earnings after taxes

and before extraordinary result 43,307 26,871 61.2
Extraordinary result (9 0 1,119 -100.0
Consolidated net income 43,307 27,990 54.7
Undiluted earnings per share (in €) (10 2.88 1.86 54.8
Diluted earnings per share (in €) (10) 2.87 1.86 54.3
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palance sheet -

as o7 February 28, 2005 R
= .
;iAssets Note  02.28.2005  02.29.2004| L
w‘ € 000s € l]ll[)s;i .
Long-term assets *
Intangible assets (12) 25,480 15,157 '
Property, plant and equipment (13) 609,822 621,639 t
Financial assets (14) 165 844 :
QOther long-term assets (15) 1,627 1,550 o
Deferred tax claims (16) 13,841 15,057 o

650,935 694,247

Short-term assets

Inventories (17) 426,356 424,975
Accounts receivable and other assets (18) 53,313 34,556
Cash and cash equivalents (19) 143,215 48,563
622,884 508,094
1,273,819 1,162,341
.
-]
‘[Equity and liabilities Note  02.28.2005  02.29.2004 ¢
| £ 000s € 000s .
®
Shareholders' equity t
Share capital (21) 45294 45,035 v
Capital reserve (22) 124,745 122,495 o
Retained earnings (23) 185,253 167,858 R
Consolidated net income 43,307 27,990
398,599 363,378
Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt (25) 501,594 286,505
Deferred taxes (16) 46,825 42,020
Other liabilities (26) 12,162 6,857
560,581 335,362 A
Short-term liabilities .
Short-term debt (25) 40,068 128,957
-]
Accounts payable
and other liabilities 27) 214,226 271,493 *
Tax provisions (28) 12,660 14,209 *
Other provisions (28) 47,685 48,922 *
314,638 463,581 I:
1,273,819 1,162,341 ¢
L
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Cash Flow dtatement

‘ 2004/2C08 2003/2004.
}i £ 010s - € 000s
Consolidated earnings after taxes and before extraordinary result 43,307 26,871
Depreciation and amortization 61,305 62,278
Change in provisions 2,348 4,463
Profits on the sale of fixed assets -7,115 -928

Change in inventories, accounts receivable

and other assets 484 -70,191
Change in accounts payable and other liabilities 18,306 22,204
Other income/expenses with no cash effact 5,698 -16
Receipts from exceptional items 0 1,700
Cash flow from operating activities 124,333 46,381
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 23,072 38,932
Payments for investments in tangible assets -71,277 -64,951
Payments for investments in intangible assets -11,326 -6,465
Payments for acquisitions of shareholdings

and other business units -9,073 0
Payments for investments in other financial assets -3 -21
Cash flow from investing activities -69,107 -32,505
Receipts from capital increase 2,180 0
Dividends paid to shareholders -13,060 -13,060
Proceeds from long-term debt and issuing of corporate bond 262,400 31,783
Repayment of long-term debt -43,210 -29,827
Receipts from/payments for group financing activities -71,730 26,825
Payments for transaction expenses -10,589 0
Change in short-term debt -86,771 -3,995
Cash flow from financing activities 39,220 11,726
Change in cash and cash equivalents 94,446 25,602
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 206 -103
Cash and cash equivalents at March 1 48,563 23,064
Cash and cash equivalents at February 28/29 143,215 48,563

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, credit balances at banks and other short-term
deposits. The sale and rent back transaction relating to the Binzen DIY megastore executed by
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG as of 02.28.2005 has not been included in the proceeds from disposals of
fixed assets and change in other assets items in view of the purchasing price (€ 18,500k) not yet having

been paid.

The payments for investments in tangible assets item includes € 10,535k from additions during the

2002/2003 financial year.

The cash flow from operating activities was reduced by € 12,048k due to tax payments (2003/2004:
€ 18,830k) and by € 19,910k due to interest payments (2003/2004: € 20,261k) and increased by

€ 1,299k due to interest received (2003/2004: € 411k).

- I ————— e e - -
e S N . R T = PR

|

18-03 1 To Dur Shersioliers  14-18 " The (ORUBAC-Baumartd Share - 19-28 ) Gorporate Goverranes




The other income/expenses with no cash effect item mainly relates to deferred taxes, the release of
credit differences in connection with the acquisition of Latiora shares, and the personnel expenses
relating to the valuation of share options.

{ ]
The change in provisions item only includes provisions whose maturity or amount is uncertain. The N
figure for the previous year has accordingly been adjusted by € 16,883k,

L ]

®

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

[ .«.“:"ﬁ.<

12003/2004 financial year

‘ _ _ Cumulative U'ther ‘

;‘ Shz_are Capital Hedging Curreqcy Reta!ned Net Income To!al‘

}‘€ 000s Capital Reserve Reserve  Conversion Earnings  for the year Equity,

Balance at 03.01.2003 45,035 122,495 -1,612 9417 168,178 14,481 349,524

Dividend distributions -13,060 -13,060

Foreign currency

adjustments -1,150 -1,150

Valuation of derivative

financial instruments, *

net after taxes 74 74 .

Transfer to reserves 1,421 -1421 0 Is

Net income for the year 27,990 27,990 .

Balance at 02.29.2004 45,035 122,495 -1,538 -203 169,599 21,990 363,378 .
®

200412005 financial year | X

Cumulative Other | :

| Share Capital Hedging Currency Retained  Net Income Total | ¢

j;€ 000s Capital Reserve Reserve  Conversion Earnings  for the year Equity; .

Balance at 03.01.2004 45,035 122,495 -1,538 -203 169,599 27,990 363,378 If

Dividend distributions -13,060 -13,060

Foreign currency

adjustments 2,858 2,858

Capital increase from ‘

share option plans 259 2,250 2,509 A

Valuation of derivative .

financial instruments,

net after taxes -393 -393 I

Transfer to reserves 14,930 -14,930 0 ._

Net income for the year 43,307 43,307 *

Balance at 02.28.2005 45,294 124,745 -1,931 2,655 184.529 43,307 398,599 *
X
-',
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the 2004/2005 Financial Year

tuplaratory notes on the wringipies and methods appiied ir ths consalidatad

As a listed company, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG utilizes the possibility set out in Section 292a of the
German Commercial Code (HGB) of compiling exempting consolidated financial statements based on
international accounting standards (IFRS). HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG and its subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements of HORNBACH HOLDING AG. The consolidated financial
statements of HORNBACH HOLDING AG are published in the Federal Official Gazette (Bundesanzeiger)
and filed in the Commercial Register of the Ludwigshafen Local Court.

The annual Statement of Compliance with the German Corporate Governance Codex required by Section
161 of the German Stock Corporation Act {AktG) was submitted by HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG on
December 9, 2004 and made available to shareholders on the company's homepage.

Individual items in the Income Statement and the Balance Sheet have been grouped together for reasons
of clarity. These items have been reported separately in the notes to the financial statements. In line
with IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements), a distinction has been made between long-term and
short-term debt capital in the balance sheet reporting. Liabilities and provisions are treated as short-
term if they are due within one year. Income items, such as rental income, interest income and
dividends, are deferred accordingly.

Assumptions and estimates have been made in the compilation of the consolidated financial statements
which have an effect on the assets and liabilities reported and on the income and expenditure as
presented. These assumptions and estimates mainly relate to uniform procedures applied across the
Group in respect of economic useful lives, the accounting and valuation of provisions, the calculation of
current market values and the ability to obtain future tax relief. The actual amounts involved may differ
from their respective assumptions and estimates in individual cases. Changes are accounted for as a
credit or charge to operations upon receipt of further information.

Expianatory comments on the principal deviations from German accounting law pursuant to Section
292a of the German Commercial Code (HGB)

The following principal deviations apply compared with the accounting and valuation methods used in
German commercial law:

O Scheduled depreciation of fixed assets is undertaken using the straight-line method.

O IFRS require the elimination or release of depreciation and special provisions only admissible for tax
pUrposes.

O Debt capital costs (building interest) which can be directly allocated to the acquisition, construction
or establishment of land and buildings, or to other qualifying assets, have been capitalized in line
with IAS 23 (Borrowing Costs) as an integral component of the respective costs of acquisition or
production.




O Fixed asset items which have been rented back on the basis of sale and lease back transactions,
together with the resultant liabilities, have to be capitalized as assets and liabilities respectively to
the extent that the economic ownership of the assets concerned is attributable to companies in the
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group in accordance with the allocation criteria specified in 1AS 17
(Leases). The disposal gains generated by these transactions are to be deferred if the relevant R
transactions qualify as “Finance Lease” and are to be released as a credit to operations over the term L

of the respective leasing contract, .

[

O According to IFRS, provisions may only be taken to cover obligations to third parties (IAS 37). So- .
called expenses provisions are not permitted.

O The consolidated financial statements compiled in accordance with IFRS are also based on the F.

acquisition cost principle, with the exception that financial instruments and other short-term security i

assets held with the intention of disposal are accounted for at current market values. ¢

Application has been made of all International Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations of the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) valid at the reporting date.

The 1ASB published new and/or revised and supplemented standards and interpretations in 2004. The

overwhelming majority of such standards and interpretations only become binding with effect from the
200572006 financial year. The voluntary application of individual standards and interpretations at an

earlier date is permitted.
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Voluntary application was made of IFRS 2 (Share-based Payment) in the 2004/2005 financial year. The
application of the new standard does not have any significant influence either on the depiction of the
net asset, financial and earnings position of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group in the 2004/2005
financial year, or on the comparability of such figures with those of the previous year. For reasons of
immateriality, the financial statements for the previous 2003/2004 financial year have not been
adjusted.

The financial year of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG and thus also of the Group runs from March 1 of each
respective year up to the final day in the February of the subsequent year.

Consolidation principles

The annual financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are
based on uniform accounting and valuation principles. Valuations based on taxation regulations have
not been included in the consolidated financial statements. The individual financial statements of the
companies included in the consolidated financial statements have been compiled as of the reporting
date for the consolidated financial statements.

In the case of acquisitions based on contracts concluded prior to March 31, 2004, the capital consolidation
is based on the acquisition methoed by offsetting the relevant acquisition costs of the investment holding
with the new valuation of the pro rata shareholders’ equity on the date of acquisition of the subsidiary. Any
remaining debit differences are capitalized as goodwill following allocation of hidden reserves and hidden
burdens and are subject to straight-line amortization with a corresponding charge to operations in line
with their anticipated useful lives. Any remaining credit differences are netted against goodwill and
reported as assets in the balance sheet. They are released with a corresponding charge to operations upon
the expected losses at the acquired business unit being incurred.

In the case of acquisitions based on contracts concluded subsequent to March 31, 2004, application is
made of the [FRS 3 "Business Combinations", IAS 36 (2004 revision) "Impairment of Assets" and IAS 38
(2004 revision) "Intangible Assets" standards. The capital consolidation of these acquisitions is
therefore based on the revaluation method. Any resultant goodwill is not subject to scheduled
amortization but is rather subject to an annual impairment test pursuant to IAS 36.

Intercompany profits relating to inventories are eliminated by means of a charge to operations.
Intercompany income and expenses and receivables and liabilities between the consolidated companies
have been offset against each other,

Reporting entity
In addition to HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG, the consalidated financial statements include 11 domestic
(2003/2004: 12) and 26 foreign (2003/2004: 25) fully-consolidated subsidiaries.

As the sole shareholder in HORNBACH International GmbH, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG holds, either
directly or indirectly, 100% of the voting rights in the consolidated subsidiaries.

As in the previous year, all direct and indirect subsidiaries of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG have been
included in the consolidated financial statements for the 2004/2005 financial year.

The reporting entity changed in comparison with the 2003/2004 financial year on account of the acquisition
of all the shares in BM Immobilien Omega GmbH (previously: KiWi Grund GmbH; initial consolidation as of
October 1, 2004). Furthermore, the newly established Dutch company HORNBACH Reclame Activiteiten B.V.
was included in the consolidated financial statements for the first time as of August 1, 2004,
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The companies consolidated for the first time during the 2004/2005 financial year include one real
estate company and one company for the marketing of advertising services. Payments totaling € 9.1m
were made for the acquisition of the shares (2003/2004: € 0.0m). The two companies generated a
negative overall earnings contribution amounting to € 167k in the 2004/2005 financial year.

On the basis of the merger agreement dated May 28, 2004, Lafiora HORNBACH Florapark GmbH,
Neustadi/Weinstrasse, was retrospectively merged with HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG as of March 1, 2004
by transferring its assets as an entirety.

I e

The disposal during the 2004/2005 financial year relates to the sale of BM Immobilien Alpha GmbH. This
company was sold within the framework of a sale and lease back transaction on August 31, 2004. It
contributed € 376k to the consolidated earnings for 2004/2005.

s

L 2
Additions during the 2003/2004 financial year related to the domestic companies Lafiora HORNBACH .H
Florapark GmbH (from February 29, 2004), BM Immobilien Lambda GmbH, BM Immobilien Kappa GmbH, )
HB Services GmbH (previously: MacAllister GmbH) and HORNBACH Versicherungsservice GmbH.
Furthermore, the foreign companies HD Immabilien Dora GmbH, HO Immabilien Omikron GmbH and
HORNBACH Baumarkt SK spol s.r.0. were consolidated for the first time in 2003/2004.
Disposals during the 2003/2004 financial year related to HO Immobilien Omega GmbH, HR Immabilien
Rho GmbH and HC Immobilien Chi GmbH, 99% of the shares in which were transferred to HORNBACH
Real Estate Nederland B.V., a subsidiary of HORNBACH Immobilien AG. 1 % of the shares continued to .
be held by HORNBACH International GmbH. P
®
The composition and development of the reporting entity was as follows: i
[ ]
! 2004/2005  2003/2004) J
»
March 1 38 33 N
Companies consolidated for the first time 2 o
Mergers -1
Companies soid during the year -1 -3
February 28 (February 29) 38 38

The changes in the reporting entity during the financial year resulited in the following overall changes in
the individual asset and liability items:

Eﬂﬂﬂs Additions Disposals . Additions Disposals%si .
‘ 2004/2305 2004/2005 2003/2004 2003/20[]4% b
Tangible assets . 15,305 20,682 1,189 57 °

Other assets 9 98 7,663 210 *

Long-term liabilities : 0 404 1,377 0 U:

Short-term liabilities 0 20,376 7475 267
*
These changes did not have any significant impact on the income statement, :
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Sorsclidelad Suhsidiarias
‘;cumpany Name and Domicile Equity " Share-"
| holding'
! € 000s %,
Germany

HORNBACH International GmbH, Bornheim 25,584 100
AWV Agentur fiir Werbung und Verkaufsférderung GmbH, Bornheim 133 100
Ollesch & Fitzner GmbH, Bornheim 554 100
BM Immobilien Beta GmbH, Bornheim -381 100
BM Immobilien Gamma GmbH, Bornheim 0 100
BM Immobilien Zeta GmbH, Bornheim -1,387 100
BM Immobilien Lambda GmbH, Bornheim 24 100
BM Immobilien Kappa GmbH, Bornheim 24 100
HB Services GmbH, Bornheim

— previously: MacAllister GmbH - 23 100
HORNBACH Versicherungs-Service GmbH, Bornheim 275 100
BM Immobilien Omega GmbH, Bornheim

— previously: KiWi Grund GmbH, Kiel — 4,805 100
Other European Gountries

HORNBACH Baumarkt CS spol s.r.0., Prague, Czech Republic 27,481 100
HORNBACH Baumarkt GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria 34,707 100
EZ Immobilien Beta GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria 958 100
SM Immobilien Delta GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria -201 100
HK Immobilien Kappa GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria -146 100
HL Immobilien Lambda GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria -382 100
SZ Immobilien Zeta GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria -13 100
HD Immobilien Dora GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria 19 99,9
HS Immobilien Sigma GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria -42 100
HO Immobilien Omikron GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria -28 100
HORNBACH Baumarkt Luxembourg S.a r.l., Bertrange, Luxembourg 13,693 100
HORNBACH Baumarkt (Schweiz) AG, Oberkirch, Switzerland 9,097 100
HORNBACH Byggmarknad AB, Gothenburg, Sweden -11,156 100
HORNBACH Holding B.V., Amsterdam, Netherlands 20,546 100
HORNBACH Bouwmarkt (Nederland) B.V., Driebergen-Rijsenburg, Netherlands 3,561 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Zaandam B.V., Zaandam, Netherlands 1,331 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Kerkrade B.V., Kerkrade, Netherlands 1,119 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Tilburg B.V., Tilburg, Netherlands 877 100
HORNBACH Rea! Estate Groningen B.V., Groningen, Netherlands -194 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Wateringen B.V., Wateringen, Netherlands 243 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Alblasserdam B.V., Alblasserdam, Netherlands -1,267 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Nieuwegein B.V., Nieuwegein, Netherlands 377 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Nieuwerkerk B.V., Nieuwerkerk, Netherlands 2,772 100
HORNBACH Real Estate Geleen B.V., Geleen, Netherlands 833 100
HORNBACH Reclame Activiteiten B.V., Nieuwegein, Netherlands 19 100
HORNBACH Baumarkt SK spol. s..0., Bratislava, Slovakia -1,519 100

! The shareholders™ equity is equivalent to the local equity.
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An overall summary of the shareholdings pursuant to Section 285 No. 11 and Section 313 {2 and 3) of
the German Commercial Code (HGB) is filed in the Commercial Register of the Landau Local Court,

Subordination and profit and loss transfer agreements have been concluded between HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
on the one hand and HORNBACH International GmbH and Ollesch & Fitzner GmbH on the other.

Foreign currency conversion
The consolidated financial statements have been compiled in euros and the amounts stated rounded up
or down to the nearest thousand.

®
Transactions executed in foreign currencies have been converted at the respective transaction rate. All t
receivables and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency have been valued using the closing rate on
the reporting date regardless of whether they have been hedged or not. The resultant exchange gains
and losses have basically been included in the income statement. Forward exchange transactions have
been stated at their current market value (fair value).

In line with JAS 21, the annual financial statements of foreign group companies have been converted
into euros on the basis of the functional currency concept. This is the local currency for all of the
companies in view of the fact that the foreign companies conduct their business independently from a
financial, economic and organiiational point of view. Accordingly, fixed assets, other assets and
liabilities have been converted at the median rate on the reporting date. Exchange rate differences
arising from the conversion of the annual financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are treated with
no net income effect and are reported separately under retained earnings. Income and expense items are
converted using average rates.

T TPt g .

e o & -

The most important foreign exchange rates applied are as follows:

‘} Rate on Reporting Date Average Rate :
i Country £2.28.2005 02.29.2004 200472005 2003/2004 0.
== = 3
CZK Czech Republic 29.7430 32.4350 31.46981 32.04585

SEK Sweden 9.0576 9.2315 9.11079 9.12372

CHF Switzerland 1.5392 1.5780 1.54056 1.53665

SKK Slovakia 37.8700 40.5300 39.65259 41.30015

Accounting and valuation principles

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries on the basis of contracts concluded prior to March 31,
2004 is converted at cost as the difference between the acquisition cost of the investment holding

and the pro rata net assets of the subsidiary at current market values on the acquisition date, less any

scheduled or exceptional amortization. Goodwill attributable to foreign companies and the relevant :
adjustments to current market values are converted at the foreign exchange rate prevalent on the

acquisition date. Any credit differences arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries are netted against A
goodwill asset items and reporied as assets in the balance sheet. They are released with a .
corresponding charge to operations upon the expected losses at the acquired unit being incurred. No .

goodwill arose on account of acquisitions undertaken on the basis of contracts concluded subsequent to
March 31, 2004,
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QOther intangible assets are stated at cost, less cumulative straight-line amortization. Financing costs
which are directly allocable to the asset in the period during which such asset is being prepared for
utility (“qualifying assets”) are capitalized as a component of the costs of acquisition or manufacture
pursuant to 1AS 23 (Borrowing Costs).

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method and on the basis of the following economic
useful lives:

@ful life N o - - Year;@

Goodwill 15
Software and licenses 3-8
Other intangible assets 3-13

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, including real estate which is held for leasing purposes, are stated at cost less
cumulative depreciation. Scheduled depreciation is undertaken on a straight-line basis. If there are
indications for an impairment of value and if the recoverable amount is less than the updated cost of
acquisition or manufacture, then the tangible fixed assets are subject to exceptional depreciation. If the
reason for exceptional depreciation undertaken in previous years no longer applies, a corresponding
write-up is undertaken. Scheduled depreciation across the Group is uniformly based on the following
economic useful lives:

e N N N X S — =

Useful life Years,
Buildings and outdoor facilities (including rented properties) 15 -33
Other facilities, plant and office equipment 3-21

Financing costs incurred in the context of real estate development (“building interest”) and which can
be directly allocated to the acquisition, construction or establishment of land and buildings (“qualifying
assets”) are capitalized as an integral part of the costs of acquisition or manufacture in accordance
with 1AS 23 (Borrowing Costs).

Leased tangible fixed assets which in economic terms constitute asset purchases with long-term
financing (finance leasing) are stated at current market values in compliance with 1AS 17 (Leases)
unless the present value of the leasing payments is lower. Scheduled depreciation is undertaken over
their economic useful lives or over the term of the contract if this is shorter. Application is made of the
same method of depreciation which would apply for comparable assets acquired or manufactured. The
obligations relating to future leasing payments are capitalized as liabilities.

Financial assets
In line with 1AS 39, financial assets are subdivided as follows: assets held to maturity and assets
available for sale.

Financial assets are initially stated at cost of acquisition. Assets held for sale are subsequently stated
at current value, provided that a market price is available on an active market or that their market
value can be reliably determined in some other way.

.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost of acquisition or manufacture or at their lower realizable value. The
acquisition costs of inventory holdings are determined using weighted average prices. Account is taken
of the principle of loss-free valuation. The net realizable value is taken to be the expected realizable
sales proceeds less the costs incurred up to such disposal.

Accounts receivable and other assets

Accounts receivable and other assets are stated at cost of acquisition or at their lower cash value.
Account is taken of all identifiable individual risks and general credit risk based on empirical values by
means of appropriate value reductions for these items.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term deposits with maturity dates of less
than three months.

Leasing contracts

In the case of leasing contracts in which the respective benefits and risks relating to the asset are
mainly transferred to the company, the asset in question is capitalized and stated less cumulative
depreciation. Moreover, a corresponding liability is capitalized in the amount of the current market value
of the asset or the lower cash value of the minimum leasing payments.

Asset write-downs

With the exception of inventories, deferred tax assets and those assets which are stated at their current
values, a review is undertaken of al} assets on each reporting date to ascertain whether there are
indications for an impairment of value due to specific facts or circumstances. An exceptional write-
down is recorded in the income statement if the net realizable value is less than the book value of the
respective asset. A write-up is undertaken if the reasons for the exceptional write-down no longer apply.

Provisions

Provisions are taken for contingent obligations to third parties if such obligations will probably result in
a future charge on assets. The provisions are stated after taking account of all discernible risks up to
the anticipated settlement amount and are not offset against recourse claims. If the overall effect is
material, long-term provisions are stated at their cash value discounted to the end of their respective
terms. Provisions for contingent losses are accounted for if the contractual obligations in the case of
stores rented from third parties are higher than the anticipated economic benefits.

Liabilities

Financial liahilities (bank loans, bonds) are reported in the amount of the individual loan less
transaction costs and are subsequently reported at their updated cost of acquisition. The difference to
the repayment amount is recorded as an expense over the term of the bond using the effective interest
rate method. Other liabilities are stated at their repayment amounts.

Sales
Income from the sale of goods is recorded at the time of the transfer of ownership.

Costs of goods sold
As well as the direct acquisition costs of the merchandise in question, the costs of goods sold also
include ancillary acquisition costs, such as freight charges, customs duties and other services rendered.
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Rental income
Rental income is recorded on a straight-line basis for the duration of the rental period.

Public grants

Public grants awarded to cover exceptional expenses incurred and for assistance purposes are recorded
as extraordinary income in the income statement. Grants awarded for long-term assets reduce the cost
of acquisition of such assets by the amount of the respective grants.

Expenses
Rental expenses are recorded on a straight-line basis as costs over the term of the rental contract.

[nterest expenses and interest income are recorded in line with the period for which the loan was
granted or the bond issued.

Tax expenses include current and deferred taxation unless they are attributable to facts or
circumstances which are directly accounted for in the shareholders’ equity.

In line with [AS 12 (2000 revision), deferred taxes are accounted for and valued using the balance
sheet liability method based on the tax rate valid at the realization date. Deferred tax assets are stated
for anticipated tax benefits arising from future realizable losses brought forward. Deferred tax assets
arising from temporary differences and tax losses carried forward which exceed temporary taxable
differences are only stated to the extent that it can be assumed with reasonable certainty that the
company in question will achieve an adequate level of taxable income.

With regard to options issued prior to November 7, 2002 in connection with existing share option plans,
no expenses have been taken into account for the difference between the exercise price and the market
value of shares or the intrinsic value of the share options granted as long as the options have not been
exercised.

The 1999 share option plan of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG represents an equity-settled share-hased
payment. With regard to the fourth tranche of the share option plan, which was issued subsequent to
November 7, 2002, the current market value of the options expected to be convertible was calculated
for the time of their issue. This amount is spread as an expense over the period up to the non-
forfeitability of such options and is recorded as a corresponding increase in shareholders’ equity.

The HORNBACH phantom stock plan represents a cash-settled share-based payment. The expenses are
spread over the qualifying period on a pro-rata basis. The resultant obligation as of the reporting date
has been reported under other liabilities. Changes to the respective values have been accounted for in
this respect.

Adjustments to the consolidated financial statements as of February 28, 2005

With effect from February 28, 2005, the income statement of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG was compiled
for the first time using the standard international cost-of-sales accounting method. The resultant
harmonization of internal and external reporting structures also reflects in aggregate form in the
company’s external accounting that information considered to be useful and of relevance to the
internal management of the company. This provides a common language both withir the company and
in its communications with the capital markets. The harmonization involved the restructuring and
revised summarization of.items within the income statement. The figures contained in the income
statement and segment reporting for the previous year have been adjusted accordingly. This has
resulted in particular in an amendment of earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT), given that the
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other taxes previously reported under tax expenses have been allocated to the functional divisions in
which they arise. The adjustments are structured as follows:

€ 000s 2003/2004
EBIT as reported in the previous year 66,956
Other taxes 2,368
EBIT following adjustment 64,588

The segment results (c.f. Segment Reporting) have been adjusted to take account of the amended
earnings before interest and taxes.

The canversion of the income statement to the cost-of-sales method involved allocating expense items
not directly arising in connection with the sale of merchandise to selling and store expenses. Moreover,
expenses which had previously been classified as other expenses have been reclassified as cost of
goods sold on account of their being allocable to sales. These amendments have resulted in a net
reduction of € 4,594k in the cost of materials reported for the previous year.




T

i [

'

b

At [N

,2004/2005 in € million DIY Stores  Real Estate Miscellaneous  HORNBACH-|
1(2003/2004 in € million) and Baumarkt-AG|
M Consolidation Group J
Segment income 2,093.6 89.5 -88.7 2,0044
(1,921.5) (79.0) (-77.5) (1,923.0)

Sales to external third parties 2,092.8 0.0 0.0 2,092.8
(1,920.0) (0.0) (0.0) {1,920.0)

Sales to 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8
affiliated companies (L.5) (0.0) (0.0) (1.5)
Rental income 0.0 88.7 -88.7 0.0
from affiliated companies 0.0) (78.2) (-77.5) (0.7)
Rental income from external third parties 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.8
0.0) (0.8) 0.0 (0.8)

Segment results (EBIT) 7.0 31.9 -11.9 91.0
(45.9) (24.9) (-6.2) (64.6)

of which

Depreciation 38.0 17.0 6.3 61.3
(40.6) (15.5) (6.2) (62.3)

Segment assets 641.1 476.2 156.5 1,273.8
(633.7) (483.5) (45.1) (1,162.3)

Capital expenditures 33.9 35.0 19.0 87.9
(33.0) (28.5) (11.7) (73.2)

Segment liabilities 252.7 296.6 325.9 875.2
(318.5) (342.1) (138.4) (799.0)

Analysis by geographical regions
The QOther European Countries segment includes the Czech Republic, Austria, the Netherlands,
Luxembourg, Switzerland, Sweden and Slovakia.

Segment sales are allocated to the geographical regions in which the sales were generated. The sales
for Other European Countries include segment sales to be reported pursuant to IAS 14.69 for our
subsidiaries in Austria amounting to € 247.4m (2003/2004: € 245.7m). Segment assets are allocated to
the region in which they are located. Capital expenditures relate to the assets allocated to the respective
segments. Segment assets and capital expenditures for Other European Countries include segment
assets to be reported pursuant to 1AS 14.69 amounting to € 130.6m (2003/2004: € 133.5m) and capital
expenditures of € 1.5m (2003/2004: € 6.2m) relating to our subsidiaries in the Netherlands.
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U2004l2005 in £ mill?on Germany Other Miscellaneous  HORNBACH-
“(2003/2004 in € million) Europe_an . qnd Baumarkt-AG
! Countries  Consolidation Group,
Segment income 1,447.5 687.6 -40.7 20944
(1,347.6) {611.3) (-35.9) (1,923.0)

Sales to external third parties 1,406.0 686.8 0.0 2,092.8
(1,309.5) {610.5) (0.0) (1,920.0)

Sales to affiliated companies 41.4 0.1 -40.7 0.8
(37.4) (0.0) {-35.9) (1.5)

Rental income from affiliated companies 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
(0.7 (0.0) 0.0) 0.7

Rental income from external third parties 0.1 0.7 0.0 0.8
{0.0) (0.8) (0.0) {0.8)

Segment assets 1,023.4 361.0 -110.6 1,273.8
{892.0) (351.1) (-80.8) {1,162.3)

Capital expenditures 68.5 19.5 -0.1 879
(44.9) (28.3) 0.0y (73.2)

EBIT 53.0 38.2 -0.2 91.0
(43.8) (21.2) (-0.4) {64.6)

Depreciation 424 18.9 0.0 61.3
(43.2) (19.1) (0.0) (62.3)

EBITDA 95.3 51.2 -0.2 152.3
(87.0) (40.3) (-0.4) (126.9)

The segment reporting is undertaken in compliance with the accounting and valuation methods used in
the consolidated financial statements. The sales to external third parties are net sales. Transfer prices
between the segments are equivalent to those applied to external third parties.

Segment definition

The allocation of operating divisions (segments) corresponds to the internal reporting system used by
the Board of Management of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group for managing the company. The
primary reporting system is based on operating divisions, whereas the secondary reporting system
makes a distinction between the regions of Germany and of Other European Countries. The “DIY Stores”
segment includes the 117 (2003/2004: 110) combined DIY stores and garden centers which are grouped
together in the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group. The “Real Estate” segment includes the retail
properties owned by companies in the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group, which let and charge the
properties at normal market conditions to the respective DIY stores with garden centers within the
Group. The “Miscellaneous and Consolidation” segment includes administration and consolidation items
which are not attributable to the individual segments.

Segment results
The segment results depicted represent earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) and the extraordinary
result.

Segment assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet have been directly allocated to the individual
segments as far as possible. The remaining assets and liabilities have been allocated on an appropriate
basis. Liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet have been increased by liabilities to group companies in
the individual segments and have been allocated to the individual segments on a causation basis. The
resultant adjustments have been eliminated under the “Miscellaneous and Consolidation” item.
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Notes on the Consolidated income Statement

(%) Salas

WLy QL

The sales mainly include income from the DIY stores segment. Income amounting to € 897k (2003/2004:
€ 1,482k) from the rental of real estate has also been included under the heading of sales.

The sales of the Group broken down into operating divisions and regions have been depicted in the
segment reporting.

e ul a0t
o) Costs of geeds said

The costs of goods sold represent the expenses required for the generation of sales and are structured
as follows:

241773 2003/2004

g :::s € 000s.
Expenses for ancillary materials and purchased goods 1,313,308 1,227,131
Expenses for external services 17,456 10,088

1,331,364 1,237,219

f{\\ ﬂfﬁ b} Al /!\"lﬂ\ me.
=) é\gt‘..uf 13§00 ZHTGISES

Selling and store expenses include those costs incurred in connection with the operation of DIY-
megastores with garden centers and are structured as follows:

2T 2003/2004

€ OUUs‘

Personnel expenses 285,292 257,460
Cost of premises 132,714 116,588
Advertising 77,082 72,709
General operating expenses 57,902 51,217
Depreciation and amortization 49,072 49,356
Other taxes 1,809 1,904
603,871 549,234

General operating expenses primarily relate to administration expenses, transport costs, maintenance
and upkeep, rental expenses for plant and office equipment, and vehicle expenses.

"[‘ ?*m_mrm“ 1ing BXpensaes

Pre-opening expenses include those expenses arising at or close to the time of the construction up to the
opening of a new DIY megastore with a garden center. These mainly comprise personnel expenses
amounting to € 6,222k (2003/2004: € 7,025k) and miscellaneous expenses amounting to € 3,456k
(2003/2004: € 3,796k). The miscellaneous expenses primarily relate to personnel expenses, depreciation
and other taxes.

(&) Gereral ard edministralion sul6Ises
General and administration expenses include all those costs incurred in connection with the operation or
construction of DIY stores with garden centers which cannot be directly allocated to such projects.

B8 @am;my@mﬂc ; maumm ]Mmiﬂi@% Bama 1\923 @mmm
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General and administration expenses are structured as follows:

’ 2004/2005 2003/2004

}‘ € 000s € 000s

Personnel expenses 48,925 43,203

Legal and advisory expenses 10,098 9,243

Depreciation and amortization 7,790 7,943

Cost of premises 2,325 1,866

QOther general and administration expenses 12,490 8,967
81,628 1,222

Other general and administration expenses mainly relate to IT expenses, travel expenses, and vehicle

EXPENSES.

(8} Dther income and expenses

Other income and expenses are structured as follows:

{ 2004/2005 2003/2004

! £ 000s € 000s

Other operating income

Income from advertising allowances 12,779 13,322

Income from exchange rate and payment differences 4,314 418

Income from allocations to the HORNBACH HOLDING Group 1,752 1,807

Income from the release of provisions 1,216 790

Income from the disposal of miscellaneous fixed assets 509 458

Miscellaneous income 11,258 7,439
31,828 24,234

Other non-operating income

Income from the dispasal of subsidiaries and from

the disposal of DIY megastore properties 10,161 1,017

Income from the release of provisions for

disadvantageous contracts 1,925 0
12,086 1,017

Other income 43,914 25,251

The remaining other income mainly relates to income from personnel contributions, damages payments

and cost allowances granted by suppliers.

Non-operating income in the 2004/2005 financial year relates to income from the disposal of three
{2003/2004: two) DIY megastore properties and one builders merchant center. Moreover, the income for

the previous year includes income from the disposal of three real estate investments.

The DIY megastore properties were subsequently rented back on a long-term basis within the framework
of an operating lease. There is a rental prolongation and purchase option at the end of the non-

terminable basic rental period.

IncomelStatement
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EC00Cs € 000s ‘
Other operating expenses
Expenses relating to exchange rate and payment differences 4815 1,593
Losses incurred on disposals of fixed assets 1,877 547
Value adjustments and defaults on accounts receivable 1,528 670
Other operating expenses 3,466 4,125
11,686 6,935

Other non-operating expenses
Additions to provisions for disadvantageous contracts 4,700 3,400
Exceptional depreciation for

tangible fixed assets 4,349 4874

9,049 8,274
Other expenses 20,735 15,209
Other income and expenses (net) 23,179 10,042

The remaining other operating expenses mainly relate to losses incurred on damages cases, and
gxpenses incurred on services which are charged on. The corresponding income has been reported as
other income.

As a result of the systems used, the income and expenses relating to valuations of foreign currency
could only be undertaken on a net basis in the previous year. The introduction of the SAP FI/CO module

means that these can now be accounted for and reported separately.

{7} Het finarcizl experses

LA 2003/2004)

il 0CH/200 2003/2004]
000 € 000s|

. S

Other interest and similar income 1,256 411
of which from affiliated companies (41) (36)

Income from the fair value valuation of derivative financial instruments 355 230

QOther interest and similar expenses -24,604 -21,432
of which to affiliated companies (-569) (-1,135)

Expenses relating to the fair value valuation

of derivative financial instruments -26 0

Net financial expenses -23,019 -20,791

In line with IAS 17 {(Leases), finance lease contracts are shown under tangible fixed assets and the
interest component amounting to € 280k (2003/2004: € 330k) under interest and similar expenses. Net
interest expenses do not include interest incurred for financing the construction stage of real estate
development measures. This interest amounted to € 1,052k (2003/2004: € 1,509k) in the year under
report and has been capitalized as an integral component of the costs of acquisition and manufacture
of the tangible fixed assets concerned. Further financing costs amounting to € 168k (2003/2004: € 43k)
were capitalized for the period of preparing the utility of SAP. The average financing cost rate of 5.4% to
5.9% (2003/2004: 5.4% to 5.9%) has been used to determine the level of debt costs to be capitalized.
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(8) Taxes ¢n income
Taxes on income inciude the taxes on income paid or payable in the individual countries, as well as
deferred tax accruals.

»
The German companies included in the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group are subject to an average trade tax R
rate of approximately 16% of their trading income, with the aforesaid tax being deductible for corporate LF
income tax purposes. The corporate income tax rate amounts to 25%, plus 5.5% solidarity surcharge. .

L J
All domestic deferred tax items continue to be valued using an average tax rate of 38%. The calculation -
of foreign income taxes is based on the relevant laws and regulations in force in the individual

countries. The income tax rates applied to foreign companies range from 18% to 31% (2003/2004: 20%
to 35%).

The actual income tax charge of € 24,706k (2003/2004: € 16,926K) is € 1,139k lower (2003/2004: € 152k
higher) than the expected tax charge of € 25,845k (2003/2004: € 16,774k) which would have been
payable by applying the average tax rate of 38% (2003/2004: 38%) to the pre-tax earnings of the
Group.

Tax loss carry-forwards not utilized to date amount to € 20,605k (2003/2004: € 28,089k), for which
deferred tax assets have been reported in full. In the previous year, no deferred tax assets were reported
in the case of loss carry-forwards amounting to € 635k in view of the fact that a future realization of
the resultant benefit was not to be expected.

Break-down of the tax charge:

2004/2003 2003/2004
£ 000s £ 000s

Current taxation on income
Germany 12,367 16,218
Other countries 5,891 1,439
18,258 17,657

Deferred taxes

Based on changes in temporary differences 4,692 -2,661
Based on changes to tax rates -204 -141
Based on loss carry-forwards 1,960 2,652
6,448 -150
Tax charge reported under extraordinary result 0 -581
Taxes on income 24,706 16,926

Deferred taxes amounting to € -63k (2003/2004: € -41k) have been recorded under shareholders’ equity
without any impact on operations.
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The transition from the anticipated to the actual income tax charge is as follows:

200442073 2003/2004 ‘
i} £1CCs % € 000s %"
Anticipated income tax charge 25,845 100.0 16,774 100.0
Tax rate differences -3,649 -141 -2,122 -12.7
Tax-free income -306 -1.2 -58 -0.3
Tax reductions / increases due to
changes in tax rates -204 -0.8 141 0.8
Tax increases attributable to expenses
not deductible for tax purposes 2,338 9.1 1,725 10.3
Non-period current and
deferred taxes 915 3.5 639 3.8
Miscellaneous tax effects -233 -0.9 -173 -1.0
Taxes on income 24,706 95.6 16,926 100.9
Effective tax rate (%) 36.3 38,7

(9} Zxtreordinary resuit

The net extraordinary result in the 2003/2004 financial year mainly related to income amounting to

€ 1,673k from the allocation of public grants to cover the damages caused by the flood catastrophe in
August 2002, There are no conditions or any other performance contingencies in connection with the
grants received,

7024205 2003/2004

g 1I0s € 000s.
Extraordinary expenses 0 -18
Extraordinary income 0 1,718
Extraordinary result before taxes 0 1,700
Tax effect on extracrdinary result 0 -581
Extraordinary result after taxes 0 1,119

(1D} Zernirgs 187 share

The undiluted earnings per share are calculated in line with 1AS 33 (Earnings per Share) by dividing the
consolidated net income allocable to the shareholders of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG by the weighted
average number of shares in circulation during the financial year.

Earnings per share

7075 \/zw;’ 2003/2004.

Weighted number of shares issued 15,019,542 15,011,500

Consolidated net income for the year allocable
to the shareholders of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in €) 43,307,376 27,990,267
Earnings per share (in €) 2.88 1.86
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The weighted number of shares issued is calculated as follows:

2004/2005 2003/2004\&

Shares issued as of March 1 15,011,500 15,011,500
Effect of the issue of new shares in January 2005 8,042 0
15,019,542 15,011,500

The share option plans (Note 32) mean that shares with a potentially diluting effect have arisen, which
have a partial impact on the earnings per share for the first time. Diluted earnings per share are
calculated as follows:

Diluted earnings per share

] 2004/2003 2003/2004

Weighted number of shares issued,

including potential shares with a diluting effect 15,086,789 15,011,500
Consolidated net income for the year allocable to the

shareholders of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in €) 43,307,376 27,990,267
Earnings per share {in €) 2.87 1.86

The weighted number of shares issued is calculated as follows:

2064/2005 2003/2004}

Weighted number of shares as of March 1 15,011,500 15,011,500
Effect of 1999 share option plan 75,289 0
15,086,789 15,011,500

E)

f
L

25) Cther disclosures on the income statement
Personnel expenses
The individual expense items include the following personnel expenses:

| 2004/2003  2003/2004)
| £ 000s € 0005
Wages and salaries 281,188 253,778
Social security contributions 59,251 53,911

340,439 307,689

The wages and salaries also include expenses relating to temporary employees. The figures for the
previous year have been adjusted accordingly. The social security contributions include € 3,067k
(200372004 € 2,783k) of pension provisions.

The personnel expenses include contributions to fund-based pension plans in Switzerland and the
Netherlands.
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The average number of employees was as follows:

; 20CA253% 2003/2004
Salaried employees 10,205 9,255
Wage earners 201 191
Trainees 526 464
10,932 9,910
0Of which part-time employees 2,250 2,128

In terms of geographical regions, 7,433 (2003/2004: 6,685) of the average number of employees were
employed in Germany and 3,499 (2003/2004: 3,225) were employed in other European countries in the

2004/2005 financial year.

Depreciation and amortization

The depreciation of tangible fixed assets and amortization of intangible assets were structured as

follows:
- © 2aTiE 2003/2004
1008 € 000s
Scheduled amortization of goodwill 308 404
Scheduled amortization of intangible assets and
depreciation of tangible fixed assets 56,648 57,000
Exceptional depreciation of tangible fixed assets 4,349 4,874
61,305 62,278

The exceptional depreciation undertaken during the 2004/2005 financial year relates to land and
buildings. Reference is also made to Note 13 in this respect. The exceptional depreciation undertaken in

the previous year related to land and to plant and office equipment.
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{12) Intangitle zssels

The development of intangibie assets during the year under report was as follows:

§?€ 000s Franchises, Goodwill Advance Total|
i industrial property rights Payments

; and similar rights

) and values

and licenses to such
rights and values

Cost of acquisition / manufacture :
Balance at 03.01.2004 39,654 4,125 2,410 46,189

Foreign currency conversion 30 0 0 30
Additions 2,342 -857 10,307 11,792
Disposals 62 -1,728 0 -1,666
Reclassifications 101 0 -87 14
Balance at 02.28.2005 42,065 4,996 12,630 59,691
Reclassifications

Balance at 03.01.2004 30,118 914 0 31,032
Foreign currency conversion 27 0 0 27
Additions 2,963 308 0 3271
Disposals 33 86 0 119
Balance at 02.28.2005 33,075 1,136 0 34,211
Book value at 02.28.2005 8,990 3,860 12,630 25,480
Book value at 02,29.2004 9,536 3,211 2,410 15,157

As in the previous year, the additions to franchises, industrial property rights and simitar rights and
values and licenses to such rights and values mainly relate to license fees for SAP software and
expenses incurred in connection with adapting the software to its intended utilization. The additions to
advance payments relate to outgoing payments for the planned expansion of SAP to include the retail
module.

The negative additions to geodwill relate to subsequent reductions in the acquisition price of the
shareholding in Lafiora HORNBACH Florapark GmbH acquired in the previous year. The negative
difference of € -957k resulting from the initial consolidation of Lafiora HORNBACH Florapark GmbH
which was posted in the previous year has thus retrospectively increased to € -1,814k. This negative
difference resulted from the future losses accounted for in the purchase price. The differential amount
was offset in full against losses incurred in the 2004/2005 financial year.

The amortization is included in the following items in the income statement:

/ 2004/2005  2003/2004
“ £ 000s € Uﬂﬂsh
Selling and store expenses 1,266 1,109
General and administration expenses 2,005 2,745

3,271 3,854

As in the previous year, there are no major restrictions on ownership and disposition rights.

e D e e s
Tz et e e e, KL et e 2 - conp R anPIIAE o G A

i S-S

\9 PPN S qpaiT S

e @ ..

NN

100 fuilr's Ropert

Kotes on the Financial Statements




(13

f N Tayromt ol m G ; i@
N (73] Tanginle Tned 288308

Tangible fixed assets showed the following developments during the year under report:

z } € 000s Land, Real Estate Other Advance Total
= i leasehold rights  leased to third facilities, payments :
g | and huildings, parties and plant and and assets i
) i including reserve land in office under \

: " buitdings on line with IAS 40 equipment construction
- non-proprietary land (Investment i
‘ Property) i

Cost of acquisition / manufacture

- Balance at 03.01.2004 551,106 15,263 360,054 15,587 942,010
- Foreign currency conversion 4,264 0 1,553 15 5,832
¢ Additions to reporting entity 15,305 0 0 0 15,305
= Disposals from reporting entity 20,810 0 88 0 20,398
- Additions 9,208 1,546 37,546 12,475 60,776
Disposals 13,683 0 15,826 531 30,040
Reclassifications 712 0 1,153 -1,879 -14
Balance at 02.28.2005 546,103 16,809 384,392 25,667 972,971
- Depreciation
= Balance at 03.01.2004 80,057 3623 236,428 263 320,371
s Foreign currency conversion 389 0 840 0 1,229
~ Disposals from reporting entity 213 0 3 0 216
- Additions 16,157 1,697 40,180 0 58,034
Disposals 2,606 0 13,663 0 16,269
- Balance at 02.28.2005 93,784 5,320 263,782 263 363,149
Book value at 02.28.2005 452,319 11,489 120,610 25,404 609,822
Book value at 02.29.2004 471,049 11,640 123,626 15,324 621,639

Exceptional depreciation amounting to € 4,349k was undertaken on land (€ 3,599k) and buildings

(€ 750Kk) in the real estate segment during the 2004/2005 financial year. Of the aforementioned sum,
€ 1,609k (2003/2004: € 695k) related to real estate leased to third parties and to reserve land not yet
earmarked for any particular utilization. in the previous year, exceptional depreciation amounting to
€ 4,874k was undertaken on land (€ 3,903k) in the real estate segment and on plant and office
equipment (€ 971k) in the company’s administrative divisions.

T ]

Ll

The exceptional depreciation was attributable to the valuation of assets whose book values were in
excess of their respective net realizable values. The net realizable value was determined by independent
experts on the basis of capitalized earnings power. Reference is made to Note 7 with regard to
capitalized financing costs.

[

I I 1}

The additions to the reporting entity result from the initial consolidation of the shares in BM Immobilien
Omega GmbH (previously: KiWi Grund GmbH). The disposals relate to the sale of shares in BM Immabilien
Alpha GmbH.

O

The real estate assets are predominantly owned by HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG and by real estate
companies established for this purpose.
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Other equipment, plant and office equipment mainly relate to HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG in the case of

9
German consolidated companies and to HORNBACH Baumarkt GmbH, HORNBACH Baumarkt Luxemburg
S.a.rl., HORNBACH Baumarkt CS spol s.r.o., HORNBACH Bouwmarkt (Nederland) B.V., HORNBACH
Baumarkt (Schweiz) AG, HORNBACH Baumarkt SK spol s.r.o. and HORNBACH Byggmarknad AB in the R
case of foreign consolidated companies. .
_ , 5 , -]
Real estate leased to third parties and reserve land not yet scheduled for any specific use mainly relate .
to retail properties at various locations in Germany. The respective rental contracts have basic rental .

periods of 1 to 15 years and in some cases provide for prolongation options for the lessee. The
properties leased to third parties are stated at cost less scheduled straight-line depreciation. A useful
life of 33 years has been assumed. The market value of real estate leased to third parties, including
reserve land, amounts to approximately € 13,149k (2003/2004: € 12,953k). The market values have
been determined by independent experts in the overwhelming majority of cases. The valuations are
based on the capitalized earnings power of the individual pieces of real estate on the open market at
the reporting date on February 28, 2005.

£ JaE-aay SENE

Fixed assets which are available to the Group on the basis of finance tease contracts have been reported
in the balance sheet as fixed assets amounting to € 3,032k (2003/2004: € 3,720k). These relate to
rented buildings. Finance lease contracts are generally concluded for a basic rental period of 10 to 20
years. At the end of the basic rental period, there is an option to extend the contract at least once for a
period of 5 years. The leased assets act as security for the relevant leasing obligations.

i""'n.

In addition to finance lease contracts, the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group has rental and leasing

contracts for DIY store real estate which qualify as operating lease contracts as a result of the assets

leased being economically attributable to the lessor. The leasing contracts have non-terminable basic
. rental periods of 15 to 20 years and generally have a rent prolengation or purchase option.

*® “

A sum of € 92,997k was reported as rental expenses resulting from operating lease contracts, including
ancillary expenses, in the 2004/2005 financial year (2003/2004: € 79,699k).

The real estate in question acts as security for bank loans in the form of registered land charges
amounting to € 402,802k (2003/2004: € 427,560k). -

{14) Financial assals
Financial assets showed the following developments during the year under report:

\€ 000s Sharesin  Investments  [Investment Advance Total
‘ affiliated securities payments for
| companies financial assets

Cost of acquisition

Balance at 03.01.2004 . 0 1 242 601 844 *
Disposals from *
reporting entity 604 0 0 0 604 r
Additions 0 0 3 3 °
Disposals 0 0 78 0 78 *
Reclassifications 604 0 0 -604 0 *
Bafance at 02.28.2005 0 1 164 0 165
Book value at 02.28.2005 0 1 164 0 165
Book value at 02.29.2004 0 1 242 601 844
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[nvestment securities relate to securities which have to be held for legal reasons in Austria as cover for
personnel-related provisions.

Advance payments for financial assets were made for the acquisition of the real estate subsidiary BM
immaobilien Omega GmbH (previously: KiWi Grund GmbH). The shares in this subsidiary were acquired in
full during the 2004/2005 financial year and the company was included in the consolidated financial
statements.

0f the financial assets, € 164k (2003/2004: € 242k) has been stated at market value. All other financial
assets are stated at cost of acquisition in view of the fact that market values cannot be reliably
determined.

(223 Jiher long-lerm assals

Other long-term assets relate to deposits of € 1,627k (2003/2004. € 1,550k) paid as security for
possible subsequent claims of the buyer to purchase price reductions. The deposits have a maximum
term of 17 years.

A9 DY D oS om e m o]
76) Delerrad tanss

Deferred taxes relate to the following items:

C2.28. ZCCV 02.29.2004
i fisssls Ligiites Assets Liabilities
gt % € 000s %

Intangible assets and

tangible fixed assets 1,279 34,119 1,639 35,893
Inventories 338 3,079 147 2,964
Short-term assets 54 171 - 235
Other provisions 4622 - 3,052 -
Liabilities 1,212 4,057 1,181 1,358
Tax-free reserves - 5,399 - 1,570
Loss carry-forwards 6,336 - 9,038 -
Consolidated balance sheet 13,841 46,825 15,057 42,020

The tax legislation in a number of countries in which the Group has operations grants tax exemption to
certain earnings, provided that these are not distributed to shareholders. Tax-exempt earnings
amounted to € Ok at the reporting date (2003/2004: € 684k), which would result in tax obligations
amounting to € Ok (2003/2004: € 293k) if they were distributed to shareholders.

[

(17) ‘mverterias

“ 92283005 02.29.2004

;\ £ CCls € 000s |

Auxiliary materials and supplies 2,035 1,579

Merchandise 432,171 431,040

Inventories (gross) 434,206 432,619

less impairments 7,850 7,644

Inventories {net) 426,356 424,975
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As a result of the conversion of inventory management to SAP Retail scheduled to take place in the
coming financial year, the internal and external presentation of inventory stocks has been revised. The
reduction in acquisition price previously recorded separately as impairments will now be recorded

directly in the gross inventories item. This results in a change in reporting compared with the previous ’
year, which is structured as follows: ]
R
02.29.2004 02.29.2004 .
adjusted reported .
€ 000s € 000s ‘
Auxiliary materials and supplies 1,579 1,579 I
Merchandise 430,944 476,172 '
Inventories (gross) 432,523 471,751 ‘
less impairments 7,548 52,776 ¢
Inventories (net) 424,975 424,975
(12) Azcounts receivalle and other assets
The accounts receivable and other assets of the Group are structured as follows:
\3' 02.28.2005 02.29.2004}}
\ £ 080s € 0003{\
L .
Receivables from sale of land 18,500 0 k
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 6,919 6,781 .
Tax refund claims 6,193 6,338 .
Receivables from credit notes for goods, inter alia 5,082 4,009 °
Receivables from credit card companies 4,933 5,268
Accounts receivable 3,244 2,050
Receivables from affiliated companies 2,071 813 .
of which from shareholders (1,723) {145) .
Claims from contractual penalties 666 2,852
Other assets 5,705 6,445
53,313 34,556
Write-downs amounting to € 658k (2003/2004: € 786k) have been undertaken on accounts receivable.
As in the previous year, there are no major restrictions on ownership or disposition rights in respect of
the other receivables and assets reported in the balance sheet. .
B
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses mainly relate to TV advertising time paid in advance for March 2005, R
to advance payments made for the maintenance of hardware and software, and to insurance premiums R
paid. .
:
®
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(19} Cesh and sash aouivalants

B 02902005 02.29.2004.
; £710%s € 000s.
Credit balances at banks 128,764 34,202

Checks and cash on hand 14,451 14,361

Total 143,215 48,563

(20! Shareiciters” souily

The development of sharehoiders’ equity in the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group is shown in the change
in shareholders’ equity schedule for the 2003/2004 and 2004/2005 financial years.

(Z27) Srhers canital

As a result of the exercising of subscription rights for the first time in connection with the 1999 share option
plan, a total of 86,330 new non-par ordinary shares in the company were issued during the 2004/2005
financial year in the form of a conditional capital increase. The issuing of these new shares resulted in the
share capital of the company rising by € 258,990.00 to its current level of € 45,293,490.00. This is divided
into 15,097,830 ordinary shares (2003/2004: 15,011,500).

The following provisions apply for the authorized and conditional capital:

The annual general meeting held on August 28, 2003 resolved to create new authorized capital | and
authorized capital Il in line with the follawing provisions:

The Board of Management is authorized, with the approval of the Supervisory Board of the company, to
increase the registered capital of the company by up to € 7,500,000 (nominal amount) by August 28, 2008
by means of a single or repeated issue of new shares — ordinary shares with voting rights or non-voting
preference shares — in exchange for cash contributions {Authorized Capital I).

The Board of Management is authorized, with the approval of the Supervisory Board of the company, to
increase the registered capital of the company by up to € 15,000,000 {(nominal amount) by August 28, 2008
by means of a single or repeated issue of new shares — ardinary shares with voting rights or non-voting
preference shares — in exchange for cash or non-cash contributions (Authorized Capital I1).

Total authorized capital therefore amounts to € 22,500,000.00. This corresponds to 49.68% (2003/2004:
49.96%) of the current equity capital.

The conditional increase in the registered capital for executing the 1997 share option plan on the basis of a
resolution passed by the annual general meeting of August 28, 1997 — now amounting to € 565,500.00 — is
still valid (Conditional Capital 1). A sum of € 303,000.00 of Conditional Capital | can no longer be used in
view of the fact that the subscription period for the convertible bond was from May 12 to June 6, 1997 and
has therefore expired.

The annual general meeting held on August 26, 1999 resolved the creation of additional conditional capital
up to a total nominal amount of € 4,500,000.00 by means of the issue of up to 1,500,000 ordinary shares.

This capital is earmarked for the Hornbach share option plan of 1999, details of which can be found under
Note 32 (Conditional Capital I1).
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A total of 86,330 option rights with a nominal value of € 258,990.00 were exercised during the 2004/2005
financial year. Accordingly, the level of conditional capital available as of the reporting date on February 28,
2005 amounted to € 4,241,010.00.

Total conditiona! capital therefore amounts to € 4,503,510.00. This corresponds to 9.9% of the current R
equity capital. L’

On the basis of the resolution passed by the Board of Management on October 4, 2004, the employees of :
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG were offered employee shares. HORNBACH HOLDING AG sold the necessary number R
of shares to HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG from its stock of shares. A total of 17,175 shares were acquired from

HORNBACH HOLDING AG at a price of € 26.00 and subsequently transferred to employees at a price of *
€ 17.00. The difference between purchase and disposal price, amounting to € 9.00 per share, was recorded *
as a charge on operations. :

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG published the following notification in the Stock Exchange Gazette (Bdrsen-
Zeitung) on April 20, 2002 pursuant to Section 41 (3) of the Securities Trading Act (WpHG): HORNBACH
HOLDING AG, Bornheim/Pfalz, has notified us in accordance with Section 41 (2) Sentence 1 of the Securities
Trading Act (WpHG) that it held 80.29% of the voting rights in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG on April 1, 2002.
These relate exclusively to its own voting rights.

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG published the following notification in the Stock Exchange Gazette (Bdrsen-
Zeitung) on August 16, 2002 pursuant to Section 25 (1) of the Securities Trading Act (WpHG): HORNBACH
Familientreuhand GmbH, Annweiler am Trifels, has notified us in accordance with Section 21 (1) and Section
22 (1) of the Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in HORNBACH-Baumarkt AG
exceeded the 5% threshold on August 6, 2002 and is now equivalent to 80.29%. These relate exclusively to
voting rights allocable in accordance with Section 22 (1) No. 1 of the Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
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Furthermore, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG published the following notification in the Stock Exchange Gazette H:

(Bérsen-Zeitung) on October 16, 2002 pursuant to Section 25 (1) of the Securities Trading Act (WpHG): *

Kingfisher plc., London/UK, has notified us in accordance with Section 21 (1) of the Securities Trading Act .
(WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG, Bornheim bei Landau/Pfalz,

o

{ ]

J

[ ]

[ ]

[ J

exceeded the 5% threshold on October 11, 2002.

Kingfisher plc is now entitied to approximately 5.5% of the voting rights in our company (826,924 ordinary
shares). These relate exclusively to its own voting rights. Prior to its acquisition of the 826,924 voting rights,
Kingfisher held no voting rights whatsoever in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG.

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG published the following notification in the Stock Exchange Gazette (Borsen-
Zeitung) on May 30, 2003 pursuant to Section 25 (1) of the Securities Trading Act (WpHG): Platinum Asset
Management Ltd., Sydney/Australia, has notified us in accordance with Section 21 (1) of the Securities
Trading Act (WpHG) that its share of the voting rights in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG, Bornheim bei
Landau/Pfalz, exceeded the 5% threshold on May 27, 2003, and now amounts to around 5.51%. These
relate exclusively to its own voting rights.

« L ]
(22) Capital reserve .
The capital reserve increased by € 2,249,197.32 in the 2004/2005 financial year from € 122,495,448.92 to .‘

€ 124,744 646.24 (2003/2004: unchanged). Of this increase, € 1,920,842.50 results from the exercising of
86,330 option rights at a price of € 25.25 and a computed nominal value of € 3.00 in connection with the

1999 share option plan. Furthermore, a sum of € 328,354.82 of expenses relating to the fourth tranche of

the 1999 share option plan have also been reported in the capital reserve.
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A dividend of € 0.87 each on 15,097,830 ordinary shares 13,135,112.10
Balance to be carried forward to following year 98,121.22
‘_151,‘2_33,233.32
(28} Firencial faailitias
Financial liabilities are made up of the following items:
112004/2005 financial year Maturity Periods S
€ 000s Short-term Long-term C2.28.2C23,
| < 1 year 1-5years > b years okl
Bonds 0 188 239,411 239,599
of which convertible (0) (188) (0) (188)
Liahilities to banks 35,947 168,435 90,603 294,985
Liabilities in connection with
finance lease contracts 796 1,090 1,867 3,753
Liahilities in connection with
derivative financial instruments 3.325 0 0 3,325
40,068 169,713 331,881 541,662
e e e e e T S e T e S T T
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23] Retainad sarnings

Retained earnings related to “statutory reserves” and “other retained earnings”.

Of the retained earnings of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG, an unchanged total of € 1,022,583.76 constitute

statutory reserves.

The retained earnings include foreign exchange conversion differences amounting to € 2,655k

(2003/2004: € -203k).

LY MR ad-aarediminlm m~a ) e e ol At el men e o
(24 Nstrinztanie sarnings and fividends

The distributable amounts relate to the retained earnings of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG determined in

accordance with German commercial law.

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG will propose to the
annual general meeting that, following the withdrawal of € 4,200,000 from other retained earnings, the
retained earnings of € 13,233,233,32 reported by HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG as of February 28, 2005 be

appropriated as follows:
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'it20l13/2004 financial year Maturity Periods
'€ 000s Short-term Long-term 02.29.2004|
I < 1year 1-5years > b years Tutaljg
Bonds - 188 - 188
of which convertible - (188) - (188)
Liabilities to banks 125,013 182,950 99,614 407,571
Liabilities in connection with
finance lease contracts 746 1,716 2,037 4,499
Liabilities in connection with
derivative financial instruments 3,198 - - 3,198
128,957 184,854 101,651 415,462

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has placed a paper with a volume of € 250 million, a term of ten years and an
interest coupon of 6.125% on the European capital market. This liability has been stated under long-
term financial liabilities following the deduction of the related expenses of € 10,880k. The expenses
arising in connection with the corporate bond have been distributed over the term of 10 years using the
effective interest method. The bond is linked to the compliance with covenants customary to banks,
such as the ratio of EBITDA to interest expenses. Non-compliance with the respective ratios or other
obligations set out in the bond agreement may result in a premature repayment obligation. The company
has so far complied with all such covenants.

Land charges amounting to € 402,802k (2003/2004: € 427,560k) have been registered as collateral for
fiabilities to banks.

The HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group had credit lines and other financing agreements amounting to

€ 220.0m on February 28, 2005 (2003/2004: € 181.9m). Its unutilized credit lines and free financing
agreements amounted to € 217.6m (2003/2004: € 75.9m). Furthermore, the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
Group has outstanding credit lines for letters of credit amounting to USD 15.0m, of which USD 9.8m
{2003/2004: USD 8.5m) had not been utilized.

In addition to existing current account liabilities at normal market conditions and the bond issued in the
2004/2005 financial year, the Group also has medium and long-term liabilities to banks. These are
mostly fixed-interest loans and consist of the following items:
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‘152004/2005 financial year Currency % Interest Maturity Amount f
| Agreement 02.28.2005
1 (including £ 600s
‘ swap)
Loans € 05t04.9 2006 to 2009 4,491
Mortgage foans € 375t07.72 2005 t0 2023 245,820
CIK  508t07.98 2010to 2018 36,733
287,044
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| 2003/2004 financial year Currency % Interest Maturity Amount -

Agreement 02.29.2004

(including € 000s/

swap) |

Loans £ 0.5t04.9 2005102023 15,894
Mortgage loans € 456t07.72 2004 to 2023 262,007
CIK 508t07.98 2010to2018 36,638

314,539

The variable interest rates of swapped mortgage loans bear interest at the 3 month EUR-Libor rate, the
6 month EUR-Libor rate, the 3 month Euribor rate and the 6 month Euribor rate. The swap margins
range from 0.30 to 0.75 basis points (2003/2004: 0.30 to 1.30).

Transition of future leasing payments to the liabilities from finance fease contracts:

2004/2005 financial year Total Maturity Periods 1
“l‘€ 000s <lyear 1ta5years > § years|

=t ———

Total leasing payments

to be made in future 5133 1,026 1,691 2,416
Interest component 1,380 230 €01 549
Liabilities from
finance lease contracts 3,753 796 1,090 1,867
5133 1,026 1,691 2418
12003/2004 financial year Total Maturity Periods 1
f}€ 000s <lyear 1todyears > 5 years;

Total leasing payments

to be made in future 6,160 1,026 2,415 2,719

Interest component 1,661 280 699 682

Liabilities from

finance lease contracts 4,499 746 1,716 2,037
6,160 1,026 2415 2,119

a®Y AL e oy 2 i AN
28) Tlagr lang-term leailies

Other long-term liabilities are structured as follows:

{

5 02.20.2004
s € 0005

Liabilities 1,324 0

Accruals 6,498 6,857
Other personnel-related provisions 4,340 0
12,162 6,857
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The liabilities mainly relate to a remaining purchase price liability of € 1,022k (2003/2004: € 0k),
including interest, for the BM Immaobilien Omega GmbH subsidiary (previously: KiWi Grund GmbH).
Furthermare, the liabilities item also includes liabilities of € 197k (2003/2004.: € 0k) resulting from the
valuation of the HORNBACH phantom stock plan.

The accruals were taken in connection with the amounts paid by HORNBACH Immaobilien AG in the
1998/1999 financial year in settlement of damages sustained by HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG in
connection with the termination of existing rental agreements and the conclusion of new rental
agreements with an increased rent and the assumption of maintenance expenses. The accrual item
established for this purpose is being written back to earnings over the outstanding term of the original
rental agreements (19 years).

Other personnel-related provisions mainly relate to partial early retirement and to the statutory reserve
required in Austria to cover potential claims on the part of employees in the event of their leaving the
company. '

The provisions for partial early retirement mainly relate to the partial early retirement agreements
concluded by HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG in the 2004/2005 financial year. The work undertaken by partial
early retirees is performed within the framework of a so-called block model. Provisions amounting to

€ 2,196k have been taken to cover the performance backlog up to the reporting date and for top-up
payments. The provisions were calculated by an expert consultant on the basis of the 1998 mortality
tables issued by Heubeck-Richttafel-GmbH and of a discounting rate of 3.35 % p. a.. Moreover,
provisions of € 98k were taken to cover partial early retirement obligations in Austria.

(27) Accourts pavabls and other liabilities .

L ]

! 02.28.2005  02.29.2004 t

£ 000s € 000s| :

L 2

Advance payments received for orders 3,902 3,885 o
Accounts payable 162,353 153,784
Liabilities to affiliated companies 2,823 72,580
of which: to shareholders (2,771) (271)
Other liabilities 45,148 41,244
of which: taxation (14,013) (7,787}
of which: social security contributions {7,654) {7,384)
214,226 271,493

As in the previous year, all accounts payable and other liabilities have an outstanding term of less than
one year. Accounts payable are secured by reservations of title to the customary extent.

Taxation liabilities include amounts for which the individual group companies are liable. Liabilities for .
social security contributions mainly include contributions yet to be remitted to the social security funds.

Other liabilities mainly include amounts due for outstanding invoices and liabilities for salary payments t
to employees.
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Provisions showed the following developments during the 2004/2005 financial year:

}Type of provision Opening  Changes to Foreign Utilized Released Added @[csingl%
| € 000s Balance Reportipg Curreqcy 32lamce ;
“‘ 03.01.2004 Entity  Gonversion 02.26.2205|
Tax provisions 14,209 -28 55 12,583 1,653 12,660 12,660
Other provisions
Personne! expenses 33,823 0 90 29,978 318 31214 34,831
Other 15,099 5 32 6,926 2,823 11817 17,194
48,922 -5 122 36,904 3,141 43,031 52,025
Total 63,131 -33 177 49 487 4,794 55,691 64,685

- s e e o e - —
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Tax provisions

Tax provisions include provisions for current income taxes and for miscellaneous taxes. In the previous
year, additional taxes arising from an external tax audit undertaken during the 2003/2004 financial year
had been reported. Current income tax provisions are offset against corresponding income tax refund
claims, provided that they relate to the same tax authority and are identical as far as their type and
their due dates are concerned. Tax provisions for current income taxes mainly relate to corporate income
tax (including the solidarity surcharge) and to trade tax. Reference is made to Note 16 with regard to
the deferred taxes capitalized under a special item.

QOther provisions
Provisions for personnel expenses mainly relate to outstanding holiday entitlements, overtime, holiday
pay, Christmas bonuses, employee bonuses, disabled persons levy and pension contributions.

Other provisions mainly relate to gas, water, electricity, year-end expenses, litigation expenses,
insurance expenses, warranty costs, and provisions for disadvantageous contracts.

The provisions for personnel expenses include long-term provisions amounting to € 4,340k (2003/2004:
€ 0k). More detailed information has been provided in this respect under Note 26. As in the previous
year, all taxation and other provisions reported here have an outstanding term of less than one year.

(29) Other finzneial ekligations

:2004/2005 financial year Maturity Periods ﬂZ.Z@.ZEE&;

: € million <lyear 1105 years > D years Tolal J

Purchase obligations for

capital expenditures 57.2 0.0 0.0 57.2

Obligations under rental, hiring,

leasehold and leasing contracts 96.8 339.4 587.8 1,024.0

Other financial obligations 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.9
154.9 3394 587.8 1,082.1
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2003/2004 financial year Maturity Periods 02.29.2004‘ [
€ million < lyear 1to5years >3 years Total | .
Purchase obligations for L
capital expenditures 22.8 0.0 0.0 22,8
Obligations under rental, hiring, ' ¢
leasehold and leasing contracts 84.0 326.8 614 6 1,025.4 ‘
Other financial obligations 1.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 *
107,8 326.8 614.6 1,049.2 ¢
L ]

Furthermore, there is a mutual offer right relating to a leasing contract for an Austrian DIY store with a
garden center with a sales area of 11,825 m?.

The obligations resulting from rental, hiring, leasehold and leasing contracts relate exclusively to those
rental contracts in which the companies of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group do not constitute the
economic owners of the rented assets pursuant to IFRS regulations (Operating Lease). Rental
agreements mainly pertain to DIY stores in Germany and at foreign locations. The terms of the rental
agreements range from 15 to 20 years, and there are subsequent rental prolongation options. The
respective agreements include rent adjustment clauses.

Future income from rental and leasing contracts is as follows:

®
‘ —— —— B
2004/2005 financial year Maturity Periods 02.28.2005 .
€ 000s Short-term Long-term Total
< 1 year 1-3 years > 5 years ‘ ¢
L]
Rental income
Third parties 774 3,067 2,750 6,59
R
2003/2004 financial year Maturity Periods 02.29.2004 *
€ 000s Short-term Long-term Total
: < 1year 1-5 years > 5 years

Rental income
Third parties 816 3,265 3,583 7,664

The rental income results from the letting of retail real properties. In most cases, the rental contracts

have a term of between 5 and 15 years. o

Expenses amounting to € 382k (2003/2004: € 544k) were incurred in connection with the letting of .

properties to third parties during the year under report. R
. . N

(30) Legal dispules

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG does not anticipate that it or any of its group companies will be involved in

current or foreseeable court or arbitration proceedings which could have a material effect on the .

economic situation of the Group. Moreover, appropriate provisions have been taken or appropriate "

insurance benefits are anticipated for any financial charges in connection with other legal or arbitration

proceedings involving the group companies. Such charges are therefore not expected to have any
significant impact on the financial position of the Group.
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As of February 28, 2005, additional risks had emerged in connection with possible disputes in respect of
patent law. While any recourse to HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG in this respect is not deemed likely, the
possibility cannot be completely excluded. The potential recourse amounted to € 13.3m as of the
reporting date. In the event of any recourse in this matter, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has possible
reimbursement claims in the same amount.

(37} Finznelz! inslrumants

Financial instruments are financial transactions based on contracts involving a claim to payment. In
line with 1AS 32 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation), these include primary financial
instruments on the one hand, such as accounts receivable and payable, as well as financial claims and
financial liabilities. On the other hand, they also include derivative financial instruments, such as
options, forward exchange transactions, interest rate swaps and currency swaps.

Primary financial instruments

The volume of primary financial instruments can be seen in the balance sheet. In line with IAS 39
{Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement), asset-side financial instruments are stated at
cost of acquisition or at current market values. Financial instruments which constitute liabilities are
stated at their updated cost of acquisition. Shares in non-consolidated subsidiaries and shareholdings
are also regarded as “financial assets available for sale”, but they are generally valued at cost of
acquisition in view of the fact that there is no active market for these companies and that their
respective current market values cannot be reliably determined without disproportionate expense. Lower
attributable values are stated in the event of there being indications to this effect.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, such as forward exchange transactions, interest limitation agreements
(caps) and interest rate swaps, are used to hedge exchange rate and interest risks. Derivative financial
instruments are initially stated at cost of acquisition and subsequently reported at their current market
values. In line with our risk principles, no derivative financial instruments are held for trading purposes.

The current market values of forward exchange transactions (including the underlying forward exchange
transaction) and foreign currency options are determined on the reporting date on the basis of market
conditions. The market value of interest rate swaps on the reporting date is determined by the financial
institutions with which the swaps were concluded.

The following table provides an overview of the derivative financial transactions on the reporting date
together with their nominal and current market values.

At the same time, the values of opposing transactions, such as foreign exchange purchases or sales, are
shown on a net basis. Nominal value totals are shown in the nominal value line without the offsetting of
any opposing transactions.

Derivative Interest Limitationﬁm Fu;ward Tﬁterest Totaljt
| financial instruments: Agreements Exchange  Rate Swaps :
#2004/2005 financial year Transactions ‘
Nominal value in € 000s 7,101 3,017 44,542 54,660
Market value in € 000s
(before deferred taxes) 0 -26 -3,299 -3,325
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Derivative Interest Limitation Forward interest Total\
financial instruments: Agreements Exchange  Rate Swaps

12003/2004 financial year Transactions

Nominal value in € 000s 8,522 11,273 54,828 74,623
Market value in € 000s

{before deferred taxes) 2 114 -3,198 -3,082

Accounting for hedging transactions

Hedging transactions act as a safeguard against the interest and currency risks associated with an
underlying transaction. The risk of variable interest payments is mainly hedged by means of swaps
which convert the variable interest payment into a fixed interest payment. The currency risk of future
transactions, such as the purchase of goods in the Far East using US dollars, is hedged by means of
forward exchange transactions. Hedging transactions are mainly deployed for currency risks relating to
future transactions which are expected within a period of one year. The market value of cash flow
hedging transactions is shown in the balance sheet as an asset or liability and reported as an opposing
item in the retained earnings taking account of deferred taxes and only recorded as having an effect on
earnings when the payment has actually materialized.

Risks of financial instruments

Currency risk

Currency risks, i.e. the potential reduction in value of a financial instrument on account of changes in
foreign exchange rates, particularly apply wherever accounts receivable and accounts payable exist in a
currency different from the local currency of the company, or will exist in the scheduled course of
business.

The company is exposed to foreign currency risks. These risks derive from the purchase of goods in the
Far East using US dollars, with the corresponding sales mainly being denominated in European
currencies.

The company deploys forward exchange transactions to manage its foreign currency risks. The risks
arising from operating activities are systematically recorded and analyzed. Decisions are taken on a
regular basis as to the scope of hedging deals.

The current market value of forward exchange transactions, including underlying forward exchange
transactions, amounted to € 55k as of February 28, 2005 (2003/2004: € 114k). Of this amount, € 81k
{2003/2004: £ 206k) has been stated as other assets and € 26k (2003/2004: € 92k) as other liabilities.

Interest risk

At the end of the year, the Group was mainly financed by a euro bond amounting to € 250,000k and by
long-term fixed interest euro loans amounting to € 250,311k (2003/2004: € 277,901k) and long-term
CZK loans amounting to € 36,733k (2003/2004: € 36,638Kk). The interest structure of the variable
interest-bearing loans denominated in euros has been modified using derivative financial instruments.
At the end of the 2004/2005 financial year, the Group had interest rate swaps amounting to € 44 542k
{2003/2004: € 54,828Kk), with which a transformation from variable interest commitments to fixed
interest commitments was achieved. The market value of the interest rate swaps amounted to € -3,299k
on February 28, 2005 (2003/2004: € -3,198k) and is reported under financial liabilities. The terms of the
interest rate swaps are coordinated with the terms of the loans.
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The current market values of the above-mentioned interest rate swaps which meet the requirements of
IAS 39 with regard to hedge accounting amounted to € -2,855k on February 28, 2005 (€ -1,931k after
deferred taxes). The current market value of the interest rate swaps as of February 29, 2004 had
amounted to € -2 398k (€ -1,538k after deferred taxes). The changes in the current market values are
recorded under shareholders' equity.

The change in the market value of one interest rate swap not meeting the requirements of IAS 39 with
regard to hedge accounting has been directly recorded in the income statement at € 355k (€ 220k after
deferred taxes). In the previous year, market value changes amounting to € 230k (€ 143k after deferred
taxes) were recorded in the income statement.

Credit risk

Credit risk involves the risk that a contractual party is unable to comply in part or in full with the
obligations entered unto upon the conclusion of a financial instrument. The credit risk of the Group is
limited to the extent that financial assets and derivative financial instruments are concluded as far as
possible with contractual parties of excellent credit standing. Moreover, transactions with individual
contractual partners are subject to @ maximum limit. The maximum credit risk is equivalent to the book
value of the financial assets.

(32) Share opiion pians

1997 share option plan
As part of a share option plan for its employees, the company issued convertible honds (then
denominated in DM) in the 1997/1998 financial year with the following conditions:

Term: 10 years {fuly 1, 1997 to June 30, 2007)
Interest: 5.6 % p. a.

The convertible bonds entitle their holders to acquire shares in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG at a ratio of
1:1 (DM 2,500.00 convertible bonds in 500 shares with a face value of DM 5.00) by making a payment
of DM 52.40 (€ 26.79) per share. The conversion price therefore amounts to DM 57.40 (€ 29.35).

Exercise hurdle: The cash price of the share must be at least 20% higher than the
conversion price {(base price) on the day before the conversion is executed,
i.e. DM 68.88 (€ 35.22).

Disposition restriction: The convertible bond and the resultant right are restricted to the person
entitled to make the subscription and therefore may not be transferred,
encumbered or pledged.

Conversion date: Two fixed conversion periods of 3 weeks each are envisaged for each
calendar year for exercising the conversion right. These periods commence
on the third banking day after the annual general meeting and on the third
banking day after the publication of the nine-month report (mid-December).

The beneficiaries of the share option plan were permitted to subscribe for nominal amounts of
DM 2,500, DM 5,000 or DM 7,500 of the convertible bond.
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The following conditions of conversion also apply:

Latest exercise date: 14 days before the end of the term
Holding period of the shares: None
Lapse of the conversion right: Upon termination of the employment contract, three years after

retirement, three years after the death of the beneficiary. The
convertible bonds are due for repayment when the conversion
right lapses.

e s Q@ o

Subseription rights to 73,500 shares may still be acquired from the convertible bonds issued in the
1997/1998 financial year within the scope of the share option plan for employees.

R Raw Y

As in the previous year, no bonds were converted into shares during the 2004/2005 financial year. An
amount of € Ok (2003/2004: € 9k) was repaid to employees who had left the company.

1999 share option plan
The annual general meeting of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG held on August 26, 1999 established a share
option plan with the following principal features:

Subscription beneficiaries:

A maximum of 1,500,000 subscription rights may be issued during the four-year term of the share
option plan. Within this total, the following maximum allocations apply to the following groups: *
Number of Righis o
Group 1:  Members of the Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG 128,000 .
Group 2:  Members of managerial tiers below the Board of Management 1,100,000 .
Group 3:  Managing Directors of domestic and foreign subsidiaries 52,000 [
Group 4:  Members of managerial tiers below the Managing Directors .
at domestic and foreign subsidiaries 220,000 3

1,500,000

Tranches and acquisition periods:

Four annual tranches are issued during the respective term. These are issued within two months of the

announcement of the company earnings for the third quarter of the financial year. The issue date for the
tranches is therefore the date of the corresponding resolution on the issue by the Board of Management
or the Supervisory Board.

2 e J e 2 e MR

Qualifying period and exercise period:

The qualifying period amounts to two years following the issue of each tranche. After two years, a
maximum of 20% and an additional maximum of 20% each year thereafter up to the end of the sixth
year may be exercised. The exercise period ends seven years after the issue of the final tranche.

* & ¢

Subscription price:
The subscription price is based on the average closing rate of the share in trading on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange during the ten trading days prior to the issue date of the subscription right.

Exercise hurdle and exercise window:

For the subscription rights to be exercised, the exercise hurdle has to be achieved within a period of six
weeks prior to the exercise date. The exercise hurdle is achieved when the share price of HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG in trading exceeds the subscription price, which ranges from € 22.25 to € 29.86
depending on the tranche in question, by at least 30%.
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Furthermore, subscription rights may only be exercised within one month following publication of the
quarterly results or the preliminary sales and earnings figures for the previous financial year (“Exercise
Window"), whereby restrictions based on legal regulations have to be observed, particularly those
contained in the Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Non-transferability and employment relationship:

The subscription rights are not transferable and may not be exercised by third parties, but may be
inherited by the wife, husband or children of the subscription beneficiary. A non-terminated contract of
employment is basically required in the exercise period in order to be able to exercise subscription
rights. Permission may be granted to exercise subscription rights in the year after the termination or
rescission of the employment relationship.

As in the previous year, no more subscription rights were issued during the 2004/2005 financial year on
account of the acquisition period having expired.

The total number of subscription rights issued, including those converted during the 2004/2005
financial year and the subscriptions of employees who have left the company or which have changed
hands, was as follows:

| Previous Year Change 2a'zncs 28 02.2

Number of Rights Number of Rights [lrmasr of

To members of Group 1: 85,500 -7,200 78,300

To members of Group 2: 843,800 -104,270 739,530
To members of Group 3: 40,000 -2,800 37,200
To members of Group 4: 183,800 -46,800 137,000

1,153,100 -161,070 992,030

The fourth tranche of the 1999 share option plan has been valued and accounted for in accordance with
the IFRS 2 Standard (Share-based Payment). As in the previous year, no options from the fourth tranche
were exercised during the 2004/2005 financial year. The arithmetical value per share option for the
fourth tranche of options issued during the 2002/2003 financial year amounts to € 3.£9 per share
option. This calculation is based on computing models for determining option prices for freely tradable
European options (OTC options). The option price calculation includes an appropriate discount for the
exercise hurdle and the exercise window. The exercise price of the share options amounts to € 22.25.
Expenses of € 329k have been accounted for in connection with the valuation of the share option plan in
the 2004/2005 financial year (2003/2004: € Ok) and correspondingly recorded in the shareholders’
gquity.

The total number of rights in this tranche showed the following developments in the 2004/2005
financial year:

Previous Year Lapsed 3z zn2e 2t 12.26.
Number of Rights Number of Rights Namier of

To members of Group 1: 22,500 0 22,500

To members of Group 2: 265,200 -13,200 252,000
To members of Group 3: 12,000 0 12,000

299,700 -13,200 286,500
e e e e e e /W;W =
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2003 phantom stock plan

On the basis of its resolution dated July 7, 2003, the Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
adopted a phantom stock plan in order to avoid any disadvantaging of members of managerial tiers
below the managing dirsctors at domestic and foreign subsidiaries (Group 4 of the 1999 share option
plan). The introduction of the 2003 phantom stock plan is intended to provide such employees with the
opportunity of also participating in the final tranche of the 1999 share option plan in a comparable
manner in terms of the economic outcome.

The value of the option rights is directly dependent on the performance of the share of HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG, but is exclusively based on the payment of a cash amount. The direct acquisition of
shares, as provided for in the 1999 share option plan, is not possible (share-based remuneration with
cash settlement).

Subscription beneficiaries and issue date:
A total of 108,400 option rights were issued on July 7, 2003 for members of managerial tiers below the
managing directors at domestic and foreign subsidiaries.

Qualifying period and exercise period:

The option rights may only be exercised following the conclusion of a qualifying period beginning on the
issue date and expiring on February 3, 2005. Following the conclusion of the qualifying period, a
maximum of 20% and an additional maximum of 20% each year thereafter up to the end of the sixth
year may be exercised. The exercise period ends on February 3, 2010.

Subscription price:

The subscription price is based on the average closing rate of the share in trading on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange during the ten trading days prior to the issue date of the subscription right and
amounts to € 22.25.

Exercise hurdle and exercise window:

For the subscription rights to be exercised, the exercise hurdle has to be achieved within a period of six
weeks prior to the exercise date. The exercise hurdle is achieved when the share price of HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG in trading exceeds the subscription price by at least 30%.

Furthermore, subscription rights may only be exercised within one month following publication of the
quarterly results or the preliminary sales and earnings figures for the previous financial year (“Exercise
Window”), whereby restrictions based on legal regulations have to be observed, particularly those
contained in the Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Non-transferability and employment relationship:

The subscription rights are not transferable and may not be exercised by third parties, but may be
inherited by the wife, husband or children of the subscription beneficiary. A non-terminated contract of
employment is basically required in the exercise period in order to be able to exercise subscription
rights. Permission may be granted to exercise subscription rights in the year after the termination or
rescission of the employment relationship.

Due to the acquisition period having expired, no more subscription rights were issued during the
2004/2005 financial year.
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The options showed the following developments during the 2004/2005 financial year:

Mumier of Rights
Total at beginning of financial year 106,800
Lapsed options 10,800
Exercised options 0
Total on reporting date 96,000

At the reporting date on February 28, 2005, the option was valued at an amount of € 12.26 (2003/2004:
€ 7.78). This calculation is based on computing models for determining option prices for freely tradable
European options (OTC options). The option price calculation includes an appropriate discount for the
exercise hurdle and the exercise window. Expenses of € 197k have been recorded in connection with the
valuation of the share option plan in the 2004/2005 financial year (2003/2004: € Ok).

(38 Relzticnshizs with closely ralated compenies and parsons

In addition to the subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
has direct or indirect relationships with non-consolidated companies when exercising its normal trading

activities. These include the parent company HORNBACH HOLDING AG and its direct and indirect

subsidiaries.

The affiliated companies are as follows:
HORNBACH Familientreuhand GmbH

Parent company
HORNBACH HOLDING AG

Associate companies
HORNBACH Immobilien AG
HORNBACH Baustoff Union GmbH

Subsidiaries and sub-subsidiaries of

associate companies

Decorama HORNBACH Fliesentechnik GmbH

Union Bauzentrum HORNBACH (Bornheim) GmbH

HORNBACH Mietservice GmbH

Union Bauzentrum Becker GmbH

Becker Baubedarf GmbH

Ruhland-Kallenborn & Co. mbH

Ruhland-Kallenborn Grundstiicksverwaltungs-
gesellschaft mbH

Etablissements Camille Holtz et Cie S.A.,
Phalshourg/France

Robert Réhlinger GmbH

BauWerk Zentrum fir's Bauen GmbH {previously:

Robert Rihlinger Bauwerk GmbH)
Self-made Haus GmbH
Werbeagentur Plusconcept GmbH
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HIAG Immabilien Beta GmbH

HIAG tmmobilien Gamma GmbH
HIAG Immobilien Delta GmbH
HIAG Immobilien Jota GmbH

HIAG Fastigheter i Malmo AB
HIAG Fastigheter i Goteborg AB
HIAG Fastigheter i Norrképing AB
HIAG Fastigheter i Helsingborg AB
HIAG Fastigheter i Stockholm AB
HIAG Fastigheter i Géteborg Syd AB
HIAG Eiendom i Lier AS

HY Immobilien Ypsilon GmbH

HN Immobilien Ny GmbH

HX immobilien Xi GmbH

HO Immobilien Omega GmbH
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HR Imobilien Rho GmbH HORNBACH Immobilien SK-BW s.r.0.

HC Immobilien Chi GmbH Reiterer Immobilien GmbH

HM Immobilien My GmbH Sulfat GmbH & Co Objekt Bamberg KG
HORNBACH Real Estate Nederland B.V. Sulfat GmbH & Co Objekt Diiren KG
HORNBACH Immobilien H.K. s.r.0. Sulfat GmbH & Co Objekt Saarbriicken KG

The following principal transactions were executed with the aforesaid affiliated companies:

f 02.28.2005  02.29.2004

voAH"oooEo

‘ € 000s € 000s
Rent and ancillary costs for rented
DIY stores with garden centers 40,417 37,603
Interest charges for group financing 548 925
Allocations made for administration expenses 2,053 1,188
Allocations received for administration expenses 1,752 1,784
Deliveries and services to HORNBACH HOLDING AG
and its subsidiaries 772 1,655
At February 28, 2005, there were receivables amounting to € 2,071k (2003/2004: € 813k) due from and
payables amounting to € 2,823k (2003/2004: € 72,580k) due to HORNBACH HOLDING AG and its ®
subsidiaries. All transactions are undertaken at normal market prices and with customary delivery |
conditions. .
[
Furthermore, HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG sold a piece of land acquired during the year under report at an '
acquisition cost of € 1,009k to HORNBACH Immobilien AG. k
The Supervisory Board members and former longstanding members of the Board of Management, .
Messrs. Albert Wilhelm Hornbach and Otmar Hornbach, are continuing to put their extensive experience o

at the disposal of the company within the framework of a consulting contract. Their advisory services
are remunerated by means of a symbolic amount of one euro each per month.

{34} Lvenls subseguent to the reporting date
One DIY store with a garden center in Germany was sold at a price amounting to € 18.5m at the
beginning of the 2005/2006 financial year.

The Supervisory Board will pass resolution on the approval of the consolidated financial statements for
publication at its meeting on June 21, 2005.
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(35) Supervisory 3eard end Board of Yenagement

The following persons were members of the Board of Management in the 2004/2005 financial year:
Steffen Hornbach, Graduate in Engineering Chairman

Dr. Bernd Liibcke, Graduate in Mathematics

Roland Pelka, Graduate in Business Administration

Bernd Rob, Graduate in Business Administration

liirgen Schrdcker, Graduate in Business Administration  from October 1, 2004

Manfred Valder, Businessman

The total remuneration paid to the Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG for assuming their
duties and responsibilities for the Group amounted to € 2,632k in the 2004/2005 financial year
(2003/2004: € 1,809k). Of the aforesaid amount, € 1,073k (2003/2004: € 954k) related to fixed
remuneration and € 1,559% (2003/2004: € 855k) to performance-related components. The members of
the Board of Management owned a total of 21,767 shares in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG at the reporting
date on February 28, 2005 (2003/2004: 21,362).

The following persons were members of the Supervisory Board in the 2004/2005 financial year:
As representatives of the shareholders:

Gerhard Wolf Chairman
Graduate in Business Administration, Worms

Dr. Wolfgang Rupf Deputy Chairman
Director

AKV Altkénig Verwaltungs GmbH

Konigstein

Albert Wilhelm Hornbach

Director

HORNBACH Familientreuhand GmbH
Annweiler am Trifels

Albrecht Hornbach

Chairman of the Board of Management
HORNBACH HOLDING AG

Neustadt an der Weinstrasse

Otmar Hornbach

Director

HORNBACH Familientreuhand GmbH
Annweiler am Trifels
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William John Whiting

4
Company Director
Kingfisher plc
London i
*
As representatives of the employees: b
[ ]
Rudolf Helfer Senior Deputy Chairman .
Senior Specialist for Occupational Safety for salaried employees .
Kerstin Heidtke for salaried employees H[
Sales Assistant, Saarbriicken Store :
[ )
Christian Lilie for managerial employees *
District Manager, Southern Region
Johannes Otto for the trade unions
Assistant Store Manager, Mannheim-Neckarau Store
Ralf Puley for salaried employees
Assistant Store Manager, Wuppertal Store *
L )
Dirk Reimers for the trade unions Bw
Trade Union Secretary, ver.di .
Mainz *
.
The remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board amounted to € 161k in the 2004/2005 r
financial year (2003/2004: € 162k). This included € 92k (2003/2004: € 93k) in the form of fixed o
remuneration and € 69k (2003/2004: € 69k) in the form of performance-related components. The .
members of the Supervisory Board owned 68,162 shares in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG on the reporting .

date (previous year: 147,441).

The current term in office of all members of the Supervisory Board expires upon the conclusion of the
annual general meseting releasing them from responsibility for the 2007/2008 financial year.
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Members of the Supervisory Board of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG

a) Membership of legally prescribed supervisory boards
b) Membership of comparable control bodies

Gerhard Wolf

a) HORNBACH HOLDING AG (Chairman)
K+S Aktiengesellschaft (Chairman)
Kali und Salz GmbH (Chairman)

Dr. Wolfgang Rupf

a) HORNBACH HOLDING AG (Deputy Chairman)
GC Corporate Finance AG (Member)
PEIKER acoustic GmbH & Co KG (Member)

Albert Wilhelm Hornbach
a) HORNBACH HOLDING AG (Member)
WASGAU Produktions & Handels AG (Member)

RNE

Otmar Hornbach
a) HORNBACH Immobilien AG (Chairman)
HORNBACH HOLDING AG (Member)
WASGAU Produktions & Handels AG (Deputy Chairman)

Dirk Reimers
b) Metro C+C GmbH (Member)*

William John Whiting
b) B&Q International Co. Ltd*
B&Q Ireland Ltd™
B&Q Taiwan*
Kogtas Yapi Marketleri Ticaret AS*
Pescador SARL*

* not relevant for determining the maximum number of supervisory board mandates pursuant to Section 100 (2) Neo. 1
of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
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Members of the Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG

a) Membership of legally prescribed supervisory boards
b) Membership of comparable control badies

Roland Pelka
a) WASGAU Produktions & Handels AG (Member)

Bernd Rob
a) HORNBACH Immobilien AG (Deputy Chairman)

Jiirgen Schricker
b) Poco Holding GmbH (Member)*

Manfred Valder
a) HORNBACH Immobilien AG (Member)

* not relevant for determining the maximum number of supervisory board mandates pursuant to Section 100 (2) No. 1
of the Stack Corporation Act (AktG)

Bornheim, May 10, 2005

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-Aktiengeselischaft
The Board of Management

Steffen Hornbach Dr. Bernd Liibcke Roland Pelka
Bernd Rob Jlirgen Schricker Manfred Valder
L J
.
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Auditor's Report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements, comprising the balance sheet, the income
statement and the statements of changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows as well as the notes to
the financial statements compiled by Hornbach-Baumarkt-AG, Bornheim bei Landau/ Pfalz, for the
business year from March 1, 2004 to February 28, 2005. The preparation and the content of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with German auditing
regulations and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated
by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
such that it can be assessed with reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements
are free of material misstatements. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal
environment of the Group and evaluations of possible misstatements are taken into account in the
determination of audit procedures. The evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements is examined on the basis of random samples within the framework of
the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the net assets,
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Group for the business year in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

QOur audit, which also extends to the group management report prepared by the Company's management
for the business year from March 1, 2004 to February 28, 2005, has not led to any reservations.

In qur opinian, the group management report provides a suitable overall representation of the Group's
position and suitably presents the risks of future development. In addition, we confirm that the
consolidated financial statements and the group management report for the business year from March 1,
2004 to February 28, 2005 satisfy the conditions required for the Company's exemption from its duty to
prepare consolidated financial statements and the group management report in accordance with
German law.

Frankfurt am Main, May 10, 2005

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Laubach Kleinbeck
Wirtschattspriifer Wirtschaftspriferin
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| HORMBACH-Baumarkt-Aktiengesellschaft
! D-76878 Bornheim bei Landau/Pfalz

Germany Investor Relations
-1 Telephone (+49) 63 48 60 00 Telephone (+49) 63 48 60 23 20
Telefax ~ (+49) 63 48 60 40 00 E-mail  invest@hornbach.com

Internet  http://www.hornbach.com
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HORNBACH Group concludes best year in its history
= 1,000 new jobs created

Record sales and a jump in earnings in the 2004/2005 financial year /
consolidated sales rise by 8 percent to Euro 2.22 billion / EBIT
improves by 25 percent to Euro 99 million / Company outperforms the
sector

Frankfurt am Main, June 24, 2005. The HORNBACH GROUP, which
operates one of the largest DIY store chains in Europe, countered the trend
in the overall sector and achieved significant sales and earnings growth in
the 2004/2005 financial year (02.28). Even though the “Do-it-yourself’
sector, like the overall retail sector, was affected by the subdued consumer
climate, and by an aggressive price war, the net sales of the HORNBACH
HOLDING AG parent company rose by eight percent to Euro 2.22 billion.
The HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG subgroup, at which the core DIY store and
garden center business is pooled, improved its net sales by 8.9 percent to
Euro 2.09 billion, breaking through the Euro 2 billion mark for the first time.

“2004/2005 was the best financial year in the long history of our company,”
commented Roland Pelka, CFO of HORNBACH HOLDING AG, at the
annual press co nference in Frankfurt am Main. The earnings before interest
and taxes (EBIT) of the overall Group rose by 25 percent compared with
the previous year to reach Euro 99 million. The EBIT of the HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG subgroup rose by 41 percent to a record Euro 91 million.
Eamings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
showed a vyear-on-year improvement of 16 percent to reach
Euro 181 million at the overall Group, and of 20 percent to reach
Euro 152 million at the Baumarkt subgroup. Earnings before tax at the
overall Group rose by 37 percent to Euro 62 million, while pre-tax earnings
at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG improved by an impressive 55 percent to

reach Euro 68 million.

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 - Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 - invest@hornbach.com
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Solid financial base for the Group

Pelka highlighted the Group’s solid financial base. “With an equity ratio of
30.4 percent at the overall Group and of 31.3 percent at the HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG subgroup, we can rely on a high degree of security and
flexibility for the ongoing financing of our growth in Germany and abroad.”
The high level of liquidity at the company was largely due to the
Euro 250 million bond placed with institutional investors by HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG in November 2004. In terms of accessing. sources of. capital
for further expansion, this represented new territory for a family-managed

medium-sized company.

Dividend at same level as in previous year o

As a result of the excellent earnings situation in the past fmancnal year the
Board of Management will be proposing the distribution of dividends of the
same level as in the previous year for approval by the annual general
meetings to be held at the beginning of September. The dividends. would

amount to Euro 1.14 for the preference shares in HORNBACH HOLDING

AG and Euro 0.87 for the ordinary shares in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG.

“We are thus maintaining our policy of dividend continuity,” stressed the

CFO. “Investors can rely on HORNBACH shares as a solid long-term
investment with high intrinsic value and a stable dividend.”

More than 11,700 employees at HORNBACH ‘

HORNBACH opened five new DIY. megastores with garden centers in the
past financial year and created just under 1,000 new jobs, half of which are
in Germany. The company currently operates 119 DIY megastores and
garden centers with total sales areas of more than 1.2 million square
meters. In the current financial year, the total number of stores is expected

to increase to up to 125 with total sales areas of.more -than 1.3 million

square meters. The HORNBACH Group now has more than 11,700

employees. The 2005/2006 financial.year can be expected to. see further.

growth in this respect as well.

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (O) 6348/60—2444 - Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 - lnvest@hornbach.com
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Sales growth maintained in Q1, but earnings down on prévious year
The HORNBACH Group increased its salés in the first quarter of the
current 2005/2006 financial year, with both companies reporting sales
growth of 54% to Euro 651 million (Group) and Euro 617 million
(HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG). However, the sales growth was mainly
attributable to the increase in sales areas, with a marginal decline in like-
for-like sales. This was principally due to the cold, wet weather conditions in
March, the effects of which'could not be fully compensated for in the two
subsequent months. “Moreover; inview. of price competition remaining
tough, the company had budgeted for a lower gross margin than in the
previous year. Taken together, these factors meant that earnings fell short
of expectations — as already published in ad-hoc annhouncements; -

Strategic partnership with Kingfisher pays off

For the overall financial 'ye‘ér the company expécts to generate sales of
around Euro 2.4 billion” ‘(Group) and of almost Euro 2.3 billion
(HORNBACH- Baumarkt-AG) Earmngs at the overall Group and at its DIY

subsidiary wiil fall short of the record figures published for the past year,
This is partly due to the increased costs relating to thé opening of nine new -

DIY megastores with garden centers, and‘to the rollout of SAP to all stores.
Eamings will be positively affected by' the‘ébmpany’s strategic partnership
with the British Kingfisher group. This cooperation with the largest DIY

operator in Europe not only represents a strategic E:o"mpé‘titive advantage,

but also produces price benefits as a result of the: joint product procurement

activities.

Higher growth than the sector

“We expect our comparable store sales and-earnings to 'show more rapid
growth than the overall sector’once again,” underlined Pelka. This would
mark the seventh consecutiveé year in -which-” HORNBACH had
outperformed the sector average ‘in its core German: market. The market
share of the HORNBACH Group will grow from 7.6 percent to 8 percent in
the current financial year. By comparison, in 1998 it had still amounted to
4.9 percent.

Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 - invest@hornbach.com
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Note: the annual report for the 2004/2005 financial year and the .. . .-
extensive quarterly report for the first quarter of 2005/2006 have been
published at www.hornbach.com. o L T e

Contact

Investor Relations Press / Public Relations « 7. 'n < v oo aen

Axel Miiller S Dr. Ursula Dattht - et b s

76878 Bornheim bei Landau. , ., -~ .. 67433 Neustadta. d. W, T AP I T S

Tel: (+49) 0 63 48/ 60 - 24 44 Tel: (+49) 063 21/ 678 - 93 21 o

Fax: (+49) 063 48/60-4299 - - Fax: (+49) 063 21/678=93 00" ~ 171"\ /b v 70 ot

E-mail: invest@hornbach.com E-mail: presse@hornbach.com o ,
P R S Y P :
Internet: www.hornbach.com c L T PR VR L PR o OO
! g ‘
q ] o
:ja, t
L i
)
N
" .
4

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 — Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 — invest@hornbach.com

0 g A DAY

i

T

- 0y

M S S I

:».;‘

I

ot T R R

N ”’O}f -

i s T I

iR TuiC T

T TR T @ G

o 9: PR d

| Sl



AVURNBALUH: [

~HO LDING AG TEs. gu‘xt immer was 20 tun

PRESSEMITTEILUNG - PRESS RELEASE PRESSEMITTEILUNG

HORNBACH Group:

Continuous Sales and Earnings Growth

Company superbly placed for forthcoming consolidation in the sector
!/ Highest sales surface profitability / International share to increase
further to 40 percent / Permanent low price vs. “discount battle”

Frankfurt am Main, June 24, 2005. The HORNBACH Group is convinced
that it will emerge as one of the winners.from the forthecoming consolidation
of the German DIY sector. “Our company is superbly placed in Germany
and abroad. Our sales and .e\a;rnings'ha\/e grown more rapidly than sector
averages for many years now,” commented Albrecht Hornbach, Chairman
of the Board of Management of HORNBACH HOLDING AG, at the annual
press conference in Frankfurt am Main. “The HORNBACH Group has built
up such a lead over its competitors in terms of efficiency that it can afford to
sit back and watch the market consolidation expected in Germany.”

Thousands of jobs created

Hornbach pointed out that the sales of HORNBACH HOLDING AG had
risen by close to 20 times since the year preceding the company’s IPO in
1987 ~ from Euro 113 million in the 1986/87 financial year to Euro 2.22
billion in 2004/2005. The number of DIY stores and centers operated by the
Group had risen from 16, all of which were located in Southern Germany, to
119 across eight European countries. The number of jobs at HORNBACH
had grown over the same period from 630 to its current total of more than
11,700. “HORNBACH is one of only eleven companies in Germany to have
continuously created additional jobs in the past five years,” added Albrecht
Hornbach.

With an average store size of more than 10,300 square meters,
HORNBACH occupied the first place in the entire sector. HORNBACH's
lead over its competitors did not only involve store size, however, but also
included sales surface productivity. The company generated annual sales
of Euro 1,800 per square meter of sales surface — “a figure which leaves all
of our competitors behind us,” stressed Hornbach.

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 — Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 - invest@hornbach.com
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Right strategic decisions taken

With the launch of its international expansion in 1996, HORNBACH had
taken the right strategic decision, continued the Chairman of the Board of
Management. The company already generated a third of its sales at its 31
internationai stores, which are spread across Austria, the Netherlands,
Sweden, Luxembourg, Switzerland, the Czech Republic and Slovakia.
Earnings at the international stores were higher than those in the highly
contested, and thus less profitable, domestic market. “"Our ongoing
international growth will continue to offset the weakness of the domestic
economy. We aim to expand further and to increase our international share
of sales to 40 percent in the coming years,” stressed the HORNBACH
boss.

150 HORNBACH stores by 2010

Hornbach announced the opening of 35 new DIY megastores with garden
centers over the next five years. The total number of stores operated by the
company was expected to exceed 150 in 2010, with sales areas
significantly in excess of 1.74 million square meters. “We are not interested
in sales surface expansion at any price. What counts for our results is not
the number of the stores, but rather their profitability. That's why we are
only expanding at locations where we can achieve the required
productivity”, he explained. “Even in Germany, there is certainly no lack of
attractive locations for new store openings”. The scheduled growth would
also lead to a further rise in the number of employees at the HORNBACH
Group. “Our company will continue to act as a job machine in the coming
years, and will create thousands of new jobs", remarked Albrecht
Hornbach.

Price leadership with permanent low prices

Hornbach was unperturbed by the increasingly tough levels of price
competition in Germany. “Some of our competitors are trying to attack each
other at ever decreasing intervals with ‘discount campaigns' and ‘bargain

offers” aimed at obtaining market share. Our customers can rely on

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 — Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 ~ invest@hornbach.com
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obtaining quality products at permanently low prices at all times. This

makes us the price leader on a permanent basis.”

Transparency for the financial markets

HORNBACH is the only publicly listed company in the German DIY sector.
The two companies, HORNBACH HOLDING AG and HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG, are thus committed to providing investors with a particularly
high degree of transparency. They publish company data on a regular basis
and are open to assessment by analysts and the banks. Apart from the
Metro Group, HORNBACH is the only retail company in Germany to have
received a public rating over and above its stock market listing. “Our
expansion strategy is constantly in the public eye,” explained Albrecht
Hornbach. “However, we view this transparency as constituting an
advantage over our unlisted competitors, rather than a disadvantage. The
public assessment means that we are constantly obliged to measure our
strategic goals against actual developments and to make rapid adjustments
Whenever necessary,” emphasized the Chairman of the Board of
Management.

Contact

Investor Relations

Axel Muller

76878 Bornheim bei Landau
Tel: (+49) 063 48/ 60 - 24 44
Fax: (+49) 0 63 48/ 60 - 42 99
E-mail: invest@hornbach.com

Internet: www.hornbach.com

Press / Public Relations

Dr. Ursula Dauth

67433 Neustadt a. d. W.

Tel: (+49) 063 21/ 678 - 93 21
Fax: (+49) 0 63 21/678 - 93 00
E-mail: presse@hornbach.com

HORNBACH-Investor Relations ~ Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 — Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 — invest@hornbach.com
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HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group
Interim Report (IFRS) for the First Quarter of 2005/2006
(March 1 - May 31, 2005) 1

o First-quarter sales at DIY megastores with garden centers affected by cold, wet weather
y | L]
o Consolidated safes up by 5.4 % - comparable stores sales minus 0.5 % i
{ 3
i o Earnings below racord level in previous year
’ In the first quarter of the current financial year (March 1 to May 31, 2005), the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group was not able to ‘
B repeat the record performance reported for the equivalent period in the previous year. Similar to the overall sector, HORNBACH 5
suffered from the wet and cold weather conditions in March 2005. Consolidated sales rose by 5.4% to € 617m, and thus fell short
jl E of expectations. Like-for-like sales at the DIY megastores with garden centers showed a slight decline of 0.5% in the first three
‘x months of the current financial year. The decline of 1.3% reported for Germany in this respect was offset by growth of 1.2% at the *:1
f international HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers. The unsatisfactory sales situation in the first quarter, coupled with a o
4 year-on-year decline in the gross margin, means that earnings were weaker than in 2004/2005. Earnings before interest and taxes 9
(EBIT) dropped by 28.6% to € 32.4m (previous year: € 45.4m). Consolidated earnings before taxes fell by 36.8% to € 25.6m
{previous year: € 40.5m). .
Key Figures HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group Change .
. (in € m, unless otherwise stated) 1st Quarter 2005/2006  1st Quarter 2004/2005 in%
Net sales 616.7 585.2 5.4 :
of which in other European countries 211.6 186.8 133
A international share of net sales (in %) 34.3% 31.9%
Like-for-like sales growth -0.5% 2.2%
5 Gross margin (as % of net sales) 35.7% 36.9% by
EBITDA 46.8 59.2 -21.0
; as % of net sales 71.6% 10.1%
; Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 32.4 454 -28.6 o
as % of net sales 5.3% 7.8% ,
f‘~ Consolidated earnings before taxes 25.6 40.5 -36.8 8
Consolidated net income 165 24.2 -31.8
i 3
Earnings per share (€) 1.09 161 -32.9
= Capital expenditures 309 8.8 251.1 L
Total assets 1,357.9 1,175.3 15.5 i
b Shareholders’ equity 416.1 388.8 7.0 3
E Shareholders’ equity as % of total assets 30.7% 33.1%
?": No. of employees 11,095 10,235 8.4 ]
3 No. of stores 119 114 44 ]
3 Sales area as per BHB (in 000 m?) 1,231 1,133 8.6 ;
" Average store size (in m?) 10,344 10,005




Consolidated sales rise by 5.4 %

The net sales of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group rose by 5.4% in the first quarter of 2005/2006 (March 1 to May 31, 2005) to
reach € 616.7m (previous year: € 585. 2m). The HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers outsrde Germany contributéd sales
of € 211.6m to this figure (previous year: € 186.8m). The international share of overall sales rose to 34.3% in the first quarter
(previous year: 31.9%).

New HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers were opened in Malmd, Sweden, and Kosice, Slovakia, in the first three months
of the financial year, in both cases with sales areas of more than 15,000 m2 The number of retail outlets in the HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG Group therefore rose to 119 during the period under report (previous year: 114). As of May 31, 2005, a total of 88 DIY
megastores and garden centers were in operation in Germany. The 31 stores in other Eurdpe_an countries are distributed as follows:
Austria (11}, the Netherlands (8), the Czech Republic (4), Switzerland (3), SWeden {2}, Slovakia (2) and Luxembourg (1). With total
sales areas of around 1,231,000 m?, the average HORNBACH DIY store size amounts to 10,344 m?.

Like-for-tike sales 0.5% down on previous year

Like-for-like sales at the Group were 0.5% lower in the first quarter of the current financial year than in the equivalent period in
the previous year (plus 2.2%). In view of the overall decline witnessed by the retail sector in Germany, the German HORNBACH DIY
megastores with garden centers recorded a 1.3% decline in like-for-like sales, whrch is primarily attributable to the downturn in
sales witnessed in March 2005 as a result of weather coriditions. Like-for-like sales at stores outside Germany, by contrast, rose by
1.2% in the first quarter. The sales performance increasingly improved in April and May 2005, but the growth in both months was
not sufficient to compensate for March.

First-guarter earnings negatively affected by sales performance in March

As a result of the unsatisfactory business performance in the reporting period of March to May 2005, consolidated earnings before
taxes showed a year-on-year decline of 36.8% to € 25.6m (previous year: € 40.5m). Earnmgs before interest and taxes (EBIT)
dropped by 28.6% to € 32.4m (previous year: € 45.4m). Earnings before interest and taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
fell by 21.0% to € 46.8m (previous year: € 59, 2m) Consolidated net income d|m|n|shed by 31.8% to € 16.5m (prevrous year:

€ 24.2m). Earnings per share calculated in line with IFRS were reported at € 1.09 (prevrous year: € 1. 61) ‘

The decline in key operatrng figures in the frrst quarter was marnly caused by the Iower level of Irke for-like sales as a result of
weather conditions, as well as by a year-on-year decrease in the gross margln The gross profit fell as a percentage of sales across
the Group from 36.9% to 35.7%. This principally reflects the measures taken to'secure the permanent price leadership enjoyed by
HORNBACH. In conjunction with the poor sales performance witnessed in March, this had a negative impact on earnings in the first
guarter of 2005/2006. The company will nevertheless adhere to its long-term permanent low price strategy, regardless of seasonal
sales fluctuations, so as to be able to attract customers to the HORNBACH brand on an ongoing basis.

Selling, store, general and administration expenses were on budget in absolute terms in the period from March to May 2005. As a
result of sales remaining below budget, however, cost ratios deteriorated during the quarter under report.

11,085 employess
At the reporting date on May 31, 2005, there were 11,095 (previous year: 10,235 ) individuals across Europe in fixed employment at
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG or one of its subsidiaries.

Investments of € 31m

A total of € 30.9m was invested during the first three months of the current financial year (previous year: € 8.8m), primarily in land
and buildings (55%) and in plant and office equipment (45%). The sharp rise in investment compared with the previous year is
attributable to the increased number of new store openings in the 2005/2006 reporting year. Information as to the financing and
investment activities of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has been provided in the cash flow statement in the notes to this report,




A

Sutlock

In spite of the temporary setbacks in the companys busmess performance the Board of Management consrders rts long-term sales

development and earmngs power fo be stable. The growth strategy consrstently implemented over many years will be maintained
without any cutbacks.

HORNBACH plans a total of nine new store openings in the 2005/2006 financial year. Five locations are on the agenda in Germany:
Berlin, Frankfurt am Main, Wirzburg, Kiel and Munich. The HORNBACH DIY megastore with a garden center in Mannheim-Neckarau
opened in 1982, which is no longer up-to-date, will be closed during the current financial year. Up to four new stores are scheduled
to be opened at HORNBACH International GmbH. These relate to stores in Sweden, Slovakia, the Czech Republic and the
Netheriands. The opening of the store in Alblasserdam (Netherlands), which was scheduled to take place in 2005/2006, has been
subject to a further delay as a result of permit procedures, and may have to be postponed until the 2006/2007 financial year.

QOverall, the number of HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers, accounting for the closure of one location, will increase by
up to eight to a total of 125,

The sales and earnings torecast for the overall 2005/2006 financial year, which was already announced in April together with the
preliminary figures for 200472005, is to be adjusted downwards in view of business developments in the first quarter. Accordingly,

the net sales generated by the HORNBACH Baumarkt AG Group, rncludlng those at newly opened stores are expected to rise to
almost € 2. 3bn

Taking account of the current business performance in the first quarter, the Board of Management does not anticipate that it will
be possible to catch up the shortfall in earnings in the coming quarters. HORNBACH expects price competition in the DIY sector to
remain tough, and has accounted for this in its earnings forecast for the current financial year. Consolidated earnings before taxes
are expected to remarn srgnlfrcantly below the record Ievel reported for the 2004/2005 financial year (€ 68.0m).

There are two main reasons for this development.'y_On the one hand, HORNBACH is prepared to accept a reduced gross margin in
order to maintain its price leadership in the event of individual DIY competitors introducing even more aggressive pricing, policies.
The company can thus secure additional room for maneuver and increase the consolidation pressure within the DIY sector, even if
this has a temporarily negative impact on its earnings situation. On the other hand, account also has to be taken of a higher level
of pre-opening expenses, one-off project-related expenses rncurred in connectron with the introduction of SAP, and a Iower level of
disposal profits from sale and rent back transactrons '

i

Bornheim bei Landau, June 24, 2005
— The Board of Management —
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HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group

Income Statemelii -

st Quarter 2005/2006  1st Quarter 2004/2005 Change

€ million € million in %

Sales 616.7 585.2 54
Costs of goods sold 396.4 369.4 13
Gross profit 2203 215.8 21
Selling and store expenses -170.0 149.3 13.9
Pre-opening expenses 2.3 1.5 53.3
General and administration expenses 22.1 20.8 6.3
Other income and expenses - 6.5 1.2 4417
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT). 324 454 -28.6
Net financial expenses -6.8 -4.9 38.8
Consolidated earnings before taxes 25.6 40.5 -36.8
Taxes on income 9.1 16.3 -44.2
Consolidated net income 16.5 242 -31.8




HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group
Balance Sheet

‘ May 31, 2005 May 31, 2004 February 28, 2005
ASSETS £ mitlion % € million % € million % a
A. Long-term assets 651.8 48.0 649.7 55.2 650.9 51.1
|. Intangible assets 254 1.9 15.6 1.3 255 2.0 ]
Il. Property, plant and equipment 6100 . 449 _  6l76 52.5 609.8 479
IIl, Financial assets - : : 0.2 0.0 038 0.1 0.2 0.0
IV, Other long-term assets 1.6 0.1 16 0.1 1.6 0.1 :
V. Deferred tax claims 14.6 11 141 12 13.8 11
B. Short-term assets . o 706.1 520. 5256 44.8 622.9 48.9
. Inventories 454.5 33.5 4281 365 426.4 33.5 -
Il. Accounts receivable and other assets . 318 . 2.3 ... 386 3.3 53.3 4.2
IIl. Cash and cash equivalents 219.8 162 0 589 5.0 143.2 11.2 ﬁ
Total Assets ' e . 1,351.9 1000 . 1,1753 1000 1,2713.8 100.0
May 31, 2005 May 31, 2004 February 28; 2005 ‘
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES £ million % - € million - % € million % 3
A. Shareholders’ equity : 416.1 30.7 =~ 3888 331 398.6 313
I. Share capital : 455 34 . 45.0 38 45.3 3.6
{I. Capital reserve : .126.6 9.3 1225 104 124.7 9.8
ill. Retained earnings 2215 . 168 1871 16.8 - 185.3 145 '
V. Consolidated net income . - i 165 12 242 21 433 34
B. Long-term liabilities 555.0 409 3314 28.2 560.6 441 !
I. Long-term debt 495.4 36.5 279.7 238 501.6 39.4
II. Deferred taxes a . 48.3 3.6 45.0 3.8 46.8 3.7 &
[1l. Other liabilities ‘ ‘ ALy - 08 6.7 0.6 12.2 1.0
C. Short-term liabilities 386.8 28.4 455.1 38.7 314.6 246 o
. Short-term debt 34.1 2.5 127.2 10.8 40.1 3.1
Il. Accounts payable and other liabilities 276.9 20.3 236.8 20.1 214.2 16.8
Ill. Tax provisions 13.1 1.0 23.6 2.1 12.6 1.0 1
IV. Other provisions 62.7 4.6 67.5 5.7 47.7 3.7

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,357.9 100.0 1,175.3 100.0 1,213.8 100.0




HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group

Cash Flow Statement

Tst Quarter 2005/2006  1st Quarter 2004/2005
€ mitlion € million
Consolidated net income 11 24
Depreciation and amortization 14 14
Change in provisions 0 0
Profits/losses on the sale of fixed assets -4 0
Change in inventories, accounts receivable and
other assets o ) -26 -6
Change in accounts payable and
other liabilitiess 78 42
Other income/expenses with no cash effect 1 4
Cash flow from operating activities 80 18
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets - 38 0
Payments for investments in tangible assets -30 -18
Payments for investments in intangible assets -1 -1
Cash flow from investing activities 1 -19
Receipts from capital increases 2 0
Repayment of long-term debt -7 -10
Payments for group financing activities 0 -40
Change in short-term debt -5 1
Cash flow from financing activities -10 -49
Change in cash and cash equivalents 77 10
Cash and cash equivalents at March 1 143 49
Cash and cash equivalents at May. 31 220 59

The change in provisions item only includes provisions whose m’ziturity or amount is uncertain, The figure for the previous year has

accordingly been adjusted by € 28m. As in the fir

1st Quarter of 2005/2006.

st quarter of the pre\_/ious year, there were no changes to these provisions in the




HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

First Quarter 2004/2005
' Cumulative Other
Share Capital Hedging  Gurrency  Retfained Netincome Total
€ million Capital Reserve Reserve Conversion  Earnings for the Year Equity
Balance at March 1, 2004 45 122 -2 ] 170 28 363
Foreign currency adjustments 1 1
Valuation of derivative
financial instruments, net after taxes 1 1
Transfer to reserves . 28 -28 0
Net income for the year L ' 24 24
Balance at May 31, 2004 45 122 -1 1 198 24 389
First Quarter 2005/2006
. - _ c _+ - . Comulative - Dther

. Share Capital Hedging . Currency  Retained NetlIncome Total
€ million Capital Rgserve Reserve "Conversion "Earnings for the Year Equity
Balance at March 1, 2005 - 45 125 -2 3 t. 183 43 399
Foreign currency adjustments -1 ' -1
Capital increase v
from share option plans 2 2
Valuation of derivative ’
financial instruments, net after taxes -1 -1
Transfer to reserves 43 -43 0
Net income for the year o 17 17
Balance at May 31, 2005 45 1217 -3 2 228 17 416
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HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Groyg " 7e0
Notes to the Group Interim Report as of May 31, 2005

(1) Accounting principies

This non-audited group interim report of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG and its subsidiaries for the first three months as of May 31,
2005 has been compiled in accordance with the accounting principles promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), London. Application has been made of all International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations of
the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee {IFRIC), previously the Standing Interpretation Committee “SIC",
valid as of May 31, 2005. ' ’ '

The accounting principles applied in the compilation of this interim report correspond to those applied in the consolidated financial
statements ‘as' of February 28, 2005. The Group has made additiona! application of IAS 34 “Interim Reporting”. This interim report
is to be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG for the 2004/2005 financial
year. Reference is made to these financial statements on account of the additional information they contain as to the specific
accounting and valuation methods applied. The notes included therein also apply to this interim report unless expressly indicated
otherwise.

In March 2004, the IASB issued the’new accounting standard IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” and the revised standards [AS 36
“Impairment of Assets” and IAS 38“;‘“In)tahgivble Aés’ets"’. These require that no amortization is undertaken on capitalized goodwill or
intangible assets with unlimited useful iives. Such assets are to be subject to an impairment test at least once per financial year
and to be subject to exceptional amortization as appropriate. In the event of any events or circumstances indicating a reduction in
the value of such assets, the impairment test is to be undertaken more frequently. The value of goodwill may not be appreciated at
a later date. IFRS 3, IAS 36 (2004 revision) and IAS 38 (2004 revision) are to be applied to acquisitions undertaken on the basis of
contracts concluded subsequent to March 31, 2004. In the case of acquisitions undertaken on the basis of contracts dated prior to
March 31, 2004, the standards are to be applied for the first time from March 1, 2005. Scheduled amortization of goodwill
amounting to € 90k was undertaken in the first quarter of the 2004/2005 financial year.

The initial application of the standards, particularly of those revised within the framework of the “Improvement Projects”, has not
had any significant overall impact on the depiction of the net asset, financial and earnings position of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG

Group.

(2) Reparting entity
There have been no changes in the reporting entity in the first quarter of 2005/2006.

{3) Seasonal influences

Due to weather conditions, the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group is subject to lower sales in the autumn and winter than in the
spring and summer months. These seasonal variations are reflected in the figures for the first three months. The results of
business operations for the first three months up to May 31, 2005 do not necessarily provide an accurate indication of the results
to be expected for the overall financial year.




{4) Other income and expenses
Other income and expenses are structured as follows:

‘1st Quarter : Change

€ milion -~ R "1t Quarter

2005/2008 2004/2005 in %
QOther operating income 9.5 5.1 86.6
QOther operating expenses 3.0 3.9 -35.9
Dther income and expenses 6.5 1.2 441.7

Other operating income primarily relates to advertising grants, income from exchange rate and payment differences, and income
from transfers within the HORNBACH HOLDING AG Group. Furthermore, the-income includes other non- -operating income of € 3.9m
resulting from the disposal of a DIY store property. The DIY store property has been rented back on a long term basis within the

framework of an operating lease. At the end of the non termlnable basnc rental penod there is the optlon of extending the rental

period or of repurchasing the property

The other operating expenses principally consist of expenses relating to exchange rate and currency differences, as well as to
losses incurred on the sale of fixed assets. Moreover, the item includes a non-operating expense amounting to € 0.5m in connection

with the addition of a provision for disadvantageous contracts.

{5) Other disclosures

The personnel expenses. of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group amounted to € 91.8m at the end of the Ist quarter on May 31 2005

{previous year: € 83. Am).

Depreciation and amorﬂzation totaling € 14.4m was undertaken on intan‘gible‘aesetsand property, plant ana”equipment at the
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group in the first three months of the 2005/2006 financial year (previous year: € 13.8m).

{8) Taxes on income
Taxes on income are structured as follows:

£€ million 1st Quarter 1st Quarter Change
2005/2008 2004/2005 in %

Current tax expenses 8.1 12.6 -35.7
Deferred tax expenses 1.0 3.7 -73.0
9.1 16.3 -44.2

(7) Share capital
In the first quarter of the 2005/2006 financial year, a total of 81,680 nen-par ordinary shares in the company were issued by
means of a conditional capital increase in connection with the exercising of subscription rights from the 1999 share option plan of
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG. The issue of these new shares means that the share capital of the company has risen by € 245,040.00 to
its current total of € 45,538,530.00. This is divided into 15,179,510 ordinary shares.

ol -«\‘».-,m i



(8) Earnings per share

Undiluted earnings per share are calculated pursuant to JAS 33 (Earnings per share) as the quotlent of the income allocable to the
shareholders of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG for the period under report and the weighted average number of shares in circulation,

Earnings per share

May 31, 2005 May 31, 2004

Weighted number of shares issued 15,125,057 15,011,500
Consolidated net income aliocable

to the shareholders in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in € million) 16.5 24.2

1.09 161

Earnings per share (in €)

The share option plans mean that shares have arisen with a potentially diluting effect. The diluted‘earnings per share are

calculated as follows:

Diluted earnings per share . )

May 31,2005 May 31, 2004
Weighted number of shares issued, ‘
including potential shares with a du|ut|ng effect 15,192,304 15,011,500
Consolidated net income allocable ‘
to the sharehoiders in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in € million) 16.5 242
1.09 1.61

Earnings per share (in €)




{(3) Segment reporting

1st Quarter 2005/2006 in € million DIY Stores Real Estate  Miscelianeous HORNBACH-
(1st Quarter 200472005 in € million) and  Baumarkt-AG
} . Consolidation Group
Segment income 616.5 230 -22.8 616.7
(585.0) (21.7) (-21.5) (585.2)
- Sales to external third parties 616.3 0.0 0.0 616.3
{584.8) (0.0) {0.0) (584.8)
- Sales to affiliated companies 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.2
(0.2) (0.0) (0.0) (0.2)

- Rental income from affiliated companies,
internal rental income 0.0 22.8 -22.8 0.0
(0.0) (21.5) (-21.5) (0.0)
- Rental income from external third parties 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.2
(0.0) (0.2) (0.0) {0.2)
Segment earnings (EBIT) 25.3 10.6 -3.5 324
(41.7) (6.4) (-2.7) {45.4)
Depreciation 9.5 3.0 1.9 144
(9.0 (3.2) (1.6) (13.8)
EBITDA 348 13.6 -1.6 46.8
(50.7) {9.6) (-L.1) (59.2)

Bornheim, June 24, 2005

The Board of Management of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-Aktiengesellschaft




Ad-hoc Announcement: June 13, 2005

RECEIVED

FINAL 0
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Con ST ERINATIONA L
First-quarter earnings in 2005/2006 significantly down on previous year ~URPORATE FIMAKCE

Neustadt/Weinstrasse, June 13, 2005.

The earnings performance of the HORNBACH HOLDING AG Group was unsatisfactory in the first quarter of
the current finaricial year (March 1 - May 31, 2005). This is principally due to sales at the HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG subgroup falling short of expectations on account of poor weather conditions and to a year-on-
year decline in the gross margin.

On the basis of initial preliminary figures, the earnings of the HORNBACH HOLDING AG Group for the first
quarter of 2005/2006 are significantly down on the previous year:

EBITDA: € 57m (minus 16 %)
EBIT: € 40m (minus 22 %)
Eamings before taxes: € 29m (minus 30 %)

Consolidated sales (net) rose by 5.4 % to € 651 million in the first quarter of 2005/2006 (previous year: € 618m).
Like-for-like sales at the DIY megastores with garden centers declined by 0.5 %. Germany reported a decline of
1.3 % in comparable store sales in the first three months, while the international HORNBACH DIY megastores
with garden centers witnessed growth of 1.2 %. The like-for-like sales growth reported for the months of April
and May was not sufficient to compensate for the loss of sales in March due to the wet and cold weather
conditions.

The detailed report on the first quarter of 2005/2006 will be published at the Annual Press Conference on June
24, 2005.

HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG

First quarter earnings in 2005/2006 significantly down on previous year
Bornheim bei Landau, June 13, 2005.

The earnings performance of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group was unsatisfactory in the first quarter of
the current financial year (March 1 - May 31, 2005). This is principally due to sales falling short of expectations
on account of poor weather conditions and to a year-on-year decline in the gross margin.

Cn the basis of initial preliminary figures, the earnings of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group for the first
quarter of 2005/2006 are significantly down on the previous year:

EBITDA: € 47m (minus 21 %)
EBIT: € 32m (minus 29 %)
Earnings before taxes: € 26m (minus 37 %)

Consolidated sales (net) rose by 5.4% to € 617 million in the first quarter of 2005/2006 (previous year: € 585m).
Like-for-like sales at the DIY megastores with garden centers declined by 0.5 %. Germany reported a decline of
1.3 % in comparable store sales in the first three months, while the international HORNBACH DIY megastores
with garden centers witnessed growth of 1.2 %. The like-for-like sales growth reported for the months of April
and May was not sufficient to compensate for the loss of sales in March due to the wet and cold weather
conditions.

The detailed report on the first quarter of 2005/2006 will be published at the Annual Press Conference on June
24, 2005.

Contact:
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Investor Relations
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axel .mueller@hornbach.com
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First Half of 2005/2006
HORNBACH Group on Growth Course

Consolidated sales rise by 6.6% to almost Euro 1.3 billion / Like-for-like
sales growth of 2.1% at DIY megastores with garden centers in second
quarter / Improved earnings situation / Sales forecast of Euro 2.4 billion
confirmed for overall year |

Neustadt an der Weinstrasse, September 29, 2005. In spite of the ongoing low
consumer confidence levels and tough price competition in the retail sector, the
HORNBACH Group has maintained its growth course. The operator of DIY
megastores with garden centers across Europe once again succeeded in
achieving significant growth in consolidated sales and in generating like-for-like
sales growth in the first half of the 2005/2006 financial year (March 1 to August
31, 2005). Net sales at the overall HORNBACH HOLDING AG Group rose by
6.6% in the first six months of the financial year to around Euro 1.292 billion.
On account of the pleasing developments seen in the second quarter (plus
2.1%), net like-for-like sales at the 121 DIY megastores with garden centers
rose by 0.8% in the first six months, thus building on the aiready impressive
growth of 4.2% reported for the equivalent period in the previous year.

Permanent low price strategy is appropriate

The operating earnings (EBIT) of HORNBACH HOLDING AG, which is listed in
the S-Dax, amounted to Euro 82.1 million at the end of the first six months. It
was thus not quite possible to reach the high level reported for the previous
year (Euro 95.0m). “One reason for this development can be found in the
weather conditions in the early months of the year, which resulted in a weaker
level of demand for gardening products,” commented Albrecht Hornbach,
Chairman of the Board of Management of HORNBACH HOLDING AG.
Earnings were further burdened by a reduction in the gross margin on account
of pricing competition remaining tough in the sector. “Our sales performance
proves, however, that HORNBACH is on the right track with its permanent low
price strategy”, underlined the Chairman of the Board. “We can afford to be
patient and will successfully survive the price battle.”

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 — Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 ~ invest@hombach.com
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Improved earnings in the 2" Quarter compared with the 1_St Quarter

The earnings performance of the HORNBACH Group.improved in.the second
quarter of 2005/2006 compared with the first quarter. At Euro 42.5 million,
operating earnings (EBIT) for the period from June to August almost reached
the previous year’s level (Euro 44.2m). In the first quarter, EBIT had fallen 22%
short of the previous year's figure, mainly due to poor weather conditions in
March. For the overall first half-year, EBIT are 13.5% below the record figure
for the past financial year. “We have made up some ground in our earnings
performance, but we should not measure ourselves for the overall year against
the record results seen in the previous year,” commented Albrecht Hornbach.

Consolidated earnin'gs before taxes amounted to Euro 61.1 miliion for the first

six months, compared’With Euro 78.0 million in the equivalent period in“the
previous year. Pre-tax’ earnlngs amounted to Euro 31.6 million in the" second
quarter, compared with Euro 35.7 million in the 2004/2005 fnanC|ai year 2

Significant increase in investments

HORNBACH HOLDING AG invested Euro 107.9 million, mainly in land. and.

buildings, in the first half of the financial year. This is equivalent to an increase

of almost 70% compared with the same pericd in the previous. year (Euro
64.0m). Shareholder's equity rose by 3.9% to Euro 575.4 (553.7):million.

600 new jobs

A further increase has been seen in the number of employees at HORNBACH.
The Group had a total of almost 11,900 employees at the eénd of August,
around 600 more than in the previous year.

Net sales at the HORNBACH’-Bauméckt-AG subgroup, which operates 121 DIY
megastores with garden centers in‘:e,ig‘ht European countries, rose by 6.7% in
the first half to around Euro 1‘;.218 billion. In the second quarter, sales rose by
8.2% to Euro 600.8 million. The operating earnings (EBIT) 'of.the.‘s;ubg:roup
amounted to Euro 65.7 million in the first half (previous year: Euro 183.0m) and
to Euro 33.3 million in the second quarter (previous year: Euro 37."6n'1); o

124 DIY megastores with garden centers by February 2006 - - .- -

The growth in sales is principally due to the dynamic development of the

international business and the opening of four new locations in Berlin,
Frankfur/Main, Malmé (Sweden) and Kosice (Slovakia). These were
supplemented by a new store in Wirzburg in September. Further openings will

HORNBACH-Investor Relations — Tel. +49 (0) 6348/60-2444 - Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4293 — invest@hombach.com
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take place in Kiel, Mumch and Hradec Kralove (Czech Republlc) Overall, the
company will be opening a eight new DIY megastores with garden centers in
2005/2006. By the end of the financial year, HORNBACH will be operating 124 .
DY megastores with garden centers. This figure is set to rise to 150 by 2010.

Sales at the 18 outlets operated. by -the HORNBACH Baustoff Union GmbH
subgroup improved in spite of the weak construction climate by 5.6% in the first.

-“#”':-:‘r::g‘..‘,“j.g}.‘.-,l@:{{‘}'«'.'\;:f,."(,’» iaznssau e PSS MOty s gt P T P o A

half and by 4.9% in the second quarter. »

Sales for overall financial year expected to rise to Euro 2.4 billion

The sales forecast of. around Euro 24 bilion at the overall HORNBACH

HOLDING AG Group and of almost Euro 2.3 billion. at the HORNBACH-
Baumarkt-AG subgroup is confrmed In the past fnancnal year, HORNBACH
. HOLDING AG generated sales of around Euro 2.2 billion and HORNBACH-
é Baumarkt-AG reported sales of around Euro 2.1 billion. “We still do not expect
‘. earnings to be able to reach the high level seen in the previous year”,
3 commented Albrecht Hornbach. However, the expected profitability would

. remain significantly higher than' the sector average. “In terms of-large-scale
retail formats and of the do-it-yourself sector in Germany, we are and will
continue to be an extremely profitable company”, stressed the Chairman of the -
Board of management of HORNBACH.HOLDING AG.

8500

s

An overview of the most important key figures:

HORNBACH HOLDING AG (Group)

Key Figures for the Group 2" Quarter 2" Quarter :.° - Half-year Half-year

s B it s Cowee 22 et Ay e et

(in Euro million, unless otherwise stated) 2005/2006 -2004/2005 . + % 2005/2006 2004/2005 +%
Net sales e 641.1 5940 . =79 1,292.1 12116 - 66
EBITDA ' 613 624 -18.. 118.2 1301 . 9.1
B Earnings beforemterestandtaxes(EBIT) 425 442 -37 821 95.0 -13.5 -
. Consolidated earnings beforetaxes and - S L
. minority interests - U cnout.o o 316 357 15 61.1 780  -217
. Consolidated netincome*  ir2v% o - 176 . - 178 . --20° - 334 - 376 -11.2
e No. of employees at HORNBACH Group 5 11,872 11,285 5.2

T @i

investments : : 5 L 107.9 64.0 68.6

* after minority interests

(Percentage changes calculated. on € 000s basis)

HORNBACH-Investor Relations - Tel. +4é (0) 6348/60-2444 ~ Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 - invest@hombach.com
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HORNBACH Baumarkt- AG (Group)

(in Euro million, unless otherwise stated) 2" Quarter 2" Quarter ‘ Half-year Half-year
2005/2006  2004/2005 -+ % 2005/2006 2004/2005 £ %

Net sales 600.8 555.3 8.2 1,217.5 1,140.5 6.7

of which in other European countries 216.1 183.5 17.3 421.7 370.3 15.5
Like-for-like sales growth : 2.1% 6.1% : 0.8% 4.1%
Gross margin (as % of net sales) 34.7% 36.4% ‘ 35.2% 36.6% :
EBITDA ‘ 49.0 52.8 1.2 95.7 112.0 -14.5
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 33.3 37.6 -11.6 65.7 83.0 -20.9
Consolidate earnings before taxes and 25.4 326 222 51.0 73.1 -30.2
extraordinary result L '
Consolidated net income 16.9 204 170 334 46  -250
No. of employees AU 11,251 10625 . ©59
Investments L 76.4 36.6 108.7
No. of stores S 121 116 4.3
Sales area as per BHB (in 000 m3) e 1,262 L7415
Average store size (in m?) 10,433 10,121 31

(Percentage changes calculated on € 000s basis)

The extensive interim reports of HORNBACH HOLDING AG and
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG for the second quarter of 2005/2006 have been
published in the “Investor Relations” section of the web pages of the

HORNBACH Group at www.hornbach-holding.com.

Contact

Investor Relations

Axel Mdller

76878 Bornheim bei Landau
Tel: (+49) 0 63 48/60 - 24 44
Fax: (+49) 0 63 48/ 60 - 42 99
E-mail: invest@hornbach.com

Internet: www.hornbach-holding.com

HORNBACH:-Investor Relations - Tel. +49 (0) 6(;48/60-2444 ~ Fax 049 (0) 6348/60-4299 - invest@hombach.com

Press/Public Relations

Dr. Ursula Dauth

67433 Neustadt a. d. W.

Tel: (+49) 0 63 21/678 - 93 21
Fax: (+49) 063 21/ 678 - 93 00
E-mail: presse@hornbach.com
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~HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group. =
Interim Repart (IFRS) for the First Half uf 20@5/’20[15
(March 1 - August 31, 2005)

~ Consolidated cales prowth o

S : o e . dh o
o Reduchion in earnings shortiall compared wilh record greviods yaz

In the first six months of the current financial year (March 1 to August 31, 2005), HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG.succeeded in raising
its consolidated sales by almost 7%. The improved business performance in the second quarter meant that the shortfall in
like-for-like sales reported for the first three months has been more than made up. Like-for-like sales grew by 2.1% across the
Group in the secend quarter compared with the high level reported for the previous year (2004/2005: plus 6.1%). This resulted in
an overall increase of 0.8% for the. first half of.the financial year. Improvements have also been seen in the earnings situation as a
result of this sales growth. At € 65. 7m cumulative operating earnings (EBIT)-are now.21% below the record value reported for the
previous year, compared with the shortfall of 29% reported for the first.quarter 2005/2006. Consolidated earnings before taxes
were reported at € 51.0m for the first six months (previous year: € 73.1m). o :

Key Figures HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group 2nd Quartsr 2nd Quarter LChange - 1st %éa_if 1st Half Change

(in € m, unless otherwise stated) 2083/706  2004/2005 in% 2085/2005 200472005 in %

Net sales ’ 600.8 5553 . 82 12115 1,140.5 6.7
of which in other European countries C2061 0 1835 178 4217 3703 15.5

Like-for-like sales growth 2.1% 6.1% 08%  41%

Gross margin (as % of net sales) ( o 347% 364% . . 3H2% - 366%

EBITDA : 49.0 528 120 %7 7 1120 -14.5

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 333 316 -1l . 65T 83.0 -209

Consolidated earnings before taxes and N o i

extraordinary result © 54 326 -222 51,0 3.0 -30.2

Extraordinary result -0.1 0.0 -0.1 0.0

Consclidated net income 16.9 204 -17.0 334 446 -25.0

Undiluted earnings per share (€) ‘ . 1.12 - 1.36 -176 2.21 2.97 -25.9

No. of employees , 11,251 10625 . 59

investments S o _ 76.4 36.6 108.7

Total assets ' L o o 1,354 1,158.2 16.9

Shareholder's equity ' o 4338 409.1 6.0

Shareholder’s equity as % of total assets. v . _ 32.0% 35.4% ‘

No. of stores ‘ o B L St 116 4.3

Sales area as per BHB (in 000 m?) ‘ ' - 1,262 1,174 75

Average store size (in m?) 10,433 10,121 31

(Percentage changes calculated on € 000s basis)
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Two Rew Store Caenings in the Second Auarier of GS!M‘@ e

Two DIY megastores with garden centers were opened during the second quarter of the 2005/2006 fmancral year. In July 2005 the
ninth HORNBACH location i in, Greater Berlrn was opened in Berlin- Neukolln In August 2005, operatrons commenced at the second
DIY megastore with a garden ‘center | rn Frankfurt am Main. g :

The number of retail outlets had rose to 121 as of August 31, 2005 {previous year: 116). With total sales areas of around
1,262,000 m?, the average store size now exceeds 10,400m?. A total of 90 stores are operated in Germany. The 31 stores in other
European countries are distributed as follows: Austria {11}, Netherlands {8), Czech Republic {4), Switzerland (3), Luxembourg (1),
Sweden (2) and Slovakia (2).

Sates Performancs

The net sales of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group, including those generated by newly opened stores, rose by 8.2% in the second
quarter (June 1 to August 31, 2005) to € 600.8m (previous year: € 555.3m). Cn a cumulative basis for the first six months of the
financial year, consolidated sales rose by 6.7% to € 1,217.5m (previous year: € 1,140.5m). Sales at the HORNBACH DIY megastores
with garden centers outside Germany rose from € 370 3m to € 427.7m in the first half of 2005/2006, thus accounting for 35.1% of
overaH sales (previous year: 32 5%)

During the reporting period from-March to August 2005, like-for-like sales showed overall growth of 0.8%. It should be noted in this
respect that like-for-like sales growth in-the first six months of the previous year amounted to 4.2% and was thus already at a high
level. Following the decling of-0.5% in thé first quarter of 2005/2006, the second quarter saw pleasing growth momentum, with an
increase of 2.1%. This was particularly true of the HORNBACH stores in other European countries, where like-for-like sales rose by
5.0% in the second quarter and by 3.0% in the first half of the financial year, With growth of 0.7% in the second quarter, the Ger-
man stores were able to regain some ground and had virtually succeeded in compensating for the shortfall i in the first quarter
(minus 1. 3%) by the end of the frrst sn( months {minus 0.4%).

In the course of the frrst half of 2005/2006, HORNBACH further sharpened its profile as the DIY store for project customers, This
primarily involved optrmrzlng the presentation of merchandise, as well as implementing marketing campaigns aimed at raising

" customer frequency levets.-Moreover, in the competitive environment in which it operates in terms of pricing, HORNBACH has

uncompromisingly maintained its -permanent low price strategy, with which the Group differentiates itself from the discount cam-
paigns on the part of its competitors. This pricing policy-is also backed up by independent studies (Mercer Management Consulting;

" IfH - Institute for Retail Research). These demonstrate that although customer satisfaction levels mainly depend on price structu-

res, it is the normal prices, rather than campaién prices, which determine the degree of such satisfaction. Retail businesses with
permanently low pnces are percerved by consumers as being less expensively priced overall than businesses which advertise using
special offers.

Larnings Perfor mance

The earnings performance of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group rmproved in the second quarter of 2005/2006 compared with the
first quarter. In the second quarter, it was-possible to reduce the shortfall to the record earnings levels reparted for the previous
year. Account should be taken in this respect of the basis effects relating to the record year in 2004/2005 - the very pleasing per-
formance in the previous financial year was attributable to significant earnings growth in the first half of the year.

At € 25.4m, consolidated earnings before taxes and the extraordinary result were 22. 2% lower in the second quarter than in the
equrvalent period in the previous year-(€ 32.6m). Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) fell by 11.6% to € 33.3m (previous year:
€37.6m). - S e

Cumulative consolidated earnings before taxes fell by 30.2% to € 51.0m in the reporting period from March to August 2005 (pre-
vious year: € 73.1m). At € 65.7m, earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) were 20.9% lower than in the previous year

(€ 83.0m). Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) declined by 14.5% compared with the previous
year to € 95.7m (€ 112.0m). The consolidated net income dropped by 25.0% to € 33.4m in the first half of 2005/2006 (previous
year: € 44.6m). Earnings per share (undiluted) amounted to € 2.21, compared with € 2.97 one year earlier.




L)
One major reason for the weaker earnings performance in the first half of the year compared with the record figures for the pre-
vious year is the lower gross margin. The gross profit of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group fell as a percentage of net sales from
36.6% to 35.2%. This development is primarily attributable to the decline in retail prices as a result of the consistent implementa-
tion of the company's permanent low price strategy. The significant recovery in sales growth witnessed only in the second quarter is
as yet insufficient to compensate for the margin loss in the year to date. Moreover, the rollout of SAP across the Group impacted
negatively on store and administration expenses during the reporting period. As a result of the interest expenses relating to the cor-
porate bond, net financial expenses also declined from € -9.9m to € -14.7m. Moreover, the higher level of pre-opening expenses
resulting from the larger number of new store openings also had a negative impact on the company's earnings.

Emnioyess
At the reporting date on August 31, 2005, there were 11,251 (previous year: 10,625) individuals acioss Europe in fixed employment
at HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG or one of its subsidiaries.

Inyaatmants
HVEsUREINS

A total of € 76.4m was invested during the first six months of the current financial year (previous year: € 36.6m), primanily in land
and buildings (54%) and in office and plant equipment and software (46%). Information as to the financing and investment acti-
vities of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG has been provided in the cash flow statement in the notes to this report.

Gther Tvents during the Pariod under Bepart

Following severe storms in the Alpine region in August 2005, the HORNBACH store in Littau in Central Switzerland was devastated
by flooding and subsequent mudslides. The majority of the inventories was destrayed. Thanks to the clearing up work carried out at
full stretch, the DIY store was already in a position to resume normal operations on September 23, 2005. Apart from an excess
amount of € 0.1m, the flooding damage and loss of operations are insured. AR

Gutlock

The outlook for the current 2005/2006 financial year remains unchanged on the forecast provided at the end of the first quarter.
Based on this forecast, the sales of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group, including those generated by newly opened stores, are
expected to rise to almost € 2.3 bn. It is still thought that the company will be unlikely to make up the ‘earnings shortfall in the
overall financial year, Consolidated earnings before taxes are therefore expected to fall significantly short of the record level repor-
ted for the 200472005 financial year (€ 68.0 m). . '

A total of eight HORNBACH DIY megastores with garden centers is scheduled to be opened in the 2005/2006 financial year. Follo-
wing the opening of stores in Malmo (Sweden), Kosice {Slovakia), Berlin and Frankfurt, the third quarter will see an expansion of
the store network to include stores in Wiirzburg, Hradec Kralové (Czech Republic) and Kiel. The opening of the first HGRNBACH store
in Munich is scheduled for the end of December. By the end of the financial year, HORNBACH will be operating a total of 124 DIY
megastores with garden centers across the Group.

Bornheim, September 29, 2005
— The Board of Management —
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Contact

invastor Relations

Axel Miiller , ,
76878 Bornheim bei Landau |
Tel: (+49) 0,63 48/ 60 -24 44
Fax: (+49) 0,63 48/ 60 - 4299
invest@hornbach.com

Internet: Please click on our new commu_nicafioh platform of .
the HORNBACH Group to download al] IR and PR contents: -
www.hornbach-holding.com

Press/Public Relations

Dr. Ursula Dauth

67433 Neustadt a. d. Weinstrasse .
Tel: (+49) 0 63 21/ 678 - 93 21
Fax: {+49) 0 6321/ 678 - 93 00
presse@hornbach.com
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HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group S aesieneT s
[ ]
Income Statement L
| 2nd Ouarter 2nd Quarter  Change  ‘stKalf  1stHalf  Change ]
§€ million , IBEE/2G08  2004/2005 in% 2005/2E5%  2004/2005 in % x'
Sales . 600.8 555.3 8.2 1217.5 1,140.5 6.7 '
Costs of goods sold 392.3 3533 111 . 7887 7226 9.1 .
Gross profit ) 208.4 202.1 .1 . 4287 4119 2.6 '
Selling and store expenses 154.4 - 148.1 .43 3245 2974 9.1 .
Pre-opening expenses 38 3.0 216 61 . 45 37.0 M
General and administration expenses 22.1 190 . 192 448 . 398 124
Other income and expenses , 58 C51 22 123 68 80.5 s
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 333 . 37.6 116 8577 830 -20.9
Net financial expenses - » <19 .. -5 514 . 1471 . .99, 418 '
Consolidated earnings before taxes and _ ' e o *
extraordinary result . "25.4 326 . -222 . 5.0 . 131, -302
Taxes on income g4 . 122. . 317 ... 114 285 -38] g
Consolidated earnings after taxes and before o ' o .
extraordinary resuit 17.0 204 -16.5 335 446 -24.8
Extraordinary result -0.1 0.0 - -0.1 0.0 o
Consolidated net income 16.9 20.4 -17.0 33.4 44.6 -25.0 o

As a result of rounding up or down, there may be slight discrepancies between the figures and the respective percentages.
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HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group IR
Balance Sheet
. 3
® i YR S -
. E i i«:ggusﬁ I, 2905 . August 31, 2004 February 28, 2005 | o
i EASSETS € miiting % €million % € millien %E ;
* i°
' A. long-term assets ' | 658.7 48.6 630.9 54.5 650.9 1N 2
E’ . Intangible assets 26.3 1.9 16.8 1.5 25.5 2.0 '51.
' (. Property, plant and equipment ‘ © 6164 455 600.6 51.9 609.8 47.9 '
' IIl. Financial assets 0.1 0.0 0.9 0.1 0.2 .00 ’
IV, Other long-term assets 16 0.1 16 01 16 01 |
’ ‘ V. Deferred tax claims : 14.3 1.1 110 ©09 138 11
" B. Short-term assets . 695.7 514 521.3 45.5 622.9 48.9 e
I. Inventories ‘ o T 430.1 318 - 4105 354 4264 335 '
Il. Accounts receivable and other assets 424 31 756 6.5 53.3 42 '
Il Cash and cash equivalents ... 223.2 16.5 412 36 1432 11.2
. . *
TOTAL ASSETS o 1,354.4 100.0 1,158.2 - 1000  -1,273.8 - 100.0 '
P ‘:.
,1 August 3%, 2083 August 31, 2004 February 28, 2005 ‘2 i®
;EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ~ ' : £ miliion % € million % € million %i .
.
A. Shareholder's equity 433.8 32.0 409.1 354 398.6 313 e
I. Share capital 45.5 34 45.0 39 453 36 A
. II. Capital reserve 126.5 9.3 122.5 10.6 1247 9.8 s
e {Il. Retained earnings 228.3 16.9 197.0 17.0 185.3 14.5
1 IV. Consolidated net income 334 2.5 44.6 39 133 34 .
5 B. Long-term liabilities 509.6 31.6 334.6 28.9 560.6 4.0 f‘,
: I Long-term debt 451.0 333 283.5 24.5 5016 394 ,
i II. Deferred taxes 47.4 35 44.3 3.8 46.8 3.7 '.
i I, Other liabilities 11.2 0.8 6.8 0.6 12.2 1.0 A
m. C. Short-term liahilities 411.0 30.3 4145 35.7 3146 24.1 ,
. {. Short-term debt 79.1 58 1068 9.2 40.1 3.1 .
L I, Accounts payable and other liabilities 258.9 19.1 220.1 19.0 214.2 16.8
q IIl. Tax provisions 19.6 1.4 305 26 12.7 1.0 2
": IV. Other provisions 53.4 3.9 57.1 4.9 477 3.7 ‘7,.
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,354.4 100.0 1,158.2 100.0 1,273.8 100.0 3

As a result of rounding up or down, there may be slight discrepancies between the figures and the respective percentages. ‘e




HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group
Cash Flow Statement

b

1st Half 2004/2005

/
4
;

€ million: .
Consolidated earnings after taxes and before extraordinary result 34 45 3
Depreciation and amortization v R 30 , 29 3
Change in provisions 0 2 4
Profits/losses on the sale of fixed assets : ‘ - -3 0 i
Change in inventories, accounts receivable _ ¥
and other assets -1 . -9
Change in accounts payable A o .- :
and other liabilities , ) 57 51 e
Other income/expenses with no cash effect _ _ 0 7 “ ;
Cash flow from operating activities ' ’ w5 *
Proceeds from dispasals of fixed assets 60 5 ' ,
Payments for investments in tangible assets -713 -37
Payments for investments in intangible assets -3 -3 '
Cash flow from investing activities . o . -16 -35 '
Receipts from capital increases . . 2 TR 0 X
Receipts from taking up of long-term debt 0 12 '
Repayment of long-term debt N 7 -1 s (18 o
Payments for group financing activities 7 o g T -71 :'
Change in short-term debt o2 ‘ ! -
Cash fiow from financing activities v o v -11 T -88 A
Change in cash and cash equivalents - 80 I -8 .
Cash and cash equivalents at March 1 ) o143 R 49 o
Cash and cash equivalents at August 31 v _ o 223 ‘ 4
The change in provisions item only includes provisions whese maturity or amount is uncertain. The figure for the previous year has accordingly been adjusted .
by € 22 million, - - ‘ .
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HORNBACH-~Baumarkt-AG Group

Statement of Shareholders’ Equity

15t Half of 2004/2005
; Cumulative Other
! Share Capital = Hedging Currency  Retained NetlIncome Total
§€ million Capital Reserve Reserve Conversion  Earnings for the Year Equity
Balance at March 1, 2004 45 122 -2 0 170 8 363
Foreign currency adjustments 1
Valuation of derivative financial
instruments, net after taxes 0
Transfer to reserves 28 -28 ]
Net income for the year 45 45
Balance at August 31; 2004 45 122 -2 1 198 45 409
st Kalf of 2005/2008 L
! ' Cumulative . Other
! . Share Capital Hedging  Currency  Retained Net Income Total
§€ million ~ Capital  Reserve  Reserve Conversion  Earnings for the Year ‘Equity}
Balance at March 1, 2005 45 125 -2 3 185 43 399
Foreign currency adjustments 0
Capital increase from share option
plans : ’ 2 2
Valuation of derivative financial .
instruments, net after taxes - 0
Transfer to reserves 43 -43 0
Net income for the year 33 33
Balance at August 31, 2005 45 127 -2 3 228 33 434




HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group e
NOTES TO THE GROUP INTERIM REPORT AS OF AUGUST 31 2005

{1} Accounting ;nr‘mmgias

This non-audited group interim report of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG and its subsidiaries for the first six months as of August 31, 2005
~has been compiled in accordance with the accounting principles promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), London. Application has been made of all International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations of the Inter-
national Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC), previously the Standing Interpretation Committee “SIC", valid as of
August 31, 2005,

The accounting principles applied in the compilation of this interim report correspond to those applied in the consolidated financial
statements as of February 28, 2005. The Group has made additional application of IAS 34 “Interim Reporting”. This interim report is
to be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG for the 200472005 financial year.
Reference is made to these financial statements on account of the additional information they contain as to the specific accounting
and valuation methods apphed The notes included therein also apply to this interim report unless expressly indicated otherwise.

[n March 2004, the IASB issued the new accounting standard IFRS 3 "Business Combrnatlons” and the revised standards IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”. These require that no amortization is undertaken on capitalized goodwill or
intangible assets with unlimited useful lives. Such assets are-to be subjeet to an impairment test at least once per financial year
and to be subject to exceptional amortization as appropriate. In the event of anyevents or circumstances indicating a reduction in
the value of such assets, the impairment test is to be undertaken more frequently. The value of goodwill may not be appreciated at a
later date. IFRS 3, IAS 36 (2004 revision) and-IAS.38 (2004 revision) are to be applied to acquisitions undertaken on the basis of
contracts concluded subsequent to March 31, 2004. In the case of acquisitions undertaken-on the basis of contracts dated prior to
March 31, 2004, the standards are to be applied for the first time from March 1, 2005.-Scheduled amortization-of goodwill amoun-
ting to € 154k was undertaken in the first half of the 2004/2005 financial year.

The initial application of the standards, particularly of those revised within the framework of the “Improvement Projects”, has not
had any significant overall impact on the depiction of the net asset, financial and earnings position of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG
Group.

{2} Reporting entity
- The company BM Immobilien Zeta GmbH, Bornh_eim, was disposed of in the second quarter. The company was removed from the
reporting entity as of August 31, 2005.

{3} Seasenal influences

Due to weather conditions, the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group is subject to lower sales in the autumn and winter than in the
spring and summer months. These seasonal variations are reflected in the figures for the first half of the financial year. The results
of business operations for the first six months up to August 31, 2005 do not necessarily provide an accurate mdrcatron of the
results to be expected for the overall financial year ' :
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(4} Gther income and axpenses
Other income and expenses are structured as follows:

5

Ty et

LIRS Y

€million: . LEd L © o 2nd.Quarter " 2nd Quarter Change
' 2005/20086 2004/2005 in %
Other operating income 8.6 9.3 -15
Other operating expenses 2.8 3.6 -22.2
Other income and expenses 5.8 5.7 2.2
‘€ million st alf 15t Half Change!
: 2085/2886 2004/2005 in%
Other operating income 18.1 143 26.6
Other operating-expenses - - 58 - 7.5 -22.7
Other income and expenses 123 . 6.8 80.5

Other operating income primarily relates to advertising grants, income from exchange rate and payment differences, and income
from transfers within the HORNBACH-HOLDING AG Group. Furthermore; the income includes other-non-operating income of € 3.9m
resulting. from the disposal of a DIY megastore with a garden center and of a reat estate shareholding. The DIY megastores with
garden centers were rented back on-a long'term basis within the framework of an operating lease. At the end of the non-terminable

“basic rental period, there is the option of-extending the rental period or of repurchasing the property. -

The other operating expenses.principally consist of expenses relating to exchange rate and currency differences, as well as to los-

{5} Net financial expenses
Net financial expenses are structured as follows:

-ses incurred on the sale.of fixed assets. Moreover, the item includes a non-operating expense amounting to € 0.5m in connection
with the addition of provisions for disadvantageous contracts. '

{€ million nd Quarter 2nd Quarter Change
E 2005/2008 2004/2005 in%
Interest and similar income 0.9 0.1 800.0
Interest and similar expenses 8.8 5.1 72.5
Net financial expenses 1.9 5.0 57.4
€ million © st Half 1st Half Change

2006/2808 2004/2005 in %

Interest and similar income

1.8 0.3 500.0
Interest and similar expenses 16.5 10.2 61.8
Net financial expenses 14.1 9.9 418

The net financial expenses as of the first half of 2005/2006 include a net expense of € 0.9m (previous year: € 0.0m) relating to the

valuation of derivative financial instruments.




{§) Other disciosures
The personnel expenses of the HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group amounted to € 179 Zm at the end of the flrst half of the fmanc:al
year on August 31, 2005 (prevmus yea. € 167. Om) LA

P, et

Depreciation and amortization totallng € 30.0m was undertaken on |ntang|bte assets-and property, plant and equipment at the
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG Group in the first six months of the 2005/2006 financial year (previous year: € 29.0m).

{71 Extraordinary resuit

The extraordinary result includes the net expenses for the damages incurred at the DIY megastore with a garden center in Littay,
Switzerland, as a result of the August floods. Initial estimates put the damages, which mainly involve inventories and office and
plant equipment, at approximately € 5m. This sum is offset by equivalent income from the insurance claims submitted.

(#} Tages op incom

Taxes on income are structured as follows:

,€ million Zrit Quartsr 2nd Quarter Change
f 2045/2006 200472005 in %
Current tax expenses 9.3 9.2 1.1
Deferred tax expenses ~ ~ -0.9 o e 30 ©-130.0
84 Co 122 -31.7
€ million It~ Change; @
; 2004/2005 in %! .
Current tax expenses 174 i - 218 -20.2 g
Deferred tax expenses 0.0 6.7 -100.0 o .
11.4 .285 o -38.7 .

: o
(3) Share capital )
In the first half of the 2005/2006 financial year, a total of 82,480 non-par ordinary shares in the company were issued by means e

_ of a conditional capital increase in connection with the exercising of subscription rights from’ the 1999 share option plan of .
HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG. The issue of these new shares means that the share capital of the company has risen by € 247,440.00 ;-
to its current total of € 45,540,930.00. This is divided into 15,180,310 ordinary shares. ;

T T T T et P8 e




{10} Earnings per sharg .

i !
2

Undiluted earnings per share are calculated pursuant to IAS 33 (Earnrngs per Share) as the quotreﬂt of

earnings per share are calculated as follows:

Diluted earnings per share

3 the income allocable to the shareholders of HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG for the period under report and the

. ’ weighted average number of shares in circulation.

’

@ . Earnings per share

[ ]

< 2nd Duarter 2nd Quarter

2605/2008 200472005

Weighted number of sharés issued 15,180,310 15,011,500

5 Consolidated net income allocable to the shareholders

L in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in € million) 16.9 20.4

2 Earnings per share (in €) 1.12 1.36

§ 15t Haif 1st Half

; 2505/2808 2004/2005

; Weighted number of shares issued 15,180,310 15,011,500

' _ Consolidated net income allocable to the shareholders '

F' in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in € miliion) 334 44.6

. Earnings per shate (in €) 2.21 297

[' The share option plans mean that shares have arisen with a potentially diluting effect. The diluted

2nd Quarter 2nd Quarter
2005/2086 2004/2005
Werghted number of shares issued, mcludrng o
potential shares with a diluting effect - 15,220,064 15,011,500
Consolidated net income allocable to the shareholders ‘
in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in € million) 16.9 20.4
Earnings per share (in €) 1.11 1.36
b 15t Hali Tst Halt:
é 2605/2056 20[!4/2005%
Weighted number of shares issued, including
potential shares with a diluting effect 15,220,064 15,011,500
Consolidated net income allocable to the shareholders
in HORNBACH-Baumarkt-AG (in € million) 334 44.6
Earnings per share (in €) 2.20 2.97
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{11} Segment reporting

‘; Half of 2685/2086 in € million DIY Stores Real Estate Miscellaneous MOXHBACH-
{(1st Half of 200472005 in € million) and  Baumarki-AG
i Consolidation Sioup
Segment income 1,211 46.9 -46.5 1,211.5
(1,140.1) (44.0) (-43.6) (1,140.5)
- Sales to external third parties 1,216.8 0.0 0.0 1,216.8
(1,139.7) {0.0) (0.0) (1,139.7)
- Sales to affiliated companies 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3
(0.4) (0.0) (0.0} 0.4)

- Rental income from affiliated companies,
internal rental income 0.0 46.5 -46.5 0.0
‘ (0.0) {43.6) (-43.6) (0.0
- Rental income from external third parties 0.0 0.4 0.0 04
(0.0) (0.4) (0.0) (0.4)
Segment earnings (EBIT) 53.8 18.0 -6.1 65.7
(76.3) (11.9) (-5.2) (83.0)
Depreciation 19.1 1.0 39 30.0
(18.8) (7.0) (3.2) (29.0)
EBITDA 72.9 25.0 -2.2 95.7
(95.1) (18.9) (-2.0) (112.0)

Bornheim, September 29, 2005

- The Board of Management -
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Ad-Hoc Announcement

RECEIVED
Changes in the Board of ManagementZlfi 0CT 21 A i 25

The Supervisory Board of Hombach-Bdéﬁ{iﬁr(f{ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁgEMOwledged and
approved the statement by Mr. Bernd Rob that he would retire from the Board
of Management with immediate effect. The Supervisory Board thanked Mr. Rob
for the high degree of commitment he had shown to the company. Mr. Rob will
depart from the company as of September 30, 2005. His responsibilities (stores,
store organization, human resources) will be assumed by the other members of
the Board of Management. Particularly in view of the high level of integration in
the store organization resulting from the successful introduction of modern
information and management systems, the relevant position on the Board of
Management is not expected to be reoccupied. The Board of Management will
with immediate effect consist of five members with Steffen Hornbach as
Chairman,

Frankfurt am Main, September 1, 2005

Supervisory Board and Board of Management







